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HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“"Hopson
Development”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited since 1998 (Stock code: 0754). Hopson Development is a
major property group that specializes in the development of
medium-to high-end large-scale residential properties. In terms
of size of land bank, it is one of the largest property developers
in the People’s Republic of China. Geographically, the Group
focuses on three fast growing economic regions, namely the
Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai Economic Zone and Yangtze River
Delta, with substantial investments in key cities, such as
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few

years.

Following the introduction of strategic investors to the
management board this year, Hopson Development has
combined the already solid foundations laid down by the existing
management at operational level, with the international expertise
and experience at strategic level. With a diversified and highly
experienced management team, together with a well-balanced
capital structure, Hopson Development is poised to maintain its

strong position to face the challenges ahead.
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CORPORATE, SHAREHOLDERS' AND LISTING INFORMATION

A 1P L —_ S 1IN
T ¥ - R ®E K £ m & #
CORPORATE INFORMATION DR
Board of Directors o=
Executive Directors HITEH
CHU Mang Yee (Chairman) R (/%)
XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman) B BIE/E)
WU Jiesi (Chief Executive Officer) HER (7TEAE )
TAM Lai Ling (Chief Financial Officer) BISE (BB 4a 2
AU Wai Kin B (& 2
CHEN Chang Ying [E B
XIAQ Yan Xia ERE
Non-executive Directors FHMITESE
CHEN Xiaohong W/J\%\_I
HU, Yongmin ‘Eﬂéi%@i
SHAFRAN, Steven e B
Independent Non-executive Directors %5—‘7#%}1 TEF
YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip @Eibij—%
LEE Tsung Hei, David %Aﬁ—%
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Hong Kong
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Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Shenzhen Development Bank

RY B RIRTT
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46th Floor, Hopewell Centre ERBERARNER 1835

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE, SHAREHOLDERS' AND LISTING INFORMATION +t%  -BEEREITEHR

Registered Office A EE
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
Principal Office FERER
Suites 2705-09 e
27th Floor, Jardine House IR
1 Connaught Place BREEES 5%
Central 18T KE 27 12
Hong Kong 2705-09 &
Representative Offices REWREFE
Guangzhou -  Zhujiang Investment Building South Tower BN - EMW
16th Floor, 421 Zhujiang Road East ERIL#T
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou PRI 421 5%
KIRERE
ME 1612
Beijing - Zhujiang Development Centre R - ERTHBEAKRER 235
23 Dawang Road West HILEREP D
Chaoyang District, Beijing
Shanghai -  18th Floor ' -  LETWHRFRIERS55%
Guangdong Development BRERRITAE 1812
Bank Building
555 Xujia Hui Road, Shanghai
Tianjin - No.14 Dongchengnan Road South XE - RETMEEKR
Baodi District, Tianjin R 14 5%
SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR BREFERIA
Register of Shareholders PR 4 il
Close of Register TIERERAPERTE
12th June 2006 to 15th June 2006 (both days inclusive) RZEERFNA+T-HZE
ZEERFERA+HA (BEEEMA)
Annual General Meeting BERBAFRE
15th June 2006 —EERFRNATAA
Dividends (Per Share) E (&)
Interim dividend HK9.75 cents IR B 9.75 1L
Paid on 25th November 2005 RZZEZRF+—AZ+THRAKNF
Proposed final dividend HK24.2 cents EEREIRE 24.2 810
Payable on 28th June 2006 R ZZEZXRFAAAZTNBIRN
LISTING INFORMATION ETER
Shares Listing My
The Company'’s shares are listed on A B R 7
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited BEEBERXSMERAR LT
Stock Code vk i
0754 0754
Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing REEBEERELT
The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on RRAE8IBEZRBEBARERE
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited REFINE B SR SMAR QR L
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Hopson Development Holdings Limited

SEAESEAERAE

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
R

1 =

Broperty IV anayement

Guangdong Esteem
Property Services Limited

ERESMERGER AT

Guangdong
BR

PropertylDEVeElopment

e

BETEE -0
Pleasant View Garden
®R=EE
Huanan New City
AT
Huajing New City

ST
Regal Palace
™ ?ﬁgE
Regal Riviera”

;I%%(U
Others”
/ﬁé{m(ll

Gallopade Park — South Court

Guangzhou Regal

Riviera Hotel”

BN EROT 55 =B

k
|

Beijing Regal Court

Beijing Zhujiang Century R TIBE
Property Management Limited Beijing Fresh Llfe Garden Beijing Plaza
LRI TR THNRE Jiiale ol
B - EBRBRANF Beijing Citta Eterna IR R EILEIE
IERESZE
e Ij In g Beijing Hopson International Garden
it = JERa EBBRER
B
Shanghai Hopson Town
EEAEHB
Shanghai Hopson
H International Building
Shanghai e
b=}
1 H Hyatt R Hotel
Tla nj in Tianjin Jingjin New Town i Jine%inccisi N
FEFRH, L - -
9& \‘$ ST G SR ET
/-
Notes
MeE
(1) 69.5% owned by the Group
AR B EH69.5% M m
(2) Others include development projects such as Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay, Hopson International New City, Gallopade Park,

Fairview Garden, Fairview South Court, Regal Riviera Villa, Yunshan Xijing and Yijing Huayuan.
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CORPORATE MILESTONES OF THE YEAR

F E K & O HE

MARCH = A

On 8th March 2005, the Group
entered into land transfer agreements
for the acquisition of land sites with a
total gross floor area (“GFA") of
201,323 square meters in Beijing.

R-ZEZERF=ZANE  REERK
AL R EREEmE A 201,323 F K2
38 5T S AR A o

APRIL I8 A

On 29th April 2005, Mr. Wu Jiesi was
appointed as an executive director of
the Company and Mr. Tam Lai Ling
was appointed as the Deputy
and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company.

RZZFEERAFMWA=-+NAB -
REBEZTARRRINITES -
SEBEZTARARZEIEE

Managing Director

ML -

JUNE /<

On 6th June 2005, Mr. Wu Jiesi was
appointed as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

R-ZZRFRNANE RREBELE

RERRRREFTARERITHRAE-

JULY £ A

On 2nd July 2005, the Group acquired a
land site in Pudong District, Shanghai with
a GFA of 86,947 square meters for
commercial purpose.

On 15th July 2005, the Group entered into
an Equity Transfer Agreement to acquire
the entire equity interests in Huizhou
Yaxin Real Estate Co., Ltd., a company
owning a land site with a total GFA of
1,275,122 million square meters in
Shuikou Town, Huizhou.

RZZZRFLA_R  AEERE LS
MRBRBEMEER 86,947 F T AKZ IR -
AEEERZ

N-_ZEERFLATHA REBF UK
EEZEE ABABNTETHEMESR
AR R EHE  ZARREMNKOERES
MRS AE B 1,275,122 S 7 K 2 g o
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CORPORATE MILESTONES OF THE YEAR

AUGUST /A H

On 9th August 2005, the Company
issued and allotted 200,600,000 new
shares to Aranda Investments Pte. Ltd.,
a subsidiary of Temasek Holdings
(Private) Ltd. and Tiger Global L.P.

On 9th August 2005, Mr. Shafran Steven
joined the Group as a non-executive
director.

RZZTZERFNANB » KRAA MK
BHER (FLA) BRARZHMELRR
Aranda Investments Pte. Ltd. }& Tiger
Global L.P.Z 17 K fid # 200,600,000 &%
D -

RZZETZRFN\ANR  BEBLE
MBAEEREFERTES -

NOVEMBER +— A

The Company issued US$350 million 8.125%
guaranteed senior notes which are listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange.

On 28th November 2005, Mr. Hu Yongmin
joined the Group as a non-executive director.
7R} B %17 350,000,000 37T 8.125 2 (R 7% &
ERE  ZEBRIIER S LT o
R-ZZTRAE+—A=+/N\R  #HBEHELE
MBEREEREIFENTES -

FEAXEOE

SEPTEMBER /1 H

On 13th September 2005, Ms. Chen
Xiaohong joined the Group as a non-
executive director.

RZZEZRAFHLA+=R0 " BRIt .
MBAREBETIHRTES - meters.

DECEMBER +— A

The Group entered
agreements to further acquire land banks
in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Tianjin with a
total GFA of approximately 847,000 square

AEBERILZEHE  E—THERE

M~ BB RRFAEEmMEL A 847,000

FHARZ LM

into various

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M %R =

YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER

HEt+-_A=1t—HIFE

2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BEFT
Turnover EER 2,394,115 2,511,630 3,973,184 6,133,894
Profit before taxation R 75 A i 466,172 302,761 816,146 1,812,627
Taxation I (183,882) (101,192) (298,338) (611,446)
Profit for the year FREREA 282,290 201,569 517,808 1,201,181
Minority interests DB R (38,950) (32,664) (85,023) 16,142
Profit attributable to AR 5 P 1 5 A
shareholders 243,340 168,905 432,785 1,217,323
Earnings per share BREM
- Basic —EXK HK24 cents /81l HK17 cents /81l HK43 cents &l  HK113 cents &1L
- Diluted -#E HK24 cents &l HK17 cents &fll  HK43 cents Bl HK113 cents Al
Dividends per share BREE HK4 cents &1l HK5 cents /&1l HK9 cents /& {ll HK33.95 cents &1l
Net assets value per share ~ HREEFE HK$2.89 & 7T HK$3.13 BT HK$3.32 BT HK$4.75 B T

%
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8
=
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~
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b=

Chu Mang Yee K&k

Chairman =&

Beijing Regal Court
IR HIT 7 =

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual results of
Hopson Development Holdings Limited ("Hopson” or the

"Company”) for the year ended 31st December 2005.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31st December 2005, the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) reported an
increase of HK$785 million in the audited consolidated profit
attributable to shareholders to HK$1,217 million. Earnings per
share grew by 162% over 2004 to HK113cents. Total equity
increased by 73% to HK$5,765 million. Net assets per share
amounted to HK$4.75, representing an increase of 43% as
compared to 31st December 2004. The return on total equity was
21%.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
T R R &

ooking ahead, the Group will grasp the opportunities
from the rapid economic growth in the PRC

as well as the consolidation of the property sector. It will
continue to develop projects with high profitability and
explore new business models to raise its business to a new

height and dimension.

fﬁﬁﬂ_};}z NS B AR R P B A O e iR 4 R N
]j METRER LR 2K

EN2ERB REREHEHRN - EEEE
BHEN G KFIER

BETZRERBEARES

EARARZLEARERERAT (44
B & [ARA]) BE-TTAF+-A=
+— B FENRFLETRIORE - bt
L -

UpGE S
AREEBE_TTRF+_A=+—HILHF
E AR REMBAR (5FE [AEE] =
[ E]) 2B ZGEERREGEEFIEINEE
785,000,000 Jt Z /& % 1,217,000,000 7T ° &%
BFBE 1M KT HFEIMN 162% °
TS AR N E B ¥ 5,765,000,000 7T ¢ K
73% c BRFEESK 4I5S BR_BZTNF
ToAZT—BIEMNA3%  HRRELRERA
21% °

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK24.2 cents per share for the year ended 31st
December 2005. Together with the interim dividend of HK9.75
cents per share, the total dividend payout per share for the year
was HK33.95 cents, representing a 277% increase as compared to
HK? cents in 2004.

MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT

In 2005, China’s economy was robust and continued to grow
vigorously. According to the preliminary statistics of the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the GDP in 2005 grew by 9.9% over
that of 2004 to more than RMB18,000 billion. Excluding the pricing
factor, the annual average disposable income of urban and rural
residents per capita, had rose by 9.6% over that of 2004 to
RMB10,493, and 1.9% higher than the previous year, which
reflected a positive outlook of the PRC economy. For the property
development sector, the PRC government introduced a series of
macroeconomic austerity measures in 2005, including prohibition
in land speculation, restriction on transfers of unfinished
properties, tightening of bank credit and increase in mortgage
rates, which were aimed to curb speculative activities in a number
of cities with overheated property activities while sustaining and
supporting normal and reasonable housing needs of the general
public. Those measures were effectively implemented, as
evidenced from the slow down in investment in the sector,
increase in property prices and speculative activities. In addition,
the increasingly attractive Renminbi assets under anticipated
Renminbi appreciations, coupled with China’s commitments of
opening the banking sector in 2006, generated a greater demand

from overseas investors.

B
EERRARBBE _TTRFT - A=1—
A& RSB 4.2 ERE
EEZARHRESR975BI - 2FREER
33.9578 il - ¥ 2004 FH IR B 98 L1 N
277% °

IS A SRR

—TERFPEKLERR  #ERFSEE
R’ - BHBEBERSFABOLHRFG  —TTRF
BALTEREBEARB18ERET =%
TMFERII%  EFWHER AT A XA
WABARK 10,493 7T HIBREREER L=
TEMFIER 9.6% @ EIELL FFIRS 1.9% -
FHRATBEKLEDNAREBLY - WEHETEERS
H - —ZETRFPEBFEEED T RIEE
AR - BRE— bFka’J\ - [RBIFE
& MERTEE BSBEEXNEE - &
Bl B R ERE %lJ*B DWHHIRHIEER
FHEBRAR  RAFFHMEEEEARIL
CREMBEEXF R ZERABRBEHRBRIK
CBEREMEREEREE  BEERER
C BHEDIETORD o I - REIEGER =
%5/\¢1ﬁ%ﬁ5&$§ﬁ¥ TR ARBER
DESARBEER ARSI N - K< HEH
REEELERNFEL -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE®R%E

Guangzhou

Guangzhou is a district, where most of the Group's property
developments are located and the property market has always
been stable, on a whole not too adversely affected by the
austerity measures. In 2005, the commodity properties in
Guangzhou recorded a total transaction amount of RMB60.834
billion, representing an 8.61% increase over that of 2004 while
10.8% increase in terms of property prices. As we anticipate
shortage of land supply and increase in demand for properties,
there are upsides for further increase in prices. As a result of a
number of macroeconomic factors, the competition in the sector
was further heightened, while the market was further segmented
into two extremes, with branded developers further focused on
the top-end of the market. Given the Group has been focusing
on the mid-to high ends of the market, it has accumulated
substantial experience in this segment and is in an advantageous

position to face the onslaught competition.

Beijing

In 2005, after the implementation of a series of austerity measures
by various ministries of the State including land, credit, taxation
and property sales management, the Beijing property market
went through a short term consolidation period of increase in
property prices but decrease in transacted areas, with a 19.2%
increase in average selling prices and a 18.7% decrease in pre-
sales of transacted areas. As a result of these factors, the launch
of a number of residential projects were postponed, thereby

increasing the supply in 2006. As revealed from a survey

M
EAAEEBREEERZHNEMNLE - B
HETT 5 MR ERRE - REATERREEY
RERBZNEARTE - _ETREEMNET
HREAREEARE 608348 k=TT
UFE LA 8.61% » MEAMETEEBHL-FTE
M4 3K 10.8% - FEFBHAME M BRR « MEF K
EROTET BEKE— LA SELRE
A=REFHENISHRFERUZ - MHEMN
WMoy kMEL  MEEREATESEESM
NmEERMmME c AEE-—EURABEH SH
MERT  CRBLEEMHRELER  BmGE
—EMED  ENBRAENRT -

R

R-ZTHF  KEARZHZEEN—FRIE
i FE - B FHEHEEEESFER
VRE  ERMNEEHEMSE A HERE
MEMALREFEREREEHMEEEFHE
REL ER19.2% @ BmEEMEREEXRE
BRI T 18.7% » X FREFE - #0E
TEBLEEELTS > Ate —FTRNFaH
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conducted by a professional research institute, over two thirds of
the property buyers in Beijing were for own-use purposes. As
such, housing demand is expected to grow as well as the price.
Meanwhile, with gradual completion of the Olympics facilities
and the associated infrastructures and the extensive promotion
of the Olympic theme, it will further fuel the housing demand
from overseas buyers, for both investment or own-use purposes.
On the whole, the property market in Beijing will grow steadily in
anticipation of a sustainable strong demand for properties.

Shanghai

Owing to recent excessive increase in property prices in Shanghai
as compared to those of other cities, the Shanghai market was
particularly affected by the measures introduced in the year. From
a longer term perspective, the Shanghai economy is expected to
be strong, with its residents’ disposable income per capita to
remain double digit growth. In addition, with relatively large scale
of resettlements as supported by the Shanghai mayor’s
commitments of demolishing dangerous buildings of 4,000,000
square meters in old districts from 2006 and 2010, it will further
create demand for housing. Currently it is the demand from end-

users reviving the depressed property market.

Tianjin

The Tianjin market experienced a steady growth in 2005, with a
rise in average selling price for commodity housing as compared
to that in 2004. Driven by an improved urban environment and
image, similar to the Beijing market, the property market in Tianjin
performed very well. Following the Pearl River Delta and the
Yangtze River Delta, the Huanbohai zone will become the next
focus for economic growth in China. The inclusion of the
development of the Binhai New District of Tianjin as part of the
national development strategy by the Central Government will
provide tremendous opportunities for the long-term growth of
Tianjin, as well as the economic prosperity of the Huanbohai
zone. Being the hub of the economic zone, the profile of the city
will be further enhanced, thus attracting more investments from
overseas investors. Further, the resettlement and urban planning
will also create demand for housing and we are therefore

optimistic of the outlook of the property market in Tianjin.

WS REEFBLRERDEG Lk - BEERE
BEEREERRENE L THRIAR REB RN
BAHE bEE-PHBNSIETBEN
BREXBENBEF K - KEME - FHEFHL
ROEEMHERATRERY - WETSKZH
RELEH -
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NFH - -ZFHE LEHFRKRI0E8FH
KWERERE  AILKREFLZEXF R - B
Al BB ERRIEFESHENNEDEE
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FOHEERL —TTMFRMA LT - BEER
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DEVELOPMENT OF PRC PROPERTY SECTOR

The sustainable economic growth in China provides a solid
foundation for long-term growth of the property sector. Though
a series of macroeconomic austerity measures initiated a change
in the market expectation in the short run, yet effective
implementation of such measures in the long run will be
conducive for a healthy and long lasting development of the
property market. Larger property developers with branding will
have access to more resources in light of more regulated land
supply and credit tightening policies, while medium and small
property developers will be faced with a more challenging
operating environment with the market shares more polarized
between these developers. Large developers with branding will
have an edge in the new round of competition and the Group is
confident to excel and to grasp more opportunities. Competent
counterparties will no doubt enjoy more cutting edges under a
new round of challenges in the property market and the Group is
confident of capturing more development opportunities through
market competition and hence the elimination of inefficient

players.

PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

Given the imminent hosting of the Asian Games in Guangzhou in
2009, the forthcoming Olympics in Beijing in 2008 and the World
Expo in Shanghai in 2010, where the Group core operating areas
are located, namely Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai, the
property market in these cities will continue to be prosperous in
the coming years. While these cities remain the focus of
development of the Group, the Group will also explore new cities
with potentials. In addition to the existing projects, the Group
plans to pre-sell the Hopson International New City, Beijing
International Garden, the Sheshan Donziyuan Project, the
Zhaoxiang Town Project and Guangzhou Huadu Hongbenggang
Reservoir project. Projects in Guangzhou, Beijing and Shanghai
will remain the three major profit contributors in the coming years.
Looking ahead, the Group will grasp the opportunities from the
rapid economic growth in the PRC as well as the consolidation of
the property sector. It will continue to develop projects with high
profitability and explore new business models, to raise its

business to a new height and dimension.

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong: 13th April 2006
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S REPORT
T 5 A K8 B $% &

@ uring the year, the Group strived to develop mid-to-high
end projects and had taken a pragmatic approach to

deliver "products with premium quality". Not only the projects
were well-received and commended by the industry, the Group

also achieved a record-breaking performance for the year.

A AEBRDBEREE - BE [EEEm]
XNk
ENEE 28 - EIE T ELF = EE

B BERERPSIEEE  BZRE

Business Review

Property Development Business

In 2005, the overall property market was inevitably affected by
the austerity measures with a lacklustre sentiment. Despite under
such a difficult operating environment, the Group achieved
outstanding results by taking a pragmatic approach to deliver

“products with premium quality”.

In Guangzhou, in consequence of the austerity measures, the
approval of land supply was more stringent and the launch of a
number of new developments was postponed, resulting in a
smaller supply and an increase in property prices. The Group
continued to market its existing projects including Huajing New
City, Gallopade Park — South Court, Regal Riviera, Regal Palace,
Pleasant View Garden and Huanan New City. In addition, four
large new property projects, namely Yijing Huayuan in proximity
of core urban centre, Yunshan Xijing in peripheral of the scenic
zone of Baiyuan Mountain, Regal Riviera Villa in villa district and
Regal Riviera Bay in new town centre of Huizhou, were launched
in 2005. With locations of the above projects in the core areas of
urban development, making them the leading mid-to-high end
developments in their respective districts, these projects were
well-received and commended by the buyers and the industry.
By and large, the Group’s property business in Guangzhou
experienced a steady growth, and the selling prices of our
projects recorded a significant increase driven by the improved

pricing for the overall market.

Wu Jiesi BVEER
Chief Executive Officer 1T,
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S REPORT EBEZEAKERE

In Beijing, projects developed by the Group included Fresh IR AEEMAEZEE BFERIAMNK
Life Garden, Regal Court and Citta Eterna. Benefiting from B HITRNETRE HEBARKXE
the maturity, the scale and the positioning of these projects, REMEEB NERKARE - REREML - M
coupled with the on-going delivery of completed units, the ETEIBEBAENK - AEEEHBEENILR
Group expects to continue to achieve strong sales in the TIHEZTRDHE o

Beijing market.

As for Shanghai and Tianjin, through extensive marketing, the FEEREFE AEEEEZEE /LA
Group established branding for Shanghai Hopson Town and BEMBRRBRBHRRELIER - E1EMH
Tianjin Jingjin New Town. Overall, the markets there, and T EBRRERAFE 2 REABERY
Shanghai in particular, were affected by the austerity measures 2 MBENEXRS  EFLUEEEE -
resulting in a lacklustre sentiment. Yet, the Group's A< S5 B P R 3% 2 10 B L T35 RIR IR TR FE
development projects performed relatively well and still WMEEE - EANEE LW BIRATREAR
managed to contribute positively to the financial positions of B o

the Group under such a condition.

The operational performance of the Group was remarkable AEBAFHEERREBEE BHE_TTRF
this year. For the year ended 31st December 2005, the Group TZA=+—HILEE  AKENEEHES
achieved a record-breaking turnover of HK$6,134 million, T 50 8% B9 78 B8 6,134,000,000 7C + 8 & F 1 0
increased by 54% as compared to that of last year. The 54% > TRIITRERGIRTIEEZBEE MF
following tables show the turnover of major projects and BE D2 EXBWT :

businesses by region:

Turnover in 2005 Turnover in 2004

“EThFEER —TTMEEER
HKS$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEEET L B1(%) BEBT (%)
Guangdong BEx 2,891 47 2,291 57
Beijing t= 2,067 34 1,666 42
Shanghai g 616 10 - -
Tianjin RE 558 9 - -
Others A 2 - 16 1
6,134 100 3,973 100

Tianjin Others
2005 i 2004 s
Shanghai
L&
Guangdong
R
Guangdong
R
Beijing
bR
Beijing
Bl

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 g R E®mERE 2

o



B ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F #

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT EEHKERSE

Turnover in 2005 Turnover in 2004

“ERAFEXE —TTMELEER
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEEET L 5(%) BEET (%)
Beijing Regal Court ERKIFS 1,255 20 555 14
Gallopade Park — BsitE -t 782 13 594 15

South Court

Pleasant View Garden BREE 776 13 486 12
Beijing Citta Eterna trRESRE 617 10 529 13
Shanghai Hopson Town EBEERH 616 10 - -
Tianjin Jingjin New Town RER R 548 9 - -
Huajing New City ERM 516 8 496 12
Others Hity 1,024 17 1,313 34
6,134 100 3,973 100

TURNOVER BY MAJOR PROJECTS #ZEXEIHE &l & X FELLFla T

2005 Others Beijigg Regal 2004 Beijing Regal
- LRRTHR e S FATRR

Huajing
Negpity Gallopade
ERIM Gallopade Park — South Court
Park — South Court BEEE-mR
SRIEE -
Tianjin Jingjin
New Town
KB
Pleasant
.P\easant B View Garden
Shanghai View Garden Huajing BE2RE
Hopson Town LR R [E N‘e;v%%g
A = :
LR Beijing Citta Beijing Citta
Eterna Eterna
ItRESZE It RESZE
Turnover in 2005 Turnover in 2004
“EROFERE —TTMEERE
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEET L B1(%) HEET £ 61(%)
Property development MEERE 5,991 98 3,855 97
Property investment MERE 47 1 45 1
Property management MEERE 9 1 73 2
6,134 100 3,973 100
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Completion Schedules

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT E=E

ST &

48 4% 18 4R &

Saleable area (sq.m.) to be

completed ended
BEUATFHAREIZ
AMEEEmE (FHXK)

Group’s Interests/ 2008
Ultimate interests 2006 2007 or after
to be acquired —EENE
rEEERE S "BEAFE ZEBTLHF o U #&
RAWERER
Huajing New City ST 100.00% 50,435 95,273 -
Gallopade Park — Phase 4 BRTEE — M 95.00% - - 439,529
Gallopade Park — South Court A SEE —mE L 95.00% 19,311 39,118 163,726
Huanan New City T 99.00% 100,558 119,620 1,986,079
Pleasant View Garden RERE 94.98% 131,703 32,699 792,341
Regal Palace WRERD 100.00% 67,187 - -
Regal Riviera wIiwg 69.50% 99,632 153,835 393,346
Regal Riviera Villa R 100.00% 46,980 64,071 -
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay HMNHRE 100.00% 64,648 209,228 318,930
Yijing Huayuan FE =D 100.00% 56,776 119,043 -
Yunshan Xijing BLER 70.00% 16,244 95,010 28,686
Guangzhou Hopson BINEERRKRE 100.00% - - 101,485
International Building
Hopson International New City & A BIB #73 100.00% 35,326 130,000 1,103,796
Guangzhou Huadu BINTEHBAL AR fE/KEIRE  100.00% - 40,000 217,467
Hongbenggang Reservoir
Project
Guangzhou Jiahe & N 52 A0 7 100.00% - - 178,983
Commercial City
Beijing Fresh Life Garden b RERT AN K E 100.00% 57,002 65,296 -
Beijing Citta Eterna IRESFE 100.00% 45,476 136,978 47,264
Beijing Regal Court ERKRIFSR 100.00% 171,328 73,798 416,351
Hopson International Garden AEBBIEE 100.00% 26,962 118,349 37,738
Tianjin Jingjin New Town KRBT 70.00% 313,468 200,000 2,626,289
Hyatt Regency Hotel LB JE ORI 70.00% 143,106 - -
Jingjin City
Tianjin Beiangiao Project REILZIBIER 90.00% - - 165,500
Shanghai Hopson Town EBEERH 100.00% 118,034 10,932 352,738
Shanghai Binjiang Court Babis- AR 100.00% - - 453,265
Shanghai Hopson International _E/8& B KE 50.00% - 82,671 -
Building
Shanghai Sheshan EERILEEEIEE 100.00% - 67,435 41,803
Dongzhiyuan project
Shanghai Zhaoxiang BB EIESR 100.00% 20,797 70,660 25,450
Town project
1,584,973 1,924,016 9,890,766
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED AHBEEEAR QA
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Property management is one of the core businesses of the
Group. Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited
("Guangdong Esteem”), with State Grade 1 qualification, is
devoted to provide comprehensive, professional and people-
oriented management services to the residents. The business
motto of Guangdong Esteem is “People as core and creation
of Quality Life”. It makes the best endeavours to provide a
healthy and comfortable environment and its service has been
well-received by the community. This is evidenced by its
accreditation as a trusted property management corporate in
China in 2005. The Group is undertaking an upgrade in its
information system in order to raise the quality of customer

service.

The main task of 2006 is to raise the satisfaction levels of our
customers. In order to raise their satisfaction levels, the Group
endeavours to provide comprehensive, pro-active, interactive
and organised services to our property buyers, through such

attentive services to create a comfortable community.

PROPERTY RENTAL

Investment property portfolio of the Group is principally
composed of retail shops and carparks in Guangzhou. Annual
rental income of approximately HK$47 million was recorded
in 2005, representing only a small portion of the Group's
turnover. In order to enhance the stability of income, the
Group will make further investments in investment properties.
The construction of Guangzhou Hopson International Building
is underway with an expected completion in 2008, and the
commercial project of Gallopade Park — Phase 4 is undergoing

active preparations.

BIRE

MEER
MEEBRAREOROEB 2 — - AEEB
THERESWERBARAR (BR—RE
BB IESDE]) REXREFPREHEE2S
I - BE( - AMEHYMEBEERSE - BRRY
ERA TAARAE - AlERELE] WERE
BOBORARETAERRFENERRSE
HEERGAELEERARE - —TTAFH
RYERTHEAYEERRECENARESR
B REBEAREERRS  AEARFR
TEIKAE -

AEE _ZTREFNEHIEZNNRENEE
BEFHOMEE RIESTEPZWMEE  SER
HaeRt =3t - Bt - ABEORY
BBERLARY - EEBEHFOMLE -

LGEE

AEEBAMEENREMEG BUNEMEE
ZEEREML - —TTRFNESRALEE
470087 - B EAARNEEZRE/ NG
RIESBAZEEN  AEEKE-FPHIRE
MEELRE - BMNAEBEBRAENREETIR
HETH BAFTTNEFEZT - MEFE
— MEHNERAB TRESREEET -
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’'S REPORT EBEZEAKERE

HOTEL OPERATIONS

The Group currently has three hotels, namely Regal Riviera Hotel
in Guangzhou, Beijing Plaza Royale Hotel in Beijing and Hyatt
Regency Hotel Jingjin City in Baodi, Tianjin.

Regal Riviera Hotel in Guangzhou, which commenced operations
in mid 2004, reported a turnover of HK$21 million for the year
with an average occupancy rate of 56%. Beijing Plaza Royale
Hotel, commenced operations in July 2005, with an average
occupancy rate of 28% for the second half of the year. In addition,
with the constructions of the main structures of Hyatt Regency
Hotel Jingjin City in the final stage, it is planned to have its
opening by the end of 2006.

In anticipation of an increasingly buoyant economic growth in
China and the imminent Beijing Olympics, the Group'’s hotels will

be well positioned to achieve better performance.

JEIE 75

B 7 S B L S = T 2 HE 52 B M 9
TRREE - LRF R FIEEE AR KR
B 0 YL BB I FORFTAL -

BMKIFRBER _ZTNFHAE - AR
FEEEBREK 21008 FTHAEXRE
56% ° ML RFTREFEEETR _EZRFL
AEXRE  ETHFAERFHH28% ° 5
S+ (LA RO T I B S B RUR R A X 58
EREEAREREER  BHER _TTRFEA
GE

T Fp B A N 3 R DA R FE AL R BB AT R Y
FET  AKREBETNEENKE BRI ETH
HE e

Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel
BN T 75 O8I

Beijing Plaza Royale Hotel
R R FELGE

Hyatt Regency Hotel Jingjin City
BB JE 5ORFT

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 g R E®mERE 2

o



20

B ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F #

MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT EEHKERSE

REVIEW OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In order to rationalize and improve its capital structure, the Group
executed a number of financing transactions to raise funds from
the international capital market for business expansion and

working capital purposes.
(1) lIssue of 200,600,000 new shares to strategic investors

On 9th August 2005, the Company entered into Subscription
Agreements with two strategic investors, Aranda Investments
Pte. Ltd. ("Aranda”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and Tiger Global L.P.
("Tiger”), a fund managed by Tiger Global Management,
LLC. Pursuant to the Subscription Agreements, the Company
issued and each of Aranda and Tiger subscribed for
100,300,000 new shares (being 200,600,000 new shares in
aggregate) at a price per share of HK$4.875. The net
proceeds of the placement of shares were approximately
HK$957 million, and were used for repayment of a portion of
the Company’s existing debt, general working capital and

expansion of the PRC property business.

(2) Issue of US$350 million 8'/s% senior notes
The Company issued 8'/s% senior notes comprising principal
amounts of US$300 million and US$50 million at an issue
price of 100% and 100.816% on 9th and 15th November of
2005 respectively (equivalent to HK$2.73 billion in
aggregate). These notes are listed on the Singapore
Exchange and bear interest from 9th November 2005 at a
fixed rate of 8'/s% per annum. Accrued interest is payable
semi-annually in arrear on 9th May and 9th November of
each year commencing on 9th May 2006. The issue of these
notes is beneficial to the Group since it allows the Group to
obtain long-term financing from international investors and

to improve its capital structure.

(3) Credit Rating
The Group and the US$350 million 8'/s% senior notes have
been rated “Bal” by Moody's Investors Services Inc. and
"BB+" by Standard and Poor’s Rating Services. Up to now,
such ratings are the highest credit ratings obtained amongst
PRC non-state owned enterprises, reflecting the financially

sound status of the Group.

Ei= )
REERRBER/AEIETHRE AEER
BREATSETZERSEEES  ANE
REBALBIE-—REEES -

(1)

17 200,600,000 A& A% T KBS M 12 &
=1
RZZEZERFNANBARR R K
4% & #& — Aranda Investments Pte. Ltd.
([Arandal) CAFBHIER (AA) ARA
AMEEE2EFAE) K Tiger Global
L.P.([ Tiger]) (Tiger Global
Management, LLCEIEZ &%) IR
ez o RBRBEHZE - A2AAFREE
487570 2 B EITHAX - M Aranda &
TigerBl A RlRAEXRZERESERE
100,300,000 % 17 (& 3 200,600,000
BFAR) - ERERMDATERIEFEEE
957 18T  EREBERNEE  HIREA
B —REEESLBERFEAMERE
7 o

1T 35183 TT 8'/:% B A RE
KABDRIR_EERF+—ALEEKT
—AT+ThBXBKZETE 0% K
100.816% 317" 49 3 {EE T & 5,000 &
EL (EHEEREE 273ET) &
8'/s % BT - WRERFNER S
W YR -_EERF+— ANBEKE
EFEMEL/s%:TE - REFFEEZTT
NERANBRREFEFNRANART—
ANBBEEIN—K - EBERE %
TEBHEEAERERN  AFAEEAF
ERREERSRARME  WEHEKREE
1 o

EEFR

REBLANHE 358K 8'/:% BEREY
ESBBREERBARLFEEBRTR
RBABNEEFRDANA [Ball ik
[BB+] & - WEFRARBEZBAARILE
MIEEECEREHREZEENR kI
R EH BOGROR IR AE -
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LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT

The Group's land reserve is substantial. As at 31st December
2005, the Group's land bank amounted to a GFA of 12.95 million
square meters. The mangement is confident that such land bank
is sufficient for the Group's development needs in the coming 5

to 7 years.

The following analysis of the Group's land bank (inclusive of Regal
Riviera in Guangzhou) by GFA is based on its internal records

only without independent verification:

USAGE AND LOCATION

b RIS
AREHEEREANLEE - R-TTRET
“A=T-B ARBELiEHREERE
1295 BT K - EREMIE - B IBHE
BRAOAEERRAELFEE LM -

T AREE LGRS (BEEMHL
BER)  RREEBL B ABEE T
5 MEBIRE

PR B it [

Saleable area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER (B8FHXK)

Guangdong Beijing Tianjin  Shanghai Total

BR = 2 b5 et

Residential F=E 5.60 1.12 3.16 0.42 10.30
Shopping arcade 7 4 0.85 0.09 0.08 0.03 1.05
Office i /NES 0.07 - - 0.06 0.13
Carparks (E== 1.01 0.14 - 0.07 1.22
Hotels B S 0.07 0.04 0.14 - 0.25
Total EEt 7.60 1.39 3.38 0.58 12.95

LAND BANK BY USAGE #Z A% &5 Lt # &L Hlan T~

Others
HAt

2005

Carparks
FES

Shopping arcade
4%

Residential
F=E

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A4 alE &£ ®E A5E 2 7
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DEVELOPMENT STATUS AND LOCATION BRAR D M &R

Saleable area (million sq.m.)

AHEEER (BBF¥LXK)

Guangdong Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Total

BER 5178 P-4 =3 st

Completed properties =S8 ES 0.52 0.19 0.10 0.02 0.83
Properties under development & H 1% 1.69 0.56 0.46 0.23 2.94
Properties to be developed  FERWE 5.39 0.64 2.82 0.33 9.18
Total @st 7.60 1.39 3.38 0.58 12.95

LAND BANK BY LOCATION it B &5 - b tbFlan T~

Shanghai £/8
2005
Tianjin
PN
Guangdong
BR
Beijing
R
DEVELOPMENT STATUS AND USAGE FRAL N ik
Saleable area (million sq.m.)
AHHEEER (BBYAK)
Shopping
Residential arcade Office  Carparks Hotels Total
FE Gk WAE FES BIE Bt
Completed properties =S8 2ES 0.26 0.26 - 0.24 0.07 0.83
Properties under development & H 1% 2.28 0.1 0.13 0.28 0.14 2.94
Properties to be developed ~ #FE B 7.76 0.68 - 0.70 0.04 9.18
Total st 10.30 1.05 0.13 1.22 0.25 12.95

LAND BANK BY DEVELOPMENT STATUS 22 Rk n 82 + it f# @k Flan T~

2005 Completed properties B 7% ¥ %

Properties under
development

BRTOE

Properties to be
developed
(S EYES

22 HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 8lE = ® 5B 2
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TITLE STATUS AND LOCATION

FTB AR e b Bh

Saleab

le area (million sgq.m.)

AHREERR (BBFAXK)

Guangdong Beijing Tianjin  Shanghai Total
B=R = P= tE st
Land use rights certificates B E{S i A
and construction works BRERTIRE
planning permits REIFFRIED
obtained 2.40 0.53 0.45 0.28 3.66
Land use rights certificates B HS b {F &
obtained but without BARREERT
construction works RREIFFAE
planning permits @ 1.44 0.40 0.97 0.30 3.11
Construction land use EHRGER A
planning permits REFFaIE OO
obtained ®® 2.00 0.31 1.91 - 4.22
Grant of major approvals ~ BfFEZ# XK
and certificates not yet BEZHH @O
obtained W ® 1.76 0.15 0.05 - 1.96
Total 1z 7.60 1.39 3.38 0.58 12.95

—
N

)

Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning

permits have been granted.

Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the
appertaining construction works planning permits have not yet been
obtained.

Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted.
However, the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained
and will only be secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer

contracts and payment of land premium.

Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g.
obtainment of the construction land use planning permits, and the
execution of land transfer contracts) and the payment of the
appertaining land premium will the land use rights certificates be
obtained.

For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 20 and

36 to the accounts.

Though the Group’s land reserve is already substantial, it

continues to scout for acquisition targets. The following table
sets out the new additions to the Group’s landbank in 2005:—

wE
2005

EERERNIIMERERRRIEZREETA

sz
Az °

EEEARANLHERABERBIERTESR
EIFFAI B ARERAG ©

EEREBNRRMLBREIFTAE - A - &
AERGEENLHERE  MABIHERZE
RekEETTHERSRALIN AR HZE
BEREE -

T EREER TR DR EIEF (MESR
FAMRIFAERBTLHERAR) kX
NEMLIMEES 2R &S -

THHEE 2 NRRE2MEE T 20 &
36 °

EHERAN LG  AEEDTES
BT ESEEEAR - U TRIIAKER
FRIL A L -
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Group's interests/
ultimate interests

Status as at
31st December

to be acquired Saleable Area GFA 2005
Project Name AEE ER Project location (sq.m.) (sq.m.) BZ 2005 F
HEE® BRKERES R THEERR BEER  12A31HMR
(FHK) (FHK)
Hopson International 100% South of International Trade 183,049 201,323 acquisition
Garden Bridge of Chaoyang District, completed
B EBBRIEE inside East 3rd Ring Road, Beijing TR O
ERTRGREZRER  R=BRA
Hopson International 100% Yaxin Gardens, Lianhe Village, 1,269,122 1,275,122 acquisition
New City Shuikou Town, Huizhou completed
& AR BINK O AR A 3 EE TRk O
Shanghai Hopson International 50% Lane 9 Block 5, Meiyuan Road, 82,671 86,947 acquisition
Building Pudong New District, Shanghai completed
FAREBERAE TERRFEEETENSRE TR O
Guangzhou Jiahe 100% The West of Guangzhou Road 178,983 178,983 Cooperative
Commercial City South, Zhuhai District, Guangzhou agreement
BMENEER (The Land Opposite to Xinhoude signed @
Gardening Company) REAEHZ @
NG TR R B M A8 F A
TEERERARAHEER
Shanghai Zhaoxiang 100% New City Area, Zhaoxiang Town, 116,907 118,639 cooperative
Town project Qingpu, Shanghai agreement
HaHESRER TEFRESRMNE signed @
ZEREHS @
Shanghai Sheshan 100% Land Parcel No.9 and No. 10, 109,238 110,238 cooperative
Dongziyuan project Sheshan National Holiday agreement
FEALEEEER Resort, Shanghai signed @
FERIBRKER RRNS - BEREGE @
15 3
Guangzhou Huadu 100% Land Parcels surrounding 257,467 273,467 cooperative
Hongbenggang Hongbenggang Reservoir at the agreement
Reservoir project north of Tourist Thoroughfare signed @
BEMNFEE A Bk EIE B in Front of Mountain, Shiling Town, BEAERE @
Huadu District, Guangzhou
BMEBEMEELARKEAE
BA b T AT AR 7K 4 i b 351
Tianjin Beiangjiao Project 90% Land Parcel at the north of 165,500 165,500 cooperative
REMILLRHIER Beiangiao, Heping District, agreement
Tianjin signed @
RETMTRIL LB AL R BEREGS @
2,362,937 2,410,219
Notes: i
1 Included as land bank as at 31st December 2005 (1M EAEBIEAE2005F 12 A 31 Bz L f#EE
2) Excluded from land bank as at 31st December 2005 2 REIETE 20054 12 A 31 Bz L fFE

Shanghai Zhaoxiang Town project
LE#EEHER

1

—

Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan project

AR R EIRE

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & £ 8l R &
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The management believes sound corporate governance is the
key to increase corporate transparency, to have effective risk
management and to enhance shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance report of the Group is detailed on pages 63 to 73 of

the annual report.

To enhance our corporate governance, Mr. Shafran Steven (“Mr.
Shafran”), Ms. Chen Xiaohong (“Ms. Chen”) and Mr. Hu Yongmin
(“Mr. Hu") were appointed as non-executive directors in 2005.
Mr.Shafran has substantial experience in capital market and
investment. He was previously a managing director and a partner
of Goldman Sachs. His appointment will enhance the Group's
governance by bringing extensive financing expertise. Ms. Chen
and Mr. Hu are representatives of Tiger and Aranda respectively,
the Group's substantial shareholders. Their appointments were
aimed at enhancing corporate governance and assuring effective
protection of the interests of the minority shareholders. In
addition to being a member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Hu is
also a member of the Audit Committee and Connected

Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee.

NOTABLE INTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

During the year, the Group was accredited with the following two

international achievements:

(1) The Group was named one of the 200 finest smaller public
companies in Asia Pacific Region by an international finance

magazine "Forbes” in October 2005.

(2) The bond issue of US$350 million senior notes of the Group
was named the "Best High Yield Bond deal of the year” by
an international finance magazine “Asiamoney” in December
2005.

The above two achievements demonstrate the Group's status

being recognised internationally.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management,
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications.
They are the cornerstones of the Company and collaborate with
the Board to achieve the outstanding results, and their
contributions will ensure the success of the Group in its future

endeavours.

Wu Jiesi

Chief Executive Director

Hong Kong, 13th April 2006

TRER
EREMAE  RENCEEARNEEERE
AHBRE - EHUNEERBARERRE

BE AEEFAZCEBELRRESTRASE
WE63IFTIE -

RINBEEXERER  AEBRR_ZTLFH
N mRB s ([MEE]) - BRIt
(IBR&Zt]) RBBEHSE ([MA%E]) MER
FRITES - MEEHBLEENELRT IS R
BRS CESREECEBEERAEA
MBERAEESEREREZZMEZEMS - I
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G U A N G Z H O U 9 Tianhe Railway Station Guangz};ilﬂj#ggeﬁ?ce City

PNEYES o
= , |\ BAIYUN
E AEE H
Tianhe Sport TLANHE (4)
Centrlt)e RAE
YUEXIU BB

Gallopade Park — South Court HEE
BERE-E DONGSHAN 1]

Pleasant View Garden &RZ[E Om__RLE
Huanan New City R —

Huajing New City ZES¥73 Pearl River 3T
Regal Riviera HIFH R
Regal Palace F8E%

Guangzhou International
Convention and Exhibition Centre

Yijing Huayuan EES 50 HAIZHU ENEEEEREHY
Guangzhou Hopson International Building i \
EMA B AE BHE @
9. Yunshan Xijing ZILES PANYU ©
10. Regal Riviera Villa 7SI EEE Guangzhou
Metro Line No.3 University City
Metro Line No.3 #h#i = 4% =R MR
Metro Line No5 i E3i4E NN
e Metroline System i T #i5% A 4 0

Railway &%

1. Gallopade Park - South Court

- 5 = 4+ _ 4
it BRERRE-mEE
) Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
0O BMNRTER ILKE (HEH 95% &)
oK
5 Square meters
) (R Construction completed 87,159
HE B LA R ) 52 T Construction to be completed

Z - ZZTREF in 2006 19,311
< - 22 +F . in 2007 39,118
S — ZZZ)\FHIAE in 2008 and after 163,726
() EC:;; +:F] Land bank as at

=+—BZtHf##E  31st December 2005 309,314

GALLOTAGE FARE

2. Pleasant View Garden

o St =
)| Guangzhou Avenue, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
e BEMNESHREBMNAERAE (HFH 94.98% )
Tk
T Square meters
(,\DI Construction completed 44,478
Construction to be completed

Z in 2006 131,703
< in 2007 32,699
) in 2008 and after 792,341
@) Land bank as at

31st December 2005 1,001,221

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SHEEEBRABRAD
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3. Huanan New City

g EFEEE

) Panyu District, Guangzhou (99% owned)

0o ENEBE (W74 99% Bi)

T Tk

~N Square meters

O i Construction completed 58,177
Construction to be completed

Z in 2006 100,558

< in 2007 119,620

) in 2008 and after 1,986,079

(@) Land bank as at

31st December 2005 2,264,434

4. Huaqjing New City

= =

105 Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100%
) owned)
OF M RWE L AE 1055 (HHG 100% #x)
T 75K
N Square meters
O (S Construction completed 122,138
Z R LA T ) 578 T Construction to be completed
< — ZTTRF in 2006 50,435

= L in 2007 95.273
> — —ZZ)\F=LA% in 2008 and after =
) RZZEZTRF+_H Land bank as at

=t+—HztifEE  31st December 2005 267,846

5. Regal Riviera

o L% 8

) Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (69.5% owned)

O BMNEBHREREEMKE (HH 69.5% )

T FHK

~N Square meters

Q) [REEE Construction completed 100,317
0 LA T B f) Construction to be completed

Z - —2% in 2006 99,632

< i - in 2007 153,835

) — in 2008 and after 393,346

(@) Land bank as at

31st December 2005 747,130

6. Regal Palace
FRER

1
i Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
2 (100% owned)
OF ENSHREREEMAE (FH 100% #if)
N Square meters
@) 25T Construction completed 2,358
=z 1% B8 LA T B ) 58 T Construction to be completed
< — ZTTREF in 2006 67,187

- —EZLF in 2007 =
) — ZZZN\FHLAE  in 2008 and after =
O RZZTZTRHF+=H Land bank as at

=+—RHAZztib#EE  31st December 2005 69,545

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED AEBBREBEABRAQA
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7. Yijing Huayuan
S

in 2007 119,043
in 2008 and after -

Land bank as at
31st December 2005 175,819

LS
S Dongxiaonan Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
) BENEBHRBRERE (HH 100% )

FHK
T
N Square meters
(©) L Construction completed -
= RA TR EET Construction to be completed
< 5 in 2006 56,776
)
O

||| EI

8. Guangzhou Hopson
International Building

1
s EMNS LR AE
8 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
< BMNHFSEBERE (HH 100% Ex) -
FEHK
N Square meters
O BT Construction completed -
Z HE P A TR A 58 T Construction to be completed
< — —ZITRE in 2006 -
= - BpE in 2007 -
o - =\ sk bAT% in 2008 and after 101,485
R=ZFTRF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BHztFE 31st December 2005 101,485

9. Yunshcm Xijing

- s
) Guangzhou Main Road, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
) BNEBEEEMKEL (HHF70%Em)
I Square meters
I [ Construction completed -
O % Construction to be completed
pd - in 2006 16,244
< — in 2007 95,010
) = in 2008 and after 28,686
©) ﬁ’t‘iggﬁiJr:ﬂ Land bank as at

=+—HzZz1H#EE  31st December 2005 139,940

10. Regal Riviera Villa

- =
i "'.-?-E =L
) Huanchang Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
O BMNXTERZE (#HE 100% #ER)
E Square meters
@) 2 5L Construction completed 14,905
> A TRETET Cozr&t)zuction to be completed 46,980

— in .
< — = in 2007 64,071
) - =% in 2008 and after -
©) R-ZZTZRF+_-H Land bank as at

=+ —HZLHE#E  31st December 2005 125956

28 HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A EBREBAER ARG
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P

HUIZHOU 5
aiés ’J\l\l %%&w%

. S
ENHBUF :
Huizhau Ci
. Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay Glg\fe;umelrt\)tl
eV .
. Hopson International New City _ “lhen“o
i KOBER o
&4 BB Shuikou Town
Government
112N S
90/;:& ® Airport Road -3
o8
2
>

11. Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay

zu\I)\H ;a;ﬁ' =

Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
EMTILEEXE -8 (¥H 100% ) S
TR

Square meters

2L Construction completed -
HE R LA T 58 T Construction to be completed

— —3 in 2006 64,648
— in 2007 209,228
— 2 in 2008 and after 318,930
b Land bank as at

31st December 2005 592,806

12. Hopson International New City
B EFR

Yaxin Gardens, Lianhe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou
(100% owned)
BEMNKOEBANGHREE (FHF 100% #E) P

Square meters

25w L Construction completed -
1R LA T Construction to be completed

- —=F in 2006 35,326
= = in 2007 130,000
== in 2008 and after 1,103,796
n= Land bank as at

31st December 2005 1,269,122

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED AEBBREBEABRAQA
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B E IJ I N G N. Chaoyang Rd. B85 \ p
b=

. Beijing Regal Court 1t REIFR

Ritan Park

REAE Chaoyang Rd. ¥AF5 8%

CHAOYANG

Dongsanhuanzhong Rd. . 5% 5 &8 |11 78

= e Ve L
. Beijing Citta Eterna LB EHE REHE HHE
. Beijing Fresh Life Garden Jianguomenwai St.. 2B P/ K Jianguo Rd. B H

T RHIENRE 15} i
. Hopson International Garden * ¥

BEERTEE 000 s i

SR | S i L BT
(16} ik
®
Guangqumenwai St. EZEFIFP A Guangqu Rd. EREE

13. Beijing Regal Court
EREIFR

I
e 23 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
ﬂ EERHHBEREAER=T=5 (HH 100% &)
S 5K
=z Square meters
— E?—EI Construction completed 121,574
= HE R LA T B 52 T Construction to be completed
L — ZETRF in 2006 171,328
m - 2T +F in 2007 73,798
— —ZT)\FHLAR  in 2008 and after 416,351
RZZEZTRF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BztFEE  31st December 2005 783,051

14. Beulng Fresh L|fe Garden

18 Bangzijing Village, Sanjianfang Town, Beijing (100% owned)
ERT=EEHHFHN TSR (FEH 100% &)

e

FTILEEEL I RER LS &)
Hal -1

TR TPl Al

Square meters

L TTTRIRTTRRNRTT]

Construction completed 32,253
Construction to be completed
in 2006 57,002

BEIJING 1t =

in 2007 65,296
in 2008 and after -

Land bank as at
31st December 2005 154,551

15. Beijing Citta Eterna
TtREREE

IS
a0 Gan Lu Yuan, Qingnian Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
B EtRTHEEEFREER (S 100% #:%) )
9 F 73K
= Square meters
—_ E\%I Construction completed 34,503
) # B LA T B 78 T Construction to be completed
T —- ZZTRF in 2006 45,476
m - —ZZZF in 2007 136,978
- :EZJ\EQL‘A& in 2008 and after 47,264
R-_ZEERF+— Land bank as at
=t+—H Ziﬁmﬁﬁ 31st December 2005 264,221

30 HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A 4 alR =@ AR A 7
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16. Hopson International Garden

A R
| &4 ERRIE
. 11 South of international trade bridge of Chaoyang district, inside
<8< East 3rd Ring Road, Beijing (100% owned)
- : tRTHEERERE R=ERA (#HF 100% #x)
H E . F K
£ = s N Square meters
H 3 : E Construction completed -
& 4 Construction to be completed
E — in 2006 26,962
af - in 2007 118,349
— in 2008 and after 37,738
i Land bank as at
31st December 2005 183,049

WETSTUT Ro o g SOKEEL

SHANGHA! [T
t ;\g W&

BHE
YANGPU DISTRICT

Hongkou District
OE

‘“\
& R

LSS LEm AL
. . T Jingan District Suzhou River
. Shanghai Hopson International Building BzE (L A
LEEEREBAE . B

Putuo District
Az =
& FEE

. Shanghai Hopson Town

District
BEE__—

RTE
MINHANG DISTRICT

17. Shanghai Hopson Town

o
A S A
o LA EES
— 518, Anling Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
< LEBRTEZSER 5185 (HH 100% £i)
T i 5K
@) Square meters
Z ExL Construction completed 18,892
< PR A T B e 58 T Construction to be completed
T : — ZZTRF in 2006 118,034
w — —ZETLF in 2007 10,932
— —ZZT)\FHLAR  in 2008 and after 352,738
RZZEETRAF+=-A Land bank as at
=+—HzZzLihREH  31st December 2005 500,596

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED AEBBREBEABRAQA
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18. Shanghai Hopson International Building
LEBEERBKE

Lane 9 Block 5, Meiyuan Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai (50% owned)
EEHRTEREHEIHSE (HHE50% #Ex) S

Square meters

@
_I_l
<
I
@)
Z
<
I
wn

[ Construction completed -
SR UA T B i 52 T Construction to be completed
- —Z7 in 2006 -
i in 2007 82,671
— === in 2008 and after -
R_ZEZERF+_A Land bank as at

=t— Bzt E 31st December 2005 82,671

TIANJIN
R

19. Tianjin Jingjin New Town RKETUEHIH

19. Tianjin Jingjin New Town

RIZGURHH

LR Baodi District, Tianjin (70% owned)
RETHEER (BH70% E#&)

Z 75K
— » Square meters
=
zZ BExEL Construction completed 128,879
< ﬁ TR A TR BT T Construction to be completed
— — —TERF in 2006 456,574
— E— +F in 2007 200,000

— ZTZT)\FHA%E in 2008 and after 2,626,289

R_ZEZRF+_A Land bank as at

=+—BZztif##E  31st December 2005 3,411,742

32 HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEEEBERAD A
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5%

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st

December 2005 are as follows:

H-oEE

— ==

Y/ S

- B %

FFET-A=+—HL KELRE
WEFTIMT

Approximate

Group's interest Existing use gross floor area
Location A= SEMEER BRIRZ BREEBREHER
Phases 5A, 6A, 6B, 6C and 46D H .Kq: iéﬁﬁﬁd”; 100% Commercial/retail 116,247 s%r_nk
Huajing New City R [ R LA EE 105 5% and carparklng 116,247 F 75 K
105 Zhongshan Avenue EXTESA BE/TEREEY
Tianhe District 6A ~ 6B + 6C J 6D H
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 2, Jinan Garden REAEEREEMT 90% Commercial/retail 10,374 sq.m.
South side of Zhongshan Avenue ~ KAEHR L AEHE mE/TE 10,374 F 73K
Tianhe District ERitRE_H
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1, 2 and 3 REAREEREEMT 90% Commercial/retail 24,691 sq.m.
Fairview Garden SRE B 238 5% and carparklng 24,691 F 75K
238 Xingang West Road mERRE— ZRK=H BE/TEREEY
Haizhu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1,2 and 3 PRI AREERE EMNT 95% Commercial/retail 8,807 sq.m.
Gallopade Park RABRTIABRE and carparklng 8,807 F 77 K
South side of Zhongshan Avenue ~ BASTEEE— - ZR=H BE/TEREES
Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court REAREEREEMT 100% Commercial/retail 37,628 sq.m.
East side of Longkou West Road ~ KBREABEKRA and carparking 37,628 F 75K
Tianhe District HEbE—RZH HE/TERREES
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Gallopade Park-South Court REAREEREEMNT 95% Commercial/retail 39,391 sq.m.
South side of Zhongshan Avenue ~ KA EH L REEE and carparklng 39,391 F 7K
Tianhe District BERTE M BE/TEREES
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Fairview South Court B ARE R A EMNT 70% Commercial/retail 7,934 sq.m.
212 Xingang West Road EREIETEE 212 5 and carparklng 7,934 F 75 K
Haizhu District b2 BE/TEREES
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
East area of Pleasant View Garden H B AMEEREE/NT 94.98% Commercial/retail 23,107 sg.m.
West side of Guangzhou Avenue 5@%@%%?@5@@ Fﬁ%/and carpargr;g 23,107 F 3K
Haizhu District RERERRE 7
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 1, Huanan New City REAEEREEMT 99% Commercial/retail 40,170 sg.m.
Panyu District 2B8R and carparkmg 40,170 F 73K

Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

E@HNE -8

A%/ TEREES

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED a8 F Al B
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHU Mang Yee, aged 46, is our Chairman and one of
our founders. Mr. Chu has over 20 years' experience in
trading, construction, property investment and
development. He is also a member of the China
People's Political Liaison Committee, an Honored
Citizen of Meizhou, Guangdong Province and the Vice
Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the
Development of Corporate Strategy.

XIANG Bin, aged 59, is our Deputy Chairman. Mr. Xiang
is a Chinese Career Manager and senior engineer. Mr.
Xiang was on the senior management of a public listed
company before joining the Group in February 2001.
He has over 35 years’ experience in construction and

administration management.

WU liesi, aged 54, is our Chief Executive Officer and
Managing Director. Mr. Wu holds a doctorate degree
in economics. Prior to joining us in 2005, Mr. Wu was
the president of a branch of a state-owned commercial
bank. Mr. Wu was also the Deputy Mayor of the
Shenzhen Municipal Government, the assistant to the
Governor of Guangdong Province and the chairman of
a large-scale conglomerate, specializing in
restructuring state-owned enterprises. Mr. Wu has

extensive banking and governmental experience.

TAM Lai Ling, aged 42, is our Chief Financial Officer
and Deputy Managing Director. Mr. Tam holds a Ph.D
in engineering, and graduated from the University of
Cambridge and the University of London. Prior to
joining us in 2005, Mr. Tam was a managing director of
an international investment bank, specializing in
corporate finance transactions, including mergers and
acquisitions, debt and equity financing, and debt
restructuring. Mr. Tam had also worked for
multinational companies and was responsible for their

business development and investment in the PRC.

AU Wai Kin, aged 50, is an Executive Director. Mr. Au
joined us in 1995. He is also a director of our other
member companies. Mr. Au graduated from
Zhongshan University, Guangzhou, and has over 20
years' experience in building construction, town
planning, real estate investment and property

development.

HITES

KREk - 4658 ARBLIE - BANK
SEONEF—IBIHA - RELEER
7 BE DERERBERTEHEA
B TH&R RAAZERBZ
8 ERAMMWREBMRMERD
XERRBARIAEER -

BHE - 595% c ARFRIEE - BEAL
BETRBSREMBELEMNGRT
REBE e  R_TT-F_AMNER
SEF - BEER - LTRANSR
BEEAE - MERERTEREENE
ZRBB=THFLR -

RER - 5450 RITHAERNMNESSE
R3E - NAELHAKBEEE LB -
R-ZETRFMBAREER - A—FH
BERTOT1TR - RELETERAR
YMBFETR  EREAERNER
—AARGALEZER  BEEHE
XM - HAELEHEALERITRE

BEE 25 RUBEERAES
MR - REAIRSEELEN 1

FIRARBRRAABREE - R _FT
RFEMBAEER - BELER—FHE
BRI ZEFHKE  FELXRE
R BREAHKE  ERRBER
BEREBEH BEETERZHE
BEEXTHE BEZFRANTEZ
EBERIKE -

BB > 505%  MITTES - BULA—
ANEFMBEAEE  UASAEEE
MRBRRZES - REERE/MNF
IWARE - BEEERBTEE  WHR
g HMERERMEZRRITEERL
THEER -
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CHEN Chang Ying, aged 38, is an Executive Director.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in engineering and
is a senior engineer. Before joining us in 2003, Mr. Chen
was on the senior management of the subsidiary
companies of a public listed company. Mr. Chen is
presently one of our General Managers. He has over 10
years' experience in civil engineering, real estate
investment and sales and marketing, and is also the
deputy officer of Guangdong Real Estate Association

Sales and Marketing Commission.

XIAO Yan Xia, aged 44, is an Executive Director. Ms.
Xiao joined us in 1995. She holds a master’s degree in
economics from Zhongshan University and is presently
one of our Deputy General Managers and a director of
our other member companies. Ms. Xiao has over 15
years' experience in investment research and capital

management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 70, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Yuen is a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen has over 35 years’
experience in the legal field and is a director of a
number of listed companies. He is a China appointed
Attesting Officer in Hong Kong, a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, and an arbitrator of the China
International Economic & Trade Arbitration
Commission. Mr. Yuen has been a member of our Board

since 1998.

REHE 38 WITES - REER
TRESBBETEaRIIE - K=
“EMEAEER  A—LEWRAZ
MBARKMESREEASR - BEAK
EEHP (LI - FREEELA
HE O MEREREHEETEESR
TEES YABRREAEHEHKE
ZEGRIEMF -

BERE 4m dTEF B
—NANEFMBERAER - WEXNE
MR BEER - BEE LTS
R RAREEP —(EEKLE I
REAEBEEMKERRIZES - BX
THEREMEREAETETEER T
TFER -

B IFITE S

Bribi® - 705% - BUIEWITES ° bt
EERBERLEERERM -tk 4ER
M-t RFRELR  NARET LT
NAEIZESE - BAEBEBNPRHES
NEAN - FREARBAHETHEEH
ZESSBRPEERLEEFHRES
GZHBA - BUEER - NANFRK
REEENE -
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LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 56, is an
Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Lee is the
Chairman of David C Lee Group. He qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an
Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered
Professional Surveyor, an associate of the Incorporated
Society of Valuers and Auctioneers and an associate of
the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr Lee is a former
member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as
the Government “Think Tank” and a former director of
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited.
He is currently the Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a member of the Land and Building Advisory
Committee, a Council member of Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a member of the Salvation Army
Advisory Board, Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army and also a member
of the Municipal Services Appeals Board. Mr. Lee has
been a member of our Board since 1998.

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 54, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his
professional accounting qualifications in both Hong
Kong and Canada. Mr. Wong is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of the Certified General
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in
various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with
over 15 years’ experience in handling auditing, financial
accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong is currently
appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of Audit Committee of several listed
companies in Hong Kong. He has also assumed the
duty of financial controller for several listed companies
in both Hong Kong and Canada for over 10 years. Mr.
Wong is presently practicing as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He has expertise in financial
accounting, taxation, import-export business and
company management. Mr. Wong has been a member
of our Board since 1998.

FER AEMEE - KFHEL - 56
B OBUFNITESR - FRERFMN
BEEIF BR-NE=FERH
SEXFFFRAEMER AN —Ntt
FHAMARBAAML - RABEAE6
Eea5xeE BABIMEXRAE
B REMGERBEMEEEE MK
BEFHRAZEEE8 - FREER
BRRNPRBEEE (ABFEE
®) cMZBEREEBHEEEEAR
RAZAEE - FRE/BTEFEW
IR BELHEEREANZES
28 ARETAEREEKE K
WEBHNEZEEXRE8  MUENEE
MEESXTRMTBRE LFEZES
ZE -FREB-NNN\EFERRESF

EXE -

BEER - 545 MUFWITES - &
FERBERINEREBGEM &6
B BB RREREARRE
FHAARETHASEREER - BX
S ARRERERGAMLMNEXR
AfEstE  EKLEEFESZHAR
B2 g EBMIERB RS
AHEENES  UBat RRBRE
Bk BALREBRRETREELT
REZBIYFATESTRETLZES
Z8  MABHESZEEERMNEXR
LT RB M EEBBAE AR
mEREBAEM ST DEE -
BAEHRPBES - B EhO
EBREARERHARELRH - &
TEB-—NANANFRABEEEKE -
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NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHAFRAN Steven, aged 46, is a Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Shafran is the chief executive officer and the founder
of AMRI Financial Group Hong Kong Limited, a Hong
Kong based financial advisory firm. He is a member of the
board of GDH Limited and the Chairman of Fan Ya Tai
(International) Limited, a Hong Kong based company that
provides advisory services to owners of non-performing
assets. Mr. Shafran was a managing director and partner
of Goldman Sachs, where he was responsible for the firm’s
merchant banking and private equity business in non-
Japan Asia from 1993 through 2000. He joined Goldman
Sachs in 1986 and was based in New York before moving
to Hong Kong in 1993. Mr. Shafran has substantial private
equity and distressed asset investment experience
throughout Asia, including the Greater China region, India
and Southeast Asia. Mr. Shafran holds an MBA from
Harvard University and a BA from the University of
California at Berkeley.

CHEN Xiaohong, aged 36, is a Non-Executive Director.
Ms. Chen is a Managing Director of Tiger Global
Management, LLC (“Tiger Management”). Prior to joining
Tiger Management in September 2004, Ms. Chen was
Head of Business Development of Joyo.com where she
played a pivotal role in Joyo.com’s merger with Amazon.
com. Prior to that, Ms. Chen served for nine years at
Veronis Suhler Stevenson, a leading media merchant bank
in the United States, where she was a Managing Director
responsible for merger and acquisition activities and
private equity investments in the education and
publication sectors. Ms. Chen received her BA in History
from Peking University in China and a master’s degree
from Rutgers University in the University States.

HU Yongmin, aged 36, is currently a managing director
of Temasek Holdings (HK) Limited, focusing on investment
in China. Prior to joining Temasek, Mr. Hu was a director
of the investment banking division of Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited, responsible for CSFB's
investment banking effort in technology, media and
telecommunications in China. Prior to that, Mr. Hu was
vice president of the investment banking division of Bear
Stearns Asia Limited and the chief representative of its
Shanghai office. Mr. Hu has over 10 years experience in
banking business in China. He graduated from Fudan
University in Shanghai with a BA in English Language and
Literature.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CAl Chun Meng, aged 41, is the Vice President of the Group and
the General Manager of the Guangzhou regional office. Mr. Cai
graduated from the Guangzhou Teacher’s College. He studied in
the United Kingdom between 1990 and 1992 and obtained a
master's degree from the University of Western Sydney in 2000.
He joined the Group in 1999. He has extensive experience in real
estate investment, property management and organizational
management. He is also the Vice Chairman of the Real Estate

Association of Guangdong Province.

LI Fu Ming, aged 43, is an engineer and the Vice President of the
Group. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1997. He has over ten years’
experience in project and design management of civil

engineering.

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 42, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr.
Liao graduated from the Zhongshan University of Guangzhou and
obtained a master’s degree from the University of Western
Sydney. He has been engaged in the real estate investment and
business management for over 10 years, and has extensive
experience in the handling of government agencies and legal

affairs as well as investment and development management.

SHEN Hui Rong, aged 53, joined the Company in 2005 and is the
Vice President of the Group. Ms. Shen has been engaged in the
tourist industry for considerable years and has extensive

experience in marketing and international relations.

YANG Xiao Ping, aged 53, is a senior engineer and the Vice
President of the Group and the General Manager of the Tianjin
regional office. Prior to joining the Company in January 2005, Mr.
Yang was engaged in the real estate construction industry, and
was a senior management staff member of an overseas listed
company. Mr. Yang possesses extensive experience in real estate

construction and business management.
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TURNOVER

In 2005, benefiting from the improved market sentiment, the
Group saw substantial growth in its property development
business. The overall unit selling price in respect of properties
delivered to buyers was up by 10% to RMB6,028 per square meter
(2004: RMB 5,487 per square meter) due primarily to contributions
from some project developments with relatively higher gross
profit margins, such as Beijing Regal Court, Shanghai Hopson
Town and Guangzhou Regal Palace. The volume of transactions
stayed at high levels and increased by 40% to 1,043,249 square
meters (2004: 743,590 square meters). As a result, the Group
produced an impressive turnover of HK$6,134 million (2004:
HK$3,973 million (restated)), up 54% as compared with the
previous year. This record high turnover was exclusive of the
Group's proportionate share of turnover in the “Qiaodao” jointly
controlled entity. About 65% of the turnover revenue for the year
came from five project developments, namely Beijing Regal
Court, Pleasant View Garden, Gallopade Park South Court, Beijing
Citta Eterna and Shanghai Hopson Town.

Cost of sales

In line with the substantial growth in turnover, the cost of sales
was up by 45% to HK$4,189 million (2004: HK$2,896 million
(restated)) but as a percentage of revenue dropped to 68% (2004:

73% (restated)) due primarily to cost savings achieved.

Gross profit

Gross profit margin for the full year increased from 27% in 2004 to
32% in 2005. This was mainly attributable to the rise in selling
prices and the continued tight control exercised on costs.
However, as compared with the 38% margin achieved for the first
half of 2005, there was a drop of 6% caused by the (1) recognition
of a relatively larger number of properties with low profit margin
located in Tianjin, (2) disposal at competitive prices of certain
investment properties carrying a value higher than cost and (3)

costs of clubhouses being recognized as cost of development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
B % B FE

=R

NZZTRF  XERYEMETE - A5H
LY EBEREBREABIER - AREHER
EEEMEREEBNIERKI®S « D864
WHBRENTREBNREER  TEXFTE
RYEMEEEMEB LA 10% - EFFFK
AR 602870 (ZZEZMFE : FFHRKAR
¥ 5,487 T) o AN EBEEFFR S KFIE M
40% & 1,043,249 F 5Kk (ZEZT W F -
743,590 F oK) o Hit - REEAIEBAZ
R EBE 6,134,000,000 T (ZZT =Y
& ¢ ¥ 3,973,000,000 T (EH)) @ LEF
R 54% o ZAIRLE Z EEEHABERNER
R PIEMEREGIERE [BE] fEEsE -
FRNLEBE L 65% REAEEEHEE
Bt R Iws 25RE - BEftE -
woARESRRER EBEEWH -

B 6 PR

EEEBBABERT - HEKAKE M 45%
Z#%4,189,000,000 7T (ZZTZMF : BE
2,896,000,000 7L (E7F)) - BHEERE KA
BEK - HERAEREZ BN LB UEE
68% (ZFZMF : 73% (EF)) -

E7

EEENEH_FTMEN 2% LAE-FTF
TEM32%  TEREAREE LH RISEHT
BB Z AR BIEIE - AT - BN —FFA
FLFEFERNIBRKF » EFETEKT
6%+ RA® : MERTHAZMLRKET -
MEERRENYE  QUABRFHZEREE
ETEESRRABZRENE  ROEMZ
MHRRK AR B o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 4 &l B £ &

&
af
e
>
o)

39



40

B ANNUAL REPORT 2005 & #}

FINANCIAL REVIEW B [EEE

Other gains

Included in other gains are (1) “excess of acquirer’s interest over
cost” of HK$192 million representing the excess of the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired over
the cost of acquisition paid for a 100% equity interest in Sun
Advance Investments Limited (“Sun Advance”) and for the first
time being directly recognized in the income statement. Sun
Advance and another party own, through a PRC company, the
land use right of a piece of land for commercial purpose located
in Pudong, Shanghai with a GFA of approximately 86,947 square
meters; (2) HK$14 million representing a revaluation gain of the
Group's investment property portfolio since 31st December 2004
now taken through the income statement as required under the
new applicable accounting standards; (3) HK$56 million
representing grants received from government bureaus in

mainland China and (4) interest income of HK$17 million.

Operating expenses

Operating expenses, including selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses, were up 28% to HK$543 million (2004:
HK$423 million). The increase was in line with larger number of
properties sold and completed during 2005 and to some extent
caused by the start-up costs incurred for new projects, such as
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay, Guangzhou Regal Palace, Yijing
Huayuan, and Yunshan Xijing. The total amount expended when
measured as a percentage of turnover dropped slightly from
10.6 % in 2004 to 8.9% in 2005. This was a reflection of the
management’s continued commitment in containing operating

expenses to a reasonable level.

Finance costs

The costs of borrowing before capitalization allocated to various
property projects under development increased to HK$263 million
(2004: HK$ 205 million), up HK$58 million or 28%. The increase
was mainly attributable to a rise in interest rates, a higher level of
bank borrowings and the new issue of Guaranteed Senior Notes
of US$350 million in November 2005. The Group's effective
borrowing interest rate was approximately 6.8% per annum (2004:
5.7%). All borrowings were used to finance the development of

existing projects and investment in new projects.

Operating profit
The Group's operating profit increased by 117% to HK$1,681
million (2004: HK$773 million (restated)), up HK$908 million.
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Share of profit of and other gains relating to a jointly
controlled entity

The Group's share of profit of and other gains relating to a jointly
controlled entity operating the Guangzhou Regal Riviera project
increased by 232% to HK$192 million (2004: HK$58 million
(restated)) due to (1) the additional 29.5% equity interest acquired
since July 2005 and (2) the "excess of acquirer’s interest over
cost” of HK$115 million representing and for the first time directly
recognized in the income statement, the excess of fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired over the
cost of acquisitiion paid for a 29.5% equity interest in Guangdong
Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited, the project company of
Regal Riviera.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The Group achieved a profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$1,217 million (2004: HK$ 433 million (restated)), up HK$ 784
million or 181%. Earnings per share rose by 163% to HK$1.13.
Underlying profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect
of “excess of acquirer’s interest over cost” of HK$307 million and
revaluation gain of HK$14 million was HK$8%96 million, up HK$463
million or 107% as compared with the previous year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the growth of property development
business and its related profit margin.

Segmental information

Property development is the Group's core business activity (98%).
2005 saw a wider geographical spread of financial performance.
Both Tianjin and Shanghai began to deliver their developed
properties to buyers and each contributed 9% and 10% of the
Group's turnover revenue respectively. Guangdong remained the
top revenue contributor (47%), followed by Beijing (34%).

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2005, total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$19,584 million (2004: HK$14,100 million (restated)) whereas
total liabilities (excluding minority interests) amounted to
HK$13,818 million (2004: HK$10,771 million (restated))
representing an increase of HK$5,484 million and HK$3,047 million
respectively over the previous year. The increase in total assets
was mainly attributable to the increase in (1) cash raised from
placement of shares and the issue of Guaranteed Senior Notes,
(2) new land site acquisitions located in Guangdong Province and
Shanghai and (3) amounts expended on the construction work-
in-progress of development projects such as Huizhou Regal
Riviera Bay, Yunshan Xijing, Hopson International Garden and
Shanghai Hopson International Building.

FINANCIAL REVIEW B ¥ [E
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Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily due to
additional bank borrowings obtained and the Guaranteed Senior
Notes raised.

Current ratio increased from 1.09 at last year end to 1.73 this
year. Total equity increased to HK$5,765 million at 31st December
2005 from HK$3,329 million at 31st December 2004, due mainly
to the (1) contribution from the current year's profit attributable
to shareholders and (2) the placement of shares to strategic

investors.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group derived its source of fund primarily from income
generated from business operations, bank borrowings, cash
raised from the placement of shares and the issue of Guaranteed
Senior Notes, which were, in turn, used to finance its business

operations and investment in development projects.

As at 31st December 2005, the Group's liability-to-asset ratio (i.e.
the ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding
minority interests) was 71% (2004: 76% (restated)). The net debt-
to-equity ratio (i.e. total debt less cash and bank deposits over
total equity) was 79% (2004: 112% (restated))

As at 31st December 2005, the Group had cash and short-term
bank deposits amounted to HK$2,590 million (2004: HK$737
million) of which HK$71 million (2004: HK$150 million) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities. In
addition, the Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$166
million (2004: HK$108 million) were charged to certain banks in
respect of the mortgage facilities granted by the banks to the
buyers of the Group's properties. 80% of the cash and bank
deposits was denominated in Renminbi,
and 17% in United States Dollar.

3% in Hong Kong dollar

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$4,003 million (2004:
HK$3,506 million) representing an increase of 14% or HK$497
million over the previous year. Gearing, measured by net bank
borrowings and the Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank
borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank
deposits as a percentage of total equity), decreased from 83%
(restated) as at 31st December 2004 to 71% as at 31st December
2005. The substantial improvement in gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the unutilized proceeds as of year end which were
raised from the placement of shares and the issue of Guaranteed

Senior Notes.
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All of the Group's bank borrowings were either secured or covered AEEMRBRITERASAEMRNE L AE
by guarantees and substantially denominated in Renminbi with R MAMBDUAAREFHE - W LAREE M K5

fixed interest rates whereas the Guaranteed Senior Notes were B MRFBELZEFENEEBRAETFE -
unsecured and denominated in United States dollar with fixed WABERERAE - MESEAEBEER
interest rate, representing approximately 56% and 37%, KEH) 56% 2 37% ©

respectively of the Group's total borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and FIEHMEES REERR 22 RKREHUA
substantially denominated in Renminbi. R¥EEH -

The Group's borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December AEER-_ZERNF T _A=+—RHAZEEER

2005 was as follow:— MEFEERWNT -
As at As at
31st December 2005 31st December 2004
R-ZEBILE RZZEME
+-ZA=+-H +-A=1-H
Bank Guaranteed Other Bank Other
borrowings Senior Notes borrowings Total borrowings  borrowings Total
R

RORE BAEER  ApRE B3 BOEE  HuEE @it

(HKS million) (M B&& i)

~within 1year ~ ——FR 1,837 - 452 2,289 32% 1,958 878 2,83 64%
- after 1 yearbut ——F{%E
within 2 years MER 1,450 - - 1,450 20% 878 69 947 21%
- after 2 years but —MEHE
within 3 years “ER 716 - - 716 10% 670 - 670 15%
-afterSyears  —REH - 2,661 - 2,661 38% - - - -
Total borrowings ~ {EEBE 4,003 2,661 452 7,116 3,506 947 4,453

Less: Bank deposits  J5 : 1775
and cash kEg (2,590) (737)

Net borrowings fFEFE 4,526 3,716

REPAYMENT PROFILE OF THE GROUP’'S BORROWINGS £

2005 2004 after 2 years but

within 3 years

MEREBE=FN

within 1 year

after 5 years

hLFk

within 1 year

—FR

after 1 year but
within 2 years

—FRERFA

after 2 years but after 1 year but
within 3 years within 2 years

MERE=FA —FREMFN
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The increase in borrowings was caused by the additional loans
drawn down and the Guaranteed Senior Notes issued in
November 2005 to finance the development of new projects.

As at 31st December 2005, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$5,640 million (2004: HK$3,506 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$1,637 million were

unutilized.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2005, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$5,068 million (2004: HK$3,564
million) were pledged with banks for loan facilities used by

subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity.

fEERM - DEERNALAXRMBIERK
R-ZETAF+-AZTREELERME -
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R R EFIR 175 B ES 4978 ¥ 5,640,000,000 7T
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES HAREE
As at 31st December 2005, the Group provided guarantees to RZBEZERF+_A=+—0  XEEH T
banks for:- FIEMRITEER :
As at 31st December
R+=—A=+—8H
2005 2004
—BREEF —TTWF
HK$ million HK$ million
B&#BT B&EET
- mortgage facilities granted -ABEAEEMEZER
to buyers of the Group's RERIBENR M MERT
properties {EH 2 IR 4,024 3,271
- loans borrowed by —HEEATZRITERM
related companies IRITIE L 2 R - 80
4,204 3,351
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS B A E

The Group's capital commitments in respect of land and
property construction costs and capital contribution to a

jointly controlled entity were as follows:

AEBER T R MERZERA - AR —FEH
FEHEREE ZEARAENT

As at 31st December

R+t=A=+—8H
2005 2004
—E2BRF —ETMF
HK$ million HK$ million
A &ET B&EET
Authorized and contracted for BE®EREFH
— Property construction costs — R A 5,767 3,639
— Capital contribution to a —R—EHEEENEE
jointly controlled entity 2 BRER 101 162
Acquisition of further interest ¥ — P Ui — I H R EH]
in a jointly controlled entity ERER 130 469
Acquisition of equity interests  WHEAR THBEI KEEFLE
in certain mainland 2R A
China entities 956 -
6,954 4,270
Authorized but not B
contracted for BRETA
~ Land costs — kAR 885 1,087
— Property construction costs — W EREK A 15,682 18,376
16,567 19,463
23,521 23,733
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The Group's share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled

entity not included in the above were as follows:

WARBRBE EX 2 AREEEG—HLRESE
BB EARAENMT

As at 31st December
R+=-—HA=+—H

2005 2004
—EERF —ERNF
HK$ million HK$ million
BE# T BEET
Authorized and contracted for B &EENEEI4
— Land costs — A AR 105 68
— Property construction cost — M E RS 231 184
336 252
Authorized but not B
contracted for BRETH
— Land costs — T A AR 91 51
— Property construction R E 3= N 1,282 967
costs
1,373 1,018
1,709 1,270

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AEERZNEMEENE I T A EHEEEH
EEm AR EHERE - RIBTAIFHEALD
RBERzZEEEFBESDOT

As at 31st December
R+=-—A=+-—8

2005 2004
—22I1HF —ZTTOF
HK$ million HK$ million
B&EET B EETT
Amounts payable THERZAN 2 IR
— within one year ——FR" 8 5
— within two to five years —Z—ZRFRA 27 3
35 8

With the continuous cash inflow from property sales, the
committed banking facilities and the cash in hand, the Group
should be in an adequate liquidity position to meet these on-

going capital commitments by stages.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury
and funding policies, with a focus on risk management and
transactions that are directly related to the underlying business
of the Group.

HREHERBEELRSAA - LA
ZRITEERTFERS  AEERAEBRIR
BESURNTRERZFEEANRE -

I EBR N E RN

AEERLHE RRARRDEEE B LT
HWRBE DR RAEEN LA LA ERBE
CETR
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged
in investment holding and property development, property

investment and property management.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective
contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st

December 2005 by geographical locations is as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

-

E=EEMARZEEAES

“ﬂj) KEKBA
—EERFEF A=t
i“%ﬁ%i‘%iﬁ%

B
ARAR—MRAE

2 W &

BMARRA ([K

A (ATHME [REE]) &

A LE 5 H) F s

lrm - ETENBA

A BEARRAREHNEREI N FRER

B MEER -

FEEBE-_TT
iR E D
RO

EhEFE+ =

MERERMFEERET -

A=+—BL%E

ZEXBREEAHELEHENZE

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

EERE HKERTNNER

HK$'000 HK$°000

BETT BT

Guangdong EXR 2,891,386 684,665

Beijing bR 2,066,455 650,128

Shanghai i 615,733 421,922

Tianjin RiE 558,429 (29,369)

Others HAth 1,891 (46,300)

6,133,894 1,681,040

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business segments for the AEEEZE_EERFT_A=T—HILLFE
year ended 31st December 2005 is as follows: REBEBDEONEEXHEITAOT -

Turnover

EXE

HK$'000

BT T

Property development %R 5,990,942

Property investment MEIRE 46,983

Property management MmEER 95,969

6,133,894
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31st December 2005, the five largest

customers of the Group accounted for approximately 0.39% of
the Group's turnover while the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 63% of the Group's purchases. In
addition, the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 0.12% of the Group's turnover while the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 28% of the

Group's purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out
in Note 38 to the accompanying audited accounts, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the Group’s

five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December,
2005 are set out in the consolidated income statement on page

78 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK9.75 cents per share, totalling
HK$117,351,000, was declared and paid during the year. The
Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK24.2
cents per share, which will bring the total dividends for the year
ended 31st December 2005 to approximately HK$412,494,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out

in Note 24 to the accompanying accounts.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 25 to the accompanying accounts.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2005,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$28,561,000 (2004: HK$53,228,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$8,297,000 (2004: HK$4,068,000) to various organisations for

charitable purpose.

TERETNHER
REBEEZE_TTRF+_A=+—RLEFEH
A ARENAERATPIEAEEEERY
0.39% - MAKREN AR ZAHERAERE
EERIERRA) 63% ° WO - REEEKRFFE
AEBMEEFEN0.12% - MAKE R AHE
BANEARERBRBERLQ 28% °

BRI BE M # L AR R B MY E 38 P #8235 T
BARABESN  HEEF RENREAF
SEMER (BEFMAEAEBARE 5%
ZBEAE) RARENREARATPEAAR
ARERPHAE D s

u/\& /JJ—-:E
AEERZE_ZETAF+_A=T—RILFE
MEEFFHNAFRE TS ENGEEERE
WO

FHREERQISHEMN - A& X BK
117,351,000 ¢ * ERAFERNERKEZFT &
EEFRERAKRESTA 24280 : Bt - @
EZETRF+ AT HILEFEREEE
1549 BB 412,494,000 7T °

LN
ZN/NESI = o N
24 o

G
7R T8 AR 2N R 4 T 8 o S B B B Y
2 FR B M 25

BB RERM 2 AR B M

R-ZERF+-_A=+—H RBREEHREQ
RIARTE  ARARMAHYIKEEAEBE
28,561,000 7t (—ZZTPU4 : # ¥ 53,228,000
JL) o

B

RAF - REBAZEERBRBHREE 8,297,000
T (ZZTPULE : HEE 4,068,000 7T) F % AR
T o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED a K Al RE



ANNUAL REPORT 2005 % 3 M

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEg#H45&E

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights

under the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

Notes 7 and 8 to the accounts, respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2005 are set out in

Note 22 to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 28 to the

financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 190 to
192.

ON-GOING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) has granted a conditional waiver to the Company
from strict compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in force prior to 31st March 2004
in respect of certain on-going connected transactions. Pursuant
to the waiver, the Company is not required to disclose details of
such connected transactions by on-going press notice and/or
circular and/or to obtain prior independent shareholders’

approval. Details of such connected transactions are as follows:

()  Appointment of a main contractor — Guangdong Zhujiang

Construction Limited (“GZ Construction”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the
Group may, from time to time, appoint GZ Construction as
its main contractor in respect of construction works to be
carried out on property development projects of the Group.

The appointment of GZ Construction as the Group’s main

BB EE
AARMBAE WELBERET - MEREE
190 7% 4 0 6 4 o

IEJSE GRS IES

AEEREFEONERRENREN LS
SAES BN IRE 7 RMIEES -

LR EEPNGIDSE: dl/NE]
RATIHINE D 7 B S A TS D B E R B
FEERRMITE 13 RMEE 14 o
Ep
A
B P aE

BIREETE
RIRS SHBIRE B BN B TS AR 3E 28 -

>

TR+ A=+ BEEFEIARY
2

o

AFBEME
AEBRBEAFXENEERGEREHN
E190FE 1928 »

FEMERS

BEBARIMBERAR (MR BotE
THREMERS - #EXRDAA G RER
BF_TTME=A=+—HAABR 5
R EWARA ([ EWRAD £ 1408
E o RIBZIE#R R - AREBAFENTIER
ERER/RBHAABRBZEHERSH
B R/ REAEBBLRRIE - ZFME
RHHBMT

() ZEREEAEE-BERKITIIEEABAR
~A ([T

H-TE=F-A-HABA=FHH K«
SETTNRZBINTARE /A KRB E
TRETIRNMEZERABNIEARE
7o AEEKBEETRAFERRRER
AEBAEEBHEENYARRRRER
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contractor will be on normal commercial terms conducted at
arm’s length between the parties and in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; and will be fair and
reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are
concerned. Further, individual construction contracts will only
be awarded to GZ Construction if the terms offered by it are
not less favourable than those offered by other contractors.
GZ Construction, being a 60%-owned subsidiary of
Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited (“GD Zhujiang”), a
minority shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31st December 2005,
construction fees paid/payable to GZ Construction
amounted to approximately HK$1,476,000,000 (2004:
HK$792,000,000).

Appointment of a main contractor — Guangdong Hanjiang

Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the
Group may, from time to time, appoint Hanjiang as its main
contractor in respect of construction works to be carried out
on property development projects of the Group. The
appointment of Hanjiang as the Group’s main contractor will
be on normal commercial terms conducted at arm’s length
between the parties and in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; and will be fair and reasonable so far
as the shareholders of the Company are concerned. Further,
individual construction contracts will only be awarded to
Hanjiang if the terms offered by it are not less favourable
than those offered by other contractors. Hanjiang is owned
as to 90 per cent. by Mr. Chu Hing Yee, the brother of Mr.
Chu Mang Yee ("Mr. Chu”), the Chairman and executive
director of the Company, and 10 per cent. by Mr. Chu Fan,
the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu. Each of Mr. Chu Hing Yee and
Mr. Chu Fan is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, Hanjiang being an associate
of Mr. Chu Hing Yee is also a connected person of the
Company. During the year ended 31st December 2005,
construction fees paid/payable to Hanjiang amounted to
approximately HK$1,616,000,000 (2004: HK$1,298,000,000).

(i)

FEBEN—MEEGRR  ZERILEAB
RAEENFEEAER - I RBER
T 48 75 B) BT R S A I R A0 TS 5 A L i
7 ERREEENT G TIRTEAE -
BIEEHHRA - BRI EABARRIL
IREERART ([BRWI]) (KAAFE
THBARIKDEIRE) 158 60% Emh
MEA R MEKLEER AR F /B E
AT REBEZEZFEZTRF+-_A=1+—8
HFEEEN BRI EBNEESRH
4 B8 1,476,000,000 7T (ZZEZPU4F :
75 792,000,000 7T) °

RIERAER -BRBIZELETEA
Ram] ([#T])

H-_TZT=F— AR =F48 &
EEAIANEERTIARNEEFETRE
TRMMEZXREENEEAER - A&
EBREFEAFERRIERAEER
BEBBEAHAATRREBATFTEEDN
—REERR  EREBIAAEENTE
AGER o WA - RAEERIIATH L AR
WABEREMAERS - BAREEENTE
HFET - BTHARAEREHRUTES
FIRAEE ([REE]D) ZHBREFL
EEE 90% R - A RAKREEZIRKAR
WL 10% e o ARIEETARA] - K
BREERANCEHBERR ZBEA
T o At BIEAREFREEZHEA
THMBARRGICHEEALT REEZTZ
FFE+-A=+—HLFEEHN ENE
IHEEE RO AE 1,616,000,000 7T
—ZETPUE ;B 1,298,000,000 )
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Appointment of a property management company — Beijing
Zhujiang Century Property Management Limited (”Beijing
Century”)

During the three years commencing 1st January 2003, the
Group may appoint Beijing Century to manage the unsold
units of the Group's properties located in Beijing and Tianjin
in return for management fees equal to 50% of those charged
to owners of individual units of the sold properties. Beijing
Century is owned as to 80% by Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate
Development Company Limited ("Beijing Zhujiang”) and
20% by GZ Construction, while Beijing Zhujiang is owned as
to 60 per cent. by GD Zhujiang and 40 per cent. by GZ
Construction. Accordingly, Beijing Century is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. During the
year ended 31st December 2005, management fees paid/
payable to Beijing Century amounted to approximately
HK$4,064,000 (2004: HK$4,907,000).

On 12th December 2005, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in Beijing Century from Beijing Zhujiang and
GZ Construction for a consideration of RMB 1,000,000.
Beijing Century thus became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. After 12th December 2005, any transactions
between the Group and Beijing Century are exempt from
the disclosure or shareholders’ approval requirement of the

Listing Rules.

Appointment of a property management company -
Shanghai Hopson Property Management Limited (“Shanghai

Hopson”)

During the two years commencing Tst January 2004, the
Group may appoint Shanghai Hopson to manage the unsold
units of the Group's properties located in Shanghai in return
for management fees equal to 50% of those charged to
owners of individual units of the sold properties. Shanghai
Hopson is owned as to 40% by GD Zhujiang and 60% by
Shanghai Zhujiang Investment Limited which is in turn owned
as to 60% by GD Zhujiang and 40% by GZ Construction.
Shanghai Hopson is a subsidiary of GD Zhujiang which is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, Shanghai Hopson constitutes a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. During the
year ended 31st December 2005, management fees paid/
payable to Shanghai Hopson amounted to approximately
HK$95,000 (2004: HK$116,000).

(iii)

(iv)

ZEMEEEQAR —RWIELYERE
BERAR ([HERELR])
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REAERARF ([dEREI]) RIERTAAA
BD RIEEE 80% K 20% HEE  mib REKT
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(ZZZT4F : ¥ 4,907,00070) °
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The independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the

above transactions and confirmed that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

a. the above transactions have been conducted at arm'’s
length between the parties on normal commercial terms
and in the ordinary and usual course of the business of
the Group, and are fair and reasonable so far as the

shareholders of the Company are concerned;

b. the above transactions have been carried out on terms
no less favourable than terms available from

independent third parties;

c. the disclosure provided herein in respect of the details
of the above transactions is in compliance with Rule
14.25 (1)(A) to (D) of the Listing Rules in force prior to
31st March 2004;

during the year ended 31st December 2005, construction
fees paid/payable to GZ Construction amounted to
approximately HK$1,476,000,000 (2004: HK$792,000,000),
which has not exceeded the annual construction fees paid/
payable to GZ Construction in respect of the year concerned

as permitted under the said waiver from the Stock Exchange;

during the year ended 31st December 2005, construction
fees paid/payable to Hanjiang amounted to approximately
HK$1,616,000,000 (2004: HK$1,298,000,000), which has not
exceeded the annual construction fees paid/payable to
Hanjiang in respect of the year concerned as permitted

under the said waiver from the Stock Exchange;

during the year ended 31st December 2005, management
fees paid/payable to Beijing Century amounted to
approximately HK$4,064,000 (2004: HK$4,907,000), which has
not exceeded the annual management fees paid/payable to
Beijing Century in respect of the year concerned as

permitted under the said waiver from the Stock Exchange.

during the year ended 31st December 2005, management
fees paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson amounted to
approximately HK$95,000 (2004: HK$116,000), which has not
exceeded the annual management fees paid/payable to
Shanghai Hopson in respect of the year concerned as

permitted under the said waiver from the Stock Exchange.
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The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above

transactions and confirmed that the transactions:
(1) have received approval from the board of Directors; and

(2) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the

agreement governing the transactions.

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the accompanying financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entity or holding
company was a party and in which any of the Company’s Directors
had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS" SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Wu Jiesi (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 29th April 2005)

Mr. Tam Lai Ling (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 29th April 2005)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Chen Chang Ying

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chen Xiaohong

(Appointed on 13th September 2005)
Mr. Hu Yongmin

(Appointed on 28th November 2005)
Mr. Shafran Steven

(Appointed on 9th August 2005)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David

Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong
Shing Kay, Oliver retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all the Directors
appointed by the Directors during the year retire at the annual
general meeting next following their appointment. Accordingly,
Ms. Chen Xiaohong, Mr. Hu Yongmin and Mr. Shafran Steven
retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each
of the independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen
Pak Yiu, Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing

Kay, Oliver, and considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2005, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the

SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
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were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

follows:

(1) Long positions in shares

A1) BEAMEARNFRBRMH 2 BRmIIRR
T

(1) REBP 2R

Number of shares of the Company

ERARGBE
Percentage
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other of shares
interests interests interests interests Total  outstanding
HERT
Name of directors ExnA BAESR ZEER AR EHR Hitgs R ROBESH
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) KAKEEQ) - - 637,500,000 - 637,500,000 52.53%
Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BEZEED) - - 37,500,000 - 37,500,000 3.09%
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia mEELL 100,000 - - - 100,000 0.01%
Mr. Xiang Bin YA 75 390,000 - - - 390,000 0.03%
Mr. Shafran Steven AT e 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.08%
Notes — Hfat —

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 637,500,000 shares of the Company

through Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned

by him, and HKSCC Nominees Limited.

b.  Mr. AuWai Kin held 37,500,000 shares of the Company through

a company wholly-owned and controlled by him.

a. KAEREEEBEXEMBENNEEES
BRI REBRRER (RIBA) BERA
A A R R 7] 637,500,000 BEAZ ©

b. BERLEEAEE2EMSE MIZHNAQF
¥ F N A 5] 37,500,000 A% M D ©
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(2) Long positions in share options
During the year, the Company granted options to Mr. Wu
Jiesi, Mr. Tam Lai Ling and Mr. Steven Shafran to subscribe
for shares under the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 4th November 2002 (the “"Scheme”), details of
which as at 31st December 2005 are stated as follow:

Exercise price  Exercise
per share  period

2) RNEBREZIFR

FA - ARAFRBER-_ZZ_F+—-AMBK
Bt e (TEHEl)) MREREL
ERBEELENEEBTERLBERE R-F
ERF+-_A=+—HZHFBOT :

Number of share options

BREHE

Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Beginning during during during End
ofyear  theyear  theyear  the year of year

Date of grant RHAH BRARE THEH N ERBEE  FRTE FAXN L3S
Mr. Wu Jiesi RiER LA
29th April 2005 ZZTHE HK$4.30 77T 29th April 2005 to - 10,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
mA=+hnA 28th April 2010
ZETREMAZT AR
FIER-ZEMAZTNA
15th September 2005 ST R E HK$8.20 7T 15th September 2005 to - 2,036,000 - 2,036,000
NA+TRA 14th September 2010
ZZERENATRA
EZ2-ZENAATHA
Mr. Tam Lai Ling ~ E#EX4E
29th April 2005 e 3 HK$4.30 7T 29th April 2005 to - 10,000,000 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
MA=+NE 28th April 2010
ZZLREMAZ AR
E-T-TEMA-TNA
Mr. Shafran Steven [EE:E %4
11th August 2005 e 3 HK$6.20 7T 11th August 2005 to - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
NA+—H 10th August 2010
ZERRENAT-H
E_Z-Z5¥\ATH
26,536,000 10,000,000 - 16,536,000

Notes:

1. The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately
before the dates on which the options were granted on 29th
April 2005, 11th August 2005 and 15th September 2005 were
HK$4.225, HK$5.20, and HK$8.40, respectively.

2. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date of exercise by Mr. Wu Jiesi was HK$10.70.

3. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date of exercise by Mr. Tam Lai Ling was HK$10.70.

4. No share options were cancelled under the Scheme during

the year.

BE -

1. BEBERER-_TTAFNA-t+AB- =T
TRAFNA+T—ARER-_ZETRAFAA+EAR
AT AR R R IR D 2 W B 9 Bl A B 4.225
JL - B 520 L B 8.40 7T ©

2. BEREBLAITERERERD ARG 2 NE
TR TEABE 1070 7T -

3. BEEEELAAITERRERBRRG 2 NE
SEHUTEEE 1070 7T ©

4. FRIWMARE LA ST HABRE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2005, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required , pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age had been granted any
right to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company

nor exercised any such right.

The Company had used the Binomial Option Pricing Model to
determine the fair value of the options granted as at the date of

grant, details of which are set out in Note 24 to the accounts.

The Binominal Option Pricing Model was developed to estimate
the fair value of American style options. It is one of the commonly
used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can be
exercised before the expiry of the option period. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. Any change in the variables so adopted may

materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

B EXPrREEIN RZTTRF+ A=+
—HB ARFEF THAHIBREZBEA
BENRERES B ERPISE XV #FE 7 R F 8
DEAME AN NE LB Z I BN AN AR A
EAEBER (&R EHFRBMEEDE XV
#B) Zhfy - HERORESTHEEETHAE
ARk AR EMERSOAS (BRERE
EHMRGRH 2 ZEFRERRRBXAERE
ZREIORE) - RUAIARBES LG
B 352 FIAFEZELMA - HREF
ST RIA B R G AR MBI P 2 A EA
Kk~ REIREMERIXR -

B Lt &SN - REREAER - KRR REE
B AR W EFT LM L HE - UNEEFHR
FZEMRBITN\ERATZ FRERERE
BARR ST EAMEAERE 2D ESM
e UWRBMEBESTHITRARAESTS
BZEBRTN\GRAT 2 FRERR T
NRBEARBBRND K EBESFIEITEZFTE
R o

AREMERZAA MR EERAFERERER
HAHZAFE - FEEREREME24 -

“HEAMBEEERA 5 EFAEARRNRF

CRER-BERRAMBEEERS A
AHE AR BERER A TENBREN QY
B BEENEESATETIEBRRZIEH
MmetEEAEOEE - HERSRANEED
REH  ASHBPEAFEZIMGEKREX
=2

rE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, as at 31st December
2005, according to the register of interests kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, the following entities had interests
or short positions in the shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO:

Capacity and
nature of interests

FERE

Br B [EE RITRAENE S - BERG &
BEEHRBIHERAR] —HEE 2 #E
S RZEZRF+ZA=+—H  EARQF
BIFFEH R EEGEPIE 336 EBHFE 2 &M
itk T ERBRAARRRIROFHERRER
FREIEGPIZE XV EE 2 RE I DHBARAR
AR s EmIOAE

Number of
issued shares
(Long position)

Percentage of
shareholding

ERITRA HE 81T

Name of shareholders BRARE SRR ERME #gE (F8) B2 E 2tk

Sounda Properties Limited ¥TEEZ AR A A Beneficial owner 637,500,000 52.53%

EnEEA

Temasek Holdings (Private) AR (FLA) Controlled corporation 100,300,000 8.26%
Limited BRAE XE RN A

Charles P. Colemon IlI Charles P. Colemon IlI Controlled corporation 100,300,000 8.26%
RN 2

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other BREXEREEN RZEZERF+_RA=+

persons who, as at 31st December 2005, had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the Scheme disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the As recognition of the contribution of
Scheme the participants by granting options to
them as incentives or rewards.

2. Participants of Any executive, employee, director
the Scheme (including non-executive director and
independent non-executive director),
consultant, adviser and/or agent of the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

—H REFAA ECAEMALIRAR
ARERBERR (EERIFFLBPEEDIE
XVER) 2Bty - RO K ESFHEEREE
R AEGRDIE XV #E 2 ME 3 DMARAR
AWEZEDEIRE -

s B
RIE EHR AL %A BIPTER B AT

A 2 B35 1% T 8 O A 3R
BREFZER - W LALEE
INACECE & A

g AR RS EAERE AR
G MITRAR - BE - EF
(BRFRATEEREL
FHTESF) ERE
B BRI RSB A
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3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Total number of
shares available
for issue under
the Scheme and
percentage of
issued share
capital as at 13th
April 2006

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

under the Scheme

The period within
which the shares
must be taken up

under an option

The minimum period
for which an option
must be held
before it can be

exercised

The amount payable
on application or
acceptance of the
option and the
period within which
payments or calls
must or may be
made or loans for
such purposes

must be paid.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEg#H45&E

100,300,000 shares unless shareholders’

approval has been obtained
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
(approximately 8.22% of issued

share capital).

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise
of share options already granted or
to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and
outstanding share options) in the 12-
month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital as at
the date of grant. Any grant of
further options above this limit shall
be subject to certain requirements
as stipulated in the rules of the

Scheme.

Commencing on the date of grant
of an option and expiring at 5:00
p.m. on the earlier of the business
day preceding the fifth anniversary
thereof and the business day
preceding the tenth anniversary of
the date on which the Scheme was

adopted.

Completion of half year's full-time
services with the Company or a

subsidiary.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

REZ &l
AI TR
mE RN
T RFN
A+=81
BEBITIRA
AL

SisaE
RIRE B
AR B

1 ¢

AR R R
ARIBR
YRR

ARITER
FrB B
B % 52 B IR

FR 55 B iR
BRERE
HEBEAR
3B A
R HARR
HEEHR
BREE R
AR

B IEE MK BRFT AT B {5
SEREME - FAA
100,300,000 f% (#9152 3
TR A H 8.22%)

BHE2EETREER
TR T 2 B
BN EBCE R AR
B (BREEITERERT
BZEEE) R RETZ
BRI+ —EASE (8%
RTER)  TRBAR
REBABMEBETRX
1% ° B T AL
PREE A BB AR X R4 AT &
MAIRRTBAR A T B E T
MR

BRERER LA BREEZ
R REE RIAFERT—
BEEXBRERKZE
B HIE + B F R AT — {2
X8 (UARBER®E) T
FREFIEER

AR R 3 — B A A
TERREF 2 BIRTS

Fan
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8. The basis of

determining the

The exercise price is determined by
the board of Directors and shall at
exercise price least be the highest of:
a. the closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of

offer of the relevant options;

b. the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately

preceding the date of offer of the

relevant options; and

c. the nominal value of the

Company’s shares

The Scheme was adopted on 4th
November 2002 and will expire at 5:00

p.m. on the business day immediately

9. The remaining life

of the Scheme

preceding the tenth anniversary

thereof.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars. However, the
Group experienced no significant foreign exchange movement and
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange
loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong

dollars and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

was entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2005, the Group, excluding its associate
and jointly controlled entity, employed a total of 4,078 (as at 31st
December 2004: 3,596) staff, the great majority of which were
employed in mainland China. Employees’ costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$188 million (2004:
HK$144 million) for the year ended 31st December 2005.

THEREESET &
{K/,\EL/\TE/]E—I_J%

8 EE{TEE
DESE

2 RABREERIEY
AARARGRBR
Fis AR E KT
"

b. MNERREHABBEMK
BERAZAAEE %
ERN/NSIL§7PiN: 3
FrE R RERNTH
WmiE: &

c. ARFERHEE

9. EarEIEH
EREAMR

FER T =F+—A
MER®N =2 +EF
AR —EZEE T TAKE
E&IE

AN R B

REBNEZWRABARE WAARBIZHN

&$&§% Hifn BA& S AREEETHE 2 E
o ZNER B0 R [ Y (TR B R HMERED -

ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁTﬁZ*%ﬁxﬁ BILTHAR
KOEXREHMESEEARIMNERE -

El IE H l\/j

FR - RARA BB ERRHERTE

WEIIYKFEEERITHAL -

R-ZERF+-_A=+—H £AE£E (76
FEBEAFRARZEHERE) 2EEAH
4,078 A (:;;@¢+_H:+—E| : 3,596

AN) ERREHATEANMES - REBEEZ
ETRF+ AT —HLEFERERA (
REEHS) EFH% 188,000,000 7T (—EF
& ¢ ¥ 144,000,000 T) °

(2
M
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The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and
incentive scheme is to link total compensation of Executive
Directors, senior management and employees with the
achievement of annual and long-term corporate goals and
objectives. Remuneration package is performance-based and
takes into account business performance, market practice and
competitive market conditions in order to attract, motivate and
retain talent. The remuneration package of Executive Directors
and senior management comprises of salaries, bonuses,

discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors, except for Mr. Hu Yongmin and Ms.
Chen Xiaohong, who do not receive any remuneration, are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and
time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.
The recommended remuneration package comprises of annual

directorship fee and fee for representation on Board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year,
excluding Directors’ interests in share options of the Company
which are detailed in “long positions in share options” above, is

set out in Note 28 to the accounts.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies
Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in

Note 28 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31st December 2005.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 63 to 73 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company has maintained during the year under
review the amount of public float as required under the Listing

Rules.

REE 25 BB 8 2 EABER B HIT
B RACHEERREZAFMEFELE
HEXERNMENBRNERD - HFHAQ L
REAREE - U REHRR - MHEH LT
BEHRFRE MRS B REREAT - #
TEEMEREEEZHFMEAAREHE T
A RIBSTEAREMEDER -

B 58 3B 85k A I BR /N AT 20 o A U ER A 4T 5 A
Sh - FEMITEF ZHIMI AR RN RREFR
BREFEMEMBZERER EREKER
B - HEZFHESERFEEFRE LG
FEZe=ME -

AP BRERMBES 2 HME SN B HwEMN
E28  EEFERARABREZRRERI
ZEBERER X [RBEEREZHR] -

RIERRMEDIZE 161 81 R L AR BURTE% 16 #55
CEENEAEIEBIE 2 BEHNTERE
B 5F 28 -

58 - BEIKMHEARNRR]Z EHES

REBEE_ZTTRF+_A=+—RHIEFE K
RANMEERMERRMERA BLHHE
ARRRMEMR LTS -

7

T

TEER
BRARRIRAZ ETBCEERAERZHBES
RERFEGIET7IE -

NEFREN R
BEAARSENRELEHRES 2 AERE
MR BEER - ARRRBEEERNZ AR
FIRE AR E D RAFTRE 2R -
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) Acquisitions of subsidiaries

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 5th January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Guangzhou Xin
Chang Jiang Development Limited (“Xin Chang Jiang”)
for a consideration of RMB365.1 million (approximately
HK$351.1 million). Xin Chang Jiang owns the land use
right of a site located in Huadu, Guangzhou with a GFA
of approximately 273,467 square meters.

On 13th January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of a 72.14% equity interest in Shanghai San
Xiang Real Estate Development Limited (“San Xiang”).
San Xiang owns the land use right of a site located in
Qingpu, Shanghai with a GFA of approximately 118,639
square meters. The Group expected to complete the
acquisition of the remaining equity interest of 27.86%
within 2006. Total consideration for the entire interest in
San Xiang is RMB238.2 million (approximately HK$229

million).

On 20th January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of a 100% equity interest in Shanghai Long
Jia Properties Limited (“Long Jia"”) for a consideration
of RMB190.7 million (approximately HK$183.3 million).
Long Jia possesses the right to develop a land site
Shanghai with a GFA of

approximately 110,238 square meters.

located in Sheshan,

(b) Equity transaction
In Februray 2006, the Company issued 6,000,000 ordinary
shares for a total consideration of HK$25,800,000, upon

exercise of share options granted to directors.

AUDITORS

The

accounts

have been Messrs.

audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditors for

the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the board of Directors,

CHU MANG YEE

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th April 2006

(@) WENBAFA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to upholding high standards of
corporate governance. The Board believes effective corporate
governance will translate into greater transparency, more effective

risk controls and ultimately enhance shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the "Code”) as contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the
year 2005 except that the non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for specific terms with the exception of Mr.
Steven Shafran who is appointed for a term of three years, and
the Chairman of the Board did not attend the annual general

meeting for the year 2005 due to other business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry, all directors have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2005.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven executive and six non-
executive directors of whom three are independent, whose
biographical details are set out in the Directors’ Profile section
on pages 34 to 37 which demonstrate a balance of core
competence having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board members
have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. There is no such relationship as
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of

legal actions against its directors.

The non-executive directors provide the Group with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their participation in Board and
committee meetings brings independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, helps to ensure that adequate checks
and balances are provided and that the interests of all

shareholders are taken into account.
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The Company has three independent non-executive directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. Each independent
non-executive director gives the Company an annual confirmation
of his independence, and the Board considers these directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group and its business by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. It oversees the Group’s strategic
development, and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group's
strategic objectives. The Board members have access to
appropriate business documents and information about the
Group on a timely basis. The directors are free to have access to
the management for enquiries and to obtain further information
when required. All directors and Board committees also have
recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for

independent advice at the Group's expense if they require it.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to management. However,
clear directions are given to management as to the matters that
must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on
behalf of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Apart from consents obtained through circulation of written
resolutions of all Board members, the full Board met nine times
during the year under review at which the directors considered
and approved significant matters including, among other things,
interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial reports,
changes in Board members, land acquisitions, placement of
shares to strategic investors and issuance of senior guaranteed
notes. Individual attendance of each director at such Board
meetings during 2005 is set out below:

%%g-ulﬁz
BRBEBAMAERGKNEERHEERRRIG
HBIN 2BEZTGNLOEFEARLRITNAR
R EENGLERRMEEAREE  EF
BEASE PR RREE  ETUBR
EH CEEGNEEY  LHIE  MRERE
ERERD URBTEEREZRE S2EF
ER_TTRFABRTIEFTGERILFEE
LU

Meetings Attended™ Attendance Rate

Members of the Board EEERE HERE HE=R
Chairman TE
Chu Mang Yee R 6/9 67%
Executive directors HITEF
Xiang Bin T8, 2/9 22%
Wu Jiesi HER 5/5@ 100%
Au Wai Kin B (& 22 9/9 100%
Chen Chang Ying PR & 3/9 33%
Tam Lai Ling RS 5/5 @ 100%
Xiao Yan Xia EEE 9/9 100%
Non-executive directors FFHITEF
Chen Xiaohong PR /INAT 3/3@ 100%
Hu Yongmin B N/A A E R @ N/A i A
Steven Shafran i) 3/3® 100%
Independent non-executive directors B IFHTTEE
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip B b 12 8/9 89%
Lee Tsung Hei, David TMEE 8/9 89%
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver A 9/9 100%
Notes: Wt -
1. The meetings were held on 7th March 2005, 23rd March 2005, 1. ZECHRIIR_ETRF=A+LH - :ggﬁ

7th April 2005, 18th April 2005, 14th July 2005, 9th August 2005, F=ZA=Z+=H ZZTTEAFW™ALH

13th September 2005, 14th October 2005 and 16th November ZRFOMA+NH - ZEERFLA+MIHA

2005.

2. Mr. Wu Jiesi and Mr. Tam Lai Ling were both appointed on 29th
April 2005.

3. Ms. Chen Xiaochong was appointed on 13th September 2005.

4. Mr. Hu Yongmin was appointed on 28th November 2005.

5. Mr. Steven Shafran was appointed on 9th August 2005.

—EEAE/\AAR  ZEERENATE
B —TTEFHATMAR-TTREF+—
AtABBA -

2. RRERALEREREALHR _TTAFMA
T NBREEE-

3. BMIEZTR=ZZETRAFNAA+T=BEZEF -

4. WMBECEER-_TERFT AT+ N\HEZ
£

5 MEBAEER-_ZZTRFNANAEZRE-
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There are fourteen additional Board meetings held during 2005
for the sole purpose of approving some operational matters such
as opening of bank accounts and the provision of guarantees by
the Company in respect of bank loans granted to the Company’s
subsidiaries which were attended by certain executive directors,
namely Mr. Chu Mang Yee (14)*, Mr. Wu Jiesi (10)*, Mr. Tam Lai
Ling (10)*, Mr. Chen Chang Ying (4)*, Mr. Au Wai Kin (14)* and Ms.
Xiao Yan Xia (14)*.

1. ( )* denotes the number of meetings attended by the

director.

2. Ten meetings were held after the appointment of Mr. Wu
Jiesi and Mr. Tam Lai Ling to the Board.

Between meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the directors with information on a timely basis regarding
the activities and developments in the businesses of the Group
and meet with the non-executive directors (including the
independent non-executive directors) to seek their views on the

business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting

which are available to all directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six non-executive directors of whom three are
independent. The non-executive directors are not appointed for
a specific term with the exception of Mr. Steven Shafran who is
appointed for a term of three years. This constitutes a deviation
from Code provision A.4.1 with respect to the appointment of
non-executive directors for a specific term subject to re-election.
However, all the directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of
the Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective
of the Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Wu Jiesi. The role of the
Chairman is segregated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing
leadership to the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies,
business directions and policies of the Company. He ensures that
the Board works effectively and encourages the directors to make
a full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the
support of the executive directors and the company secretary,
the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive complete

and reliable information in a timely manner.

As Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wu is directly responsible for the
day-to-day management of the business of the Company, co-
ordinating overall business operations and maintaining the
operational performance of the Company. With the assistance of
the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures that the funding
requirements of the business are met and closely monitors the
operating and financial results against plans and budget, taking
remedial action when necessary and advising the Board of any

significant developments and issues.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee, which comprises all three
independent non-executive directors, meets at least once a year.
It is charged with the responsibility of assisting the Board in
achieving its objective of attracting and retaining directors and
senior management of the highest calibre and experience needed
to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure for setting policies on the remuneration
of directors and senior management of the Company and for
determining their remuneration packages. It is chaired by Mr.
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the

Remuneration Committee include:—

e  to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

e to establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief

Executive Officer and senior management;

e torecommend to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of the directors (including non-executive
directors and the Chief Executive Officer) and senior

management;
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e to determine the remuneration of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind and

compensation payments;

e  to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to

executive directors and senior management;

e to determine the criteria for assessing employee

performance;

e to consider the annual performance bonus for executive
directors, senior management and the general staff and

make recommendation to the Board.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during
2005 to make recommendation to the Board of the remuneration
of the non-executive directors and the meeting was attended by

all its members.

No director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of the independent non-executive directors in
respect of the year ended 31st December 2005 was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the 2005 annual general

meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee. New
directors, being individuals who are suitably qualified and
expected to make a positive contribution to the performance of
the Board having regard to the balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the Company’s business, are identified by existing
directors and submitted to the Board for approval. A director
appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders

at the first annual general meeting after his appointment.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
During the year, the fees paid to the Company’s auditors for
audit services amounted to HK$2,350,000 (2004: HK$1,500,000)
and for non-audit services, primarily for assignments undertaken
in relation to the issuance of the senior guaranteed notes,
amounted to HK$3,429,000 (2004: Nil).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company's Audit Committee comprises the three
independent non-executive directors and Mr. Hu Yongmin, a non-
executive director. It is chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The
Board is of the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee
have sufficient accounting and financial management expertise
or experience to discharge their duties. However, the Audit
Committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or other
independent professional advice and to secure the attendance
of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers
necessary. The Audit Committee has specific written terms of
reference which are posted on the Company's website. The

principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

e to make recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors and to

consider the terms of such appointments.

e to develop and implement policies on the engagement of

external auditors for non-audit services.

®  to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual
and interim reports and the auditors’ report to ensure that
the information presents a true and balanced assessment of

the Group'’s financial position.

e to ensure that management has fullfilled its duty to maintain

an effective internal control system.

e to review the internal audit programme and to ensure that it

is allocated with adequate resources and is effective.

e  toreview the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to management, and

management’s response.
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In 2005, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an
assessment of the Group's internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other
irregularities. With respect to the results of the Company for the
year ended 31st December 2005, the Audit Committee reviewed
with senior management and the auditors of the Company their
respective audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements of the Company and the annual report and accounts
of the Company. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
external auditors’ remuneration. There was no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

During 2005, there were two Audit Committee meetings and
those Audit Committee members who attended are set out

below:
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Meetings Attended
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Attendance Rate

HESBRE HER
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip sl 1 50%
Lee Tsung Hei, David FE= 2 100%
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver E=ARE 2 100%
Hu Yongmin © B HO N/A 1iEH N/A i A

(i)  After the appointment of Mr. Hu Yongmin, on 28th November 2005,
no Audit Committee meeting was held up to the end of 2005.

The Audit Committee

recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

reports its work, findings and
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BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, two other Board committees have been established

to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee
The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee was established on 4th October 2005 and is
comprised of the three independent non-executive directors
and Mr. Hu Yongmin, a non-executive director, and chaired
by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The primary function of the
Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee is to review all connected transactions and
related party transactions to ensure that they are conducted
on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group and to recommend to the

Board corrective measures in such transactions if needed.

(2) Option Shares Committee
The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th
November 2005 and comprised of two executive directors.
Its primary function is to deal with the allotment and issue of
shares of the Company upon the exercise of options granted
or to be granted under the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 4th November 2002.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects.
It is also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true and
fair view of the Group's financial position on a going-concern
basis and other price-sensitive announcements and financial
disclosures. Management provides the Board with the relevant

information it needs to discharge these responsibilities.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31st December
2005, the directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, and have made judgements and

estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a
timely manner within the limits of four months and three months,
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid

down in the Listing Rules.
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The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests. The Group, through its Internal Control
Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate
use, maintain proper accounts and ensure compliance with
regulations. The Internal Control Department reports directly to
the Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports
independently to the Board. The Internal Control Department is
independent of all management functions of the Group and has
direct and independent access to the Board. Summaries of major
audit findings and control weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

In 2005, no suspected frauds and irregularities, internal control
deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws, rules and
regulations have come to the attention of the Audit Committee
to cause it to believe that the system of internal controls is

inadequate.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors where
appropriate to ensure that they are aware of their continuing

obligations as directors and corporate governance matters.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
Different

communication channels have been maintained with the media,

relations and communications with its investors.

analysts and fund managers through meetings, senior
management’s participation in investor forums, conferences and
roadshows. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them

abreast of the Company’s development.

To foster effective communications, the Company provides
detailed press releases and reports to shareholders on the
Group's business and financial positions with timely annual report
and interim report. General presentations are made immediately
after the announcement of financial results. The website of the
Group is also updated regularly to inform investors and the

general public of the latest development of the Group.
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The Company's annual general meeting allows the directors to
meet and communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for
the shareholders’ views to be communicated to the Board. All
directors and senior management will make an effort to attend.
External auditors are also available at the annual general meeting
to address shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions were
proposed for each issue considered at the annual general
meeting. The annual general meeting circular is distributed to all
shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures (including procedures for demanding and conducting
a poll) and other relevant information. The procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll were explained by the chairman
presiding at the annual general meeting at the beginning of the
meeting and the proxies received for and against each resolution

were reported to the meeting.
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PRCEWATERHOUSH(QOPERS

BB E A3 F AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 76 to 189 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts
which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate

accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently

applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor Prince's Building
Central Hong Kong
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FERZBMRBR/VHEZERLBERBR
NBESRNEE IALXFREREFAEK
SRR - (EHA B 2 HEE - HIFHBE R
AZBE AR ERE T2 ERE R
ERERH - ARBENBERM2EXIIEE
RTIERRHEEEZER -
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OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2005 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 April 2006.

AUDITORS’ REPORT #HEE®WEH

R
AZBMRBA - Lz RERAEERA Vi
BREAREESEN _ZTAF+-_A=+
—REERZHBRR - REREEEZA L
FEZANMEZRE - WIRREE (QFHF
) 2WBEERMEZRBES -

BERKESTMEBA
EVCEE S LN

&6 —FEAEMATZA
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BALANCE SHEETS
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==
&

As at 31 December 2005
R-ZFTRF+=—H=+—H

=

Consolidated Company
SE A F
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZRE —TTWF ZEEEF —TIEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 aF BET T BT T BT BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Leasehold land and HELH R
land use rights T A 6 426,499 760,827 - -
Properties and equipment ENE L 7 938,913 709,777 - -
Investment properties ®EYE 8 2,583,313 2,835,469 - =
Properties under RIERMKZE
development for ZERPYE
long-term investment 9 234,411 338,586 - -
Intangible assets BREE 12 102,142 (155,846) - =
Investments in subsidiaries RIBRAZRE 13 - - 4,276,351 833,769
Investment in an associate i L /NG
ZRAE 14 80 36 - -
Investment in a jointly A — [ £k Rl 2
controlled entity ERRCERE 15 867,632 256,761 - =
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE E 23 51,962 47,272 - =
5,204,952 4792882 4,276,351 833,769
Current assets MBEE
Land use rights T fE A 6 5,131,465 3,775,910 - -
Properties under AftHE 2
development for sale ERPYE 10 4,320,803 2,775,320 - =
Completed properties for sale  AIEH&E 2 BEEK Y% 11 1,071,604 1,177,729 - -
Prepayments, deposits and BRFIE - Rek
other current assets Hivn#) &= 17 1,171,863 758,574 422 422
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 18 90,324 80,789 - =
Due from related companies FEW R E AR IA 38 2,285 2,170 - -
Pledged/charged BEA R
bank deposits SRITIE 19 237,068 258,650 - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 19 2,353,280 477,959 496,750 860
14378692 9307101 497,072 1,282
LIABILITIES 8%
Current liabilities mBaE
Accounts payable FE 1 BR 5K 21 800,524 662,854 - -
Land cost payable & L3k A 20 1,000,039 828,128 - -
Borrowings & X 22 1,837,342 1,957,752 - -
Deferred revenue RIE W 2,840,429 3,408,938 - =
Accruals and other payable HRBAR
HAth & 5 1B 816,237 451,049 45,536 1,428
Due to an associate JE 15 — Rl Bt = R B 3R IR 38 5,146 1,192 - -
Due to directors T EEHIA 38 13,891 5,667 - =
Due to related companies FENEEARIEA 38 266,362 479,818 - -
Due to a jointly FE T — R 4L Al
controlled entity G E R IR 38 148,117 391,006 - =
Due to a holding company ANE S NGIE 38 18,997 = - =
Current tax liabilities AHREEE 584,191 353,051 - =
8,331,275 8539455 45,536 1,428
Net current assets/(liabilities) ~ RB&EE,/ (AFE) FE 6,047,417 767,646 451,636 (14¢)
Total assets less current BEERRDAR
iabilities 11252369 5560528 472,987 833,623
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A4 AlE @A KE 2 7
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Non-current liabilities
Land cost payable
Borrowings
Deferred revenue
Deferred tax liabilities
Due to a director

Due to a holding company

Net assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves
attributable to the
Company’s equity holders
Share capital

Reserves

Minority interest

Total equity

Note
k3
FERDEE
JIE 5F £ 3 B AR 20
a3 22
RIE W
FEERIEEE 23
BN —REEHIA 38
iR NG E O] 38
EEFE
B
RARBRERE A
FEAh AR AR K (ot
N 24
(] 25
DEIR R
R A

The notes are an integral part of the consolidated balance

sheet and the Company’s balance sheet.

BALANCE SHEETS

EERBMER

As at 31 December 2005
R-ZEERF+—HA=+—H

Consolidated Company
) NF
2005 2004 2005 2004
Z22HF _—TTME ZBTIF _—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
522 190,566 - -
4,826,851 1,547,805 2,660,902 -
47,255 49,640 - -
612,466 374,743 - -
- 10,000 - _
- 59,000 - -
5,487,094 - 2231754 2,660902 - .
5,765,275 3,328,774 2,067,085 833,623
121,360 100,300 121,360 100,300
5,342,348 3,073,427 1,945,725 733,323
5,463,708 3,173,727 2,067,085 833,623
301,567 155,047 - -
5,765,275 3,328,774 2,067,085 833,623
REEERABRERARAEERBERWMIAL
FEEABREP O -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= A = S Z
:%/T\ (=] EI:,E\ m %‘:Z
As at 31 December 2005
HE-FERET A=t ALUEE

2005 2004
—EBEF —ETNE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K&t BT T BT T
Sales 5 & #8 5 6,133,894 3,973,184
Cost of sales &R AR (4,189,275) (2,895,770)
Gross profit EF 1,944,619 1,077,414
Other gains Hoh U 26 279,376 117,706
Selling and marketing costs HERMISHEEER 27 (202,920) (180,699)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHE B 27 (340,035) (241,898)
Operating profit 2 & g A 1,681,040 772,523
Finance costs Eﬁikﬁﬁ 29 (59,966) (13,375)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate o — R = AR
Al (ER) 14 44 (734)
Share of profit of and other gains 216 — A R =
relating to a jointly controlled entity 2 88 Al & H b Uk 2% 15 191,509 57,732
Profit before taxation B 352 Bl s A 1,812,627 816,146
Taxation BiIA 30 (611,446) (298,338)
Profit for the year 5 A 1,201,181 517,808
Attributable to: FEMh -
Equity holders of the Company RAFIRERE A 1,217,323 432,785
Minority interest D HRR R (16,142) 85,023
1,201,181 517,808
Earnings per share for profit RENKRBIREREA
attributable to the equity holders G RN E 2 Z AN
of the Company during the year
- Basic — &N 32 HK$1.13385T  HK$0.43/87T
- Diluted — 858 32 HK$1.13787  HK$0.43 /87T
Dividends % 2 33 412,494 90,270
The notes are an integral part of the consolidated income FeBRmrMaREeERREFR 55 -
statement.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e B @m B ¥ K

| I
For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE—FTRF+—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ADFREFE AR
Share Minority
capital Reserves interest Total
DE
&S #E  RRER “ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT EB%Tx BETT
Balance at 1 January 2004 R-ZZEZEWE—-—H—H
2 EEER 100,200 2,544,804 489,334 3,134,338
Surplus on revaluation of REMEZ BB
investment properties - 207,246 36,730 243,976
Revaluation reserve transferred to HEREVERKERS
the income statement upon Bak 2 EHHE
disposal of investment properties - (52,317) (9,472) (61,789)
Currency translation differences EWIE 5 = (7) = 7)
Net income recognised RiEamh EE
directly in equity HERFHBA = 154,922 27,258 182,180
Profit for the year FER A - 432,785 85,023 517,808
Total recognised income for the BE_TZTMF
year ended 31 December 2004 +ZA=+—Hl
FEDERKA B - 587,707 112,281 699,988
Proceeds from issue of share, net 1T (D Z P15 5 A
of share issue expenses (R ETRZ)
— Employee share option scheme —1{& BfER#EFT S| 100 1,066 = 1,166
Capital contribution by minority KB A 7 DB R
interest of subsidiaries EWmEE = = 4,365 4,365
Acquisition of minority IWEHRB AR
interest in subsidiaries DEBCR - - (369,929)  (369,929)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W i — T B A 7 - - 46 46
Dividends paid 2R E - (60,150) (81,050) (141,200)
100 (59,084)  (446,568)  (505,552)
Balance at 31 December 2004 RZZEZTME
+=ZA=+—H
AR 100,300 3,073,427 155,047 3,328,774

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE—TTERAF+-_A=+—HIFZF

IN EQUITY

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ARARRERFEE AENL
Share Minority
capital Reserves interest Total
D
@S #E RRER “ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT AEBEFTT BT
Balance at 1 January 2005 RZZETRFE—H—H
ZEEER 100,300 3,073,427 155,047 3,328,774
Reclassification of negative HEEEENYI B
goodwill to retained earnings IR & F = 164,890 = 164,890
Balance at 1 January 2005 after %‘?T/Fﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂgﬂ%é?é
opening adjustments N_ZEZERF—H—H
2@k W8800  s236,017 | 1557 A58
Currency translation differences EHIEH =58 = 62,133 5,171 67,304
Profit/(loss) for the year FEwMN, (BE) - 1,217,323 (16,142) 1,201,181
Total recognised income/(expense) BIZ_ZTZT R F
for the year ended TZA=T—RHIEFE
31 December 2005 BREA (FAX)
mE ST
Proceeds from issue of share, BTS2 FTIS R0E
net of share issue expenses (HMBREEITRX)
— Placements — B f% 20,060 936,659 = 956,719
— Employee share option scheme —1{& BfER#EFT S| 1,000 42,000 = 43,000
Share-based payment AR A R EL T 2 (B
(Share options granted) (BERHZBERRE) - 23,447 - 23,447
Capital contribution by minority M B AR DB R
interest of subsidiaries EREE = = 30,700 30,700
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEEKTE AT - - 191,758 191,758
Dividends paid 2R E - (177,531) (64,967) (242,498)
21060 sM575 _ 157491 1003126
Balance at 31 December 2005 RZZEZERFE+A
=+-B2&t 121,360 5342348 301,567 5,765,275
The notes are an integral part of the consolidated statement of GERREHRMARGEEREHREF—
changes in equity. B o
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E E R A 7
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Mainland China enterprise

income tax paid
Mainland China land

appreciation tax paid

Net cash generated from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions of properties
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
properties and equipment

Additions of leasehold land
and land use rights

Additions of properties under
development for long-term
investment

Acquisition of further interests
in subsidiaries

Cash acquired on acquisition
of subsidiaries

Advanced payment for acquisition
of equity interest

Capital injection to a jointly
controlled entity

Decrease in amounts due from
related companies

Decrease in pledged/charged
bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

/e B’ & R 2 X
For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE_EEREf A=+ HIFFE
2005 2004
—gREFE —TTOF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K aF BT T BB
RETBHz2HERE
KEEEZRSE 34 456,663 1,375,356
2R & 17,382 4,484
BERNEBNEH (21,474) (21,526)
B R B K B 2 PR 1S
(336,372) (296,636)
B A5 A B K B b 3 (B
(24,505) (650)
KEEBELE RS FHE
91,694 1,061,028
RETHZHERE
BAYEREE
(242,455) (682,400)
&S W) 2 R R AE FT 1S 508
1,326 -
EAHE T & - Hhfsh A
(71,657) (22,519)
BARERRE
ZEBERPYE
(90,217) (466,554)
E—HRENB AR
(503,643) (27,409)
HEWENBARBRBZES
3,180 (3,801)
Ut i % A 25 2 TS 3B
(347,951) =
m—EERESEREEE
(66,916) (95,497)
JiE UK 853 A &) ZRIE R, A
157 968
BRI B ITEROR D
23,840 51,082
KEFESMACE ©F5E (1,294,336) (1,246,130)

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #x &

For the year ended 31 December 2005
BE—TTERAF+-_A=+—HIFZF

2005 2004
—EZHF —ETNE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K&t BT T EEET T
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBZRESHRE
New short-term bank loans FEERITE R 886,043 473,890
Repayments of short-term bank loans (Ei& 5 BiIR1TE X (604,641) (967,462)
New long-term bank loans g REIRITE R 1,935,475 1,552,642
Repayment of long-term bank loans EERHEITER (2,025,297) (599,830
Advances from directors BEEAK 1,984 4,111
Repayments to directors BEEZEFHN (3,800) (366)
Advances from related companies EEPCR/NGIE=E 90,009 52,441
Repayments to related companies BEBAEQNRRBR (121,161) (93,348)
Advances from an associate — B & R Al # R 3,905 (1,034)
Advances from a jointly — R R H B fE 8
controlled entity 884,273 431,317
Repayments to a jointly B8 — [ E %
controlled entity BRI (1,132,954) (225,658)
(Repayment to)/advances (BE) /ZERAF
from holding company (40,003) 27,000
Interest paid 252 (262,917) (205,213)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRR D P15 5B 1,020,925 1,170
Share issue expenses BIIROHAX (21,206) 4)
Issue of senior notes BIIRARE 2,733,182 -
Senior notes issue expenses BITERARERX (73,965) -
Capital contributions from minority M A ALz D EAR R
interest of subsidiaries & REE 30,700 4,365
Dividends paid to Company's K3 T AR B iR
equity holders BEARE (177,531) (60,150)
Dividends paid to minority RETHEBARZ
interest of subsidiaries DT EHRR B (64,967) (81,050)
Net cash generated from MEERDELECREFHE
financing activities 3,058,054 | 312,821
Net increase in cash and ReRBEESEEY
cash equivalents Z IR 5 1,855,412 127,719
Cash and cash equivalents FYHReRAEEEBY
at beginning of the year 477,959 350,247
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash RehBHeEEBYMZ
and cash equivalents FEH s (FE) 19,909 (7)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 2353280 00,957
The notes are an integral part of the consolidated cash flow HeRenERMARGEEREREREF —
statement. B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
TV

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is mainly
engaged in the development of residential properties in
Mainland China. The Group is also involved in some ancillary
property related businesses, including property investment,

property management and hotel operations.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 13 April
2006.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years

presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, which are carried

at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

B B ® x KM &

—BAR
BEAREEARAR ([AR7A]) RE
MEBAR (M [ANEE]) TREEFH
REFEMFRER - AKETR2EERDY
XAENBEBHERMRERE - NXEE
RBEEE -

ARRBRBREFMKXIHNERELA
A+ HE 9 E & ik & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,

Bermuda °

ARTRNEBBARFHERAT LT -

BRABEBIN  NESMBERRIAET
(MBETT]) IR - REAMBRRE
RIZEZRFOA+=BREETSZAET

%o

EEFHRRHE

ARG EMBREREAZEEGFTHR
I - BRRAHRAIN - ZFBERERR
BAEFEMRAE B -

2.1 RBEE
RRB iz BBk KREBT G
WmEER ([BBMBREEL]) &
Bl o RERE WK IIRE LK AIE
BlRE - WEMBREMFE 2SR (M
ANTFEEAR) (FHFAE -

HERBM B RS ERRRY % HREKE
FRBETERZE5TfER - MEX
EEENRAAKESTRRZBRE
PR HIE o R E S HIE RAE
ZHE SHENEEWBHREAME B
ERZBERMAERT  BEME4RE

E‘g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&%&

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In 2005, the Group has adopted the new/revised
standards and interpretations of HKFRSs below, which
are relevant to its operations. The 2004 comparatives
have been amended as required, in accordance with
the relevant requirements.

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.1

REEE (&)
RANFTAT, AN AT BB B
A

R-TTRE  FEBRA TR
%5 AR I/ ST E B
XA o —TTMEL HEKTOR
AR AR R AT A 2 4T -

HKAS 1

BB G ERE 158
HKAS 2

SR G ERE 258
HKAS 7
BESEERZE 7 5%
HKAS 8

BB G ERE 8%
HKAS 10

BB G ERE 105
HKAS 16

BB GTTERE 169
HKAS 17

BB G ERE 17 5%
HKAS 21

BB G ERE 21 5%
HKAS 23

BB G ERE 235
HKAS 24

BB G ERE 24 5%
HKAS 27

BB G ERE 27 %
HKAS 28

ER G ERE 28 5%
HKAS 31

BB G ERE 31 5%
HKAS 32

BB G ERE 325
HKAS 33

BB G ERE 335
HKAS 36

BB G ERE 36 9%
HKAS 38

BB G R 38 5%
HKAS 39

BB G ERE 395

Presentation of Financial Statements
Mg HER < 28

Inventories

A

Cash Flow Statements

RemER

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

GETER - @A EE R RERELE

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

mERARER

Property, Plant and Equipment

ME - BENRE

Leases

HE

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
ExBE B

Borrowing Costs

fEERA

Related Party Disclosures

B A TR EE

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
fra kBB REK

Investments in Associates

REHE QA

Investments in Joint Ventures

REAERTA

Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation
MBTHE  BERER

Earnings per Share

FRR2F

Impairment of Assets

BERE

Intangible Assets

BVEE

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

MBTH  BALTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKAS 39 Amendment

ARG EUE9HR (&
HKAS 40

BB G ERIE 4057
HKAS-Int 15
BAEEA -RE15
HKAS-Int 21

BAG £ —2E 2
HKFRS 2
BAEMBHEERE 25
HKFRS 3
BAMBREERE IR
HK-Int 2

A —BE2

HK-Int 3

BE-BES3
HK-Int 4

B -—RE4

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16,
21,23, 24, 27, 28, 31, 32, 33, 39, 39 Amendment , HKAS- 12"
Int 15, HK-Int 2 and HK-Int 4 did not result in substantial

changes to the Group's accounting policies. In summary:

- HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority —
interest, share of net after-tax results of associates

and jointly controlled entities and other

disclosures.

- HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 23, 27, 28, 31, 33, HKAS-Int —
15, HK-Int 2 and HK-Int 4 had no material effect on

the Group's policies.

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.1 REEE (B)

Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
TREERSRABZBERVITHER
Investment Property
REME
Operating Leases — Incentives
REME - KRB
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
PSR- REEE/RZFNERE
Share-based Payments
VAR A7 R EE 7 2 (B A
Business Combinations
%A bt
The Appropriate Policies for Hotel Properties
BIEMEZ B BHEK
Revenue — Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale
of Development Properties
WA-SHEZRMEZBIEEL
Leases — Determination of the Length of Lease Term in

respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

HE-EiIRELMENEER RE

R EETBER G ENS
7810162123
24 ~27 2831323339
395 (B5]) - BB ERHER -2
15 FE-2B2REL-2BA4LE
HAKEZ G RRBENERES -

BWIEME -
BB T ERE 1 RYE DR
RS - DREEE N R R LR

ERG B EEFE L 2R
ERBEEERYE -

BB gt 2ERIZE278: 10
16 ~ 2327 ~ 28~ 31 » 335 -
BB ETER -RE 15 - BE -
ZE2REE -REAHAEEZ
HRITEEATE -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B R R M A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

i

2.1 REEE (B)

—  HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group's — BAGTERE 21 REAEH
policy. The functional currency of each of the LHENEEANZE - KixEE
consolidated entities has been re-evaluated based BERIN AL B B IR IR S T ER

on the guidance to the revised standard. The
Company and subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong and British Virgin Islands have their functional
and presentation currency as Chinese Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars respectively. The Mainland
China subsidiaries have their functional and

presentation currency in Chinese Renminbi.

HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related

parties and some other related-party disclosures.

HKASs 32, 39 and 39 Amendment affected certain

financial assets and liabilities disclosures.

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy relating to the
reclassification of leasehold land and land use rights
from properties and equipment, properties under
development for long-term investment, properties
under development for sale and completed properties
for sale to prepaid operating leases payments. The up-
front prepayments made for the leasehold land and land
use rights are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease or where
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the
income statement. In prior years, the leasehold land
included in leasehold land and buildings was accounted
for at cost less accumulated deprecation and
accumulated impairment losses; and the land use rights
included in construction in progress and properties
under development for long-term investment were
accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment
losses; and the land use rights included in properties
under development for sale and completed properties
for sale were accounted for at the lower of costs and
net realisable value. The transitional provisions require
retrospective application of this new policy and
accordingly the 2004 comparative figures had reflected

the retrospective effect of the change.

ZIEBIEH G - AABRERE
B R RB R X BB AR S A%
R B AR RAARE BT
DRAERENGEERRZIE
% o MEAEMHEARIEERR
ARBERNGEEERZNEE -

Re &

EBGTENE 245 EEEA
TZHENRETHMBAEALZ
BEAEMTE -

BB GFTAERIZE 32 « 39 & 3957
(183]) HIETEMEERARE
ZHEBEBFEE -

RMEIET 2 BB G ERNFE 175
HEREST AR ERRETZ
THERE  FERMEEZERT
WE  AIHBEZERTPYERAMH
HEZCERMEEF D EREER
EEMNFAZ G BRLBRES - H
§ 3 o 3 (50 PR 4 2 BT R TR SRR
HREEMRANEREERRRA
OBR - S IRBIE - RER R B
RAMEG - RIBEFE - BREREE
T3 RAEF R TEE £ 3 TH B R
RETERRABEEBRIIE M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

21 WBEE (8)

The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy for which the changes in
fair values of investment properties are recorded in the
income statement from 1 January 2005. In prior years,
the increases in fair value were credited to the investment
properties revaluation reserve. Decreases in fair value
were first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter expensed in the
income statement. The transitional provisions do not
require retrospective application of this new policy to
restate the amounts for previous years, and in this
connection the Group has chosen not to reflect the effect
of this change in the 2004 comparative figures. The
investment property revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$1,147,498,000 as at 31 December 2004 has been
transferred to retained earnings on 1 January 2005, in

accordance with the transitional provisions.

The adoption of revised HKAS-Int 21 has resulted in a
change in the accounting policy relating to the
measurement of deferred tax liabilities arising from the
revaluation of investment properties. Such deferred tax
liabilities are measured on the basis of tax
consequences that would follow from recovery of the
carrying amount of that asset through use. In prior years,
the carrying amount of that asset was expected to be
recovered through sale. The transitional provisions
require retrospective application of this new policy and
accordingly the 2004 comparative figures reflected the

retrospective effect of the change.

The adoption of HK-Int 3 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to revenue recognition
arising from the sale of properties. Such revenue is
recognised only upon completion of the related sale
agreement, which refers to the time when properties
are completed and delivered to the buyers. In prior
years, revenue from the sale of properties under
development was recognised according to the
percentage of completion method and the sale of other
properties was recognised upon signing of the sales
and purchase agreements. The transitional provisions
allow retrospective application of this new policy and in
this connection the Group has chosen to reflect the
retrospective effect of the change in the 2004

comparative figures.

FEMEIEETE A ST ERE 40558
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FEZEHN _ZTTAF—HF—BE
RABERAN - RBAFE - AFE
M ABREESHREE A F
BZRLELIREEEERER 2
BN - HERNBmRNk - 8
B ARSI 4 35 TE I TE AT IR SR B B I T
RAULBINFFESE Bt - A5EE
EETE_ZSTNFZARETHR
M S o8  c RZTEEWFE =
A=+ —HBZEEMESEHRBED
1,147,498,000 7 7T B ik B 18 & 1§ X
sl R =—ETRhF— A —BEERE
B o

RMEET TR GTER —2E 21
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MRBBEZFETEZEFHRELR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for share-based payments. Until 31
December 2004, the provision of share options to employees
did not result in an expense in the income statement.
Effective 1 January 2005, the Group expenses the cost of
share options in the income statement. The transitional
provisions require retrospective application of this new policy
on prescribed situations, which are not applicable to the
Group, and accordingly the 2004 comparative figures had
not reflected the effect of this change.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 38 results
in a change in the accounting policy for goodwill and
negative goodwill. Until 31 December 2004, goodwill was
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging
from 5 to 10 years and assessed for an indication of
impairment at each balance sheet date; negative
goodwill not relating to any identifiable future losses or
expenses at the date of acquisition and not exceeding
the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired, was
recognised in the income statement over the period of
utilisation of those assets. In accordance with the
provisions of HKFRS 3 (Note 2.8), the Group ceased
amortisation of goodwill from 1 January 2005, with
accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2004 being
eliminated with a corresponding decrease in the cost of
goodwill. From the year ended 31 December 2005
onwards, goodwill will be tested annually for impairment,
as well as when there is indication of impairment; excess
of interest of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/business at the date of
acquisition over the cost of an acquisition is recognised
in the income statement. The Group has reassessed the
useful lives of its intangible assets in accordance with
the provisions of HKAS 38 and no adjustment resulted
from this reassessment. The transitional provisions allow
retrospective application of this new policy under certain
situations, which are not applicable to the Group, and
accordingly the 2004 comparative figures had not
reflected the effect of this change. In accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, the Group ceased
amortisation of goodwill from 1 January 2005 and
accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2004 of
approximately HK$7,576,000 being eliminated with a
corresponding decrease in the cost of goodwill. Negative
goodwill of approximately HK$164,890,000 as at 31
December 2004 has been transferred to retained
earnings on 1 January 2005.

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.1

REELE (&)
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HERETENBERAMR - 8=
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HRMEBYHHRELEREIH - BB
SEEAE 6FEREB G ERE
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A UREEE B 0] #5 2 RREE R
FxXimBTBarmliE e EaE
ZAFE - AREEERAHREERS
RER - BEB BV HREERSE 3
SRZIEX (HE28) » AEBH T
TRFE—A—HERKUESERE M
HE _ZZWFE+_A=+—HILR
FHEESEE EE KA 2 MEFE R R
e HEE_TTRFE+ _A=1—
HIEFER BESSFEREERE
BRERBRE - NEEBEEFTE
MEBAR, EENRKEE B Zr#5
BEFEZEDZBORERARZH
B RBERRER - AREERE
BB eERE BREHBEFLEE
Z A {EFRFE - B EE BT
B o BE IR R FT U TERBURTESR T
BRTEHER MZxSBERTES
RAEE - Bt —EZETWFEHRK
FIWERBRIEE 2 HE - RIBEFD
B AR A RIS 3 5 2 BIE R A
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ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F 5§ W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
All changes in the accounting policies have been made
in accordance with the transition provisions in the
respective standards, wherever applicable. All standards
adopted by the Group require retrospective application
other than:

—  HKAS 16 - the initial measurement of an item of
properties and equipment acquired in an exchange
of assets transaction is accounted at fair value
prospectively only to future transactions;

-  HKAS 21 - prospective accounting for goodwill and
fair value adjustments as part of foreign operations;

- HKAS 39 - does not permit to recognise,
derecognise and measure financial assets and
liabilities in accordance with this standard on a
retrospective basis. The Group applied the
previous SSAP 24 “Accounting for investments in
securities” to investment in securities and also to
hedge relationships for the 2004 comparative
information. The adjustments required for the
accounting differences between SSAP 24 and HKAS
39 are determined and recognised at 1 January
2005;

- HKAS 40 - since the Group has adopted the fair
value model, there is no requirement for the Group
to restate the comparative information, any
adjustment should be made to the retained
earnings as at 1 January 2005, including the
reclassification of any amount held in revaluation
reserve for investment property;

—  HKAS-Int 15 — does not require the recognition of
incentives for leases beginning before 1 January
2005;

—  HKFRS 2 - only retrospective application for all

equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002
and not vested at 1 January 2005; and

—  HKFRS 3 - prospectively after the 1 January 2005.

PN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The effect of the changes in the accounting policies
described above on the equity, results and earnings per

share are as follows:

STATEMENTS 44 B # 3® KR M=

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.1 REEE (B)
AT R gt BORIERTHRA » X
BLERAaNZZE

As at

1 January 2005
R-Z22RF
—RA—H
HK$'000
BT T
Increase/
(decrease)

@, (B)

Equity s
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights FHE 1 ith K2+ ot {55 PR AR s 4 (23,468)
Change in basis of revenue recognition W AFER I EE D) (406,141)
Decrease in deferred tax on change of WEEfEEEEES
basis of recovery of revalued assets BYURER IR R 385,658
Reclassification of negative goodwill to BEREEH AR
retained earnings IREB & A 164,890
120,939
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E E R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZe:AHEHNE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 IRBLEE (&)

For the year ended
31 December 2004

BE_T2NE
+=ZBA=+-—H
LFEE

HK$'000

BT T
Increase/(decrease)

2, OhD)

Results 3
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights THE T &+
1 FA e 8 (4,251)
Change in basis of revenue recognition W AFEREEE D) (193,370)
(197,621)
Attributable to: FEAG
Equity holders of the Company RAFIREREE A (178,465)
Minority interest LSBT ER (19,156)
(197,621)
Earnings per share TR & F
Basic and diluted BER K #E
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights ME T R+ i
{58 P 55 HK$(0.01) & 7T
Change in basis of revenue recognition WA TR E A HK$(0.17) % 7T

HK$(0.18) & 7T

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED AHX A EEBRERARL A 91
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Increase/(decrease)
Consolidated income
statement items for
the year ended
31 December 2004
Sales
Cost of sales
Selling and
marketing costs
Share of profit of a
jointly controlled entity

Taxation

Profit for the year
- attributable to
equity holders of
the Company
- attributable to

minority interest

Eamings per share (HKY)
— basic and diluted

#gm/ ()
BE_ZZNE

+=A=+-ALt
FEZEA
BXREE
Hew
HEMA
HERTH

HE BB PR AN
AE—F LR
EH BB
W

FRIET
— AR
A AER

SkaM (Br)
—EAREE

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.1 REEE (B)

Effect on
Effect on  adoption  Effect on  Effect on
adoption of  of HKAS- adoption of adoption of
HKAS 17 Int 21 HK-Int 3 HKFRS 3 Total
BMEEeH BREEEH BABE- BNERME
EAF17% KR -2E #B3  BEER
ZEE 2128 ZHEBEIVHE A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT A%t AT BT B%TxR
- - (476,729) - (476,729)
4,251 - (149,152) - (144,901)
- - (1,272) - (1,272)
- - 7,239 - 7,239
- - (125,696) - (125,696)
(4,881) - (173,584) - (178,465)
630 - (19,786) - (19,156)
(4,251) - (193,370) - (197,621)
0.01) - 0.17) - 0.18)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FZ@HBERBE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 IRBLEE (&)
Effect on
Effect on  adoption  Effect on  Effect on
adoption of  of HKAS- adoption of adoption of
HKAS 17 Int 21 HK-Int 3 HKFRS 3 Total
BRERET RATEET HNERE- BEREBUE
ERE178 EB-RE 283 HBEER
ZEE NpEE ZEEEIFEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT A¥%Tr A%Tr BT B%T
Consolidated balance sheet R-ZEERF—A—HZ
items as at 1 January 2005 HEEERARRER

Properties and equipment v EYPET (44,395) - - - (44,395)
Investment properties REME - - 192,460 - 192,460
Leasehold land and HETH R

land use rights R 1,043,114 = = - 1,043,114
Properties under RERBREZ

development for ERPME

long-term investment (716,433) - 2,214 - (714,219)
Land pending FERLTH

development (300,920) = = = (300,920)
Intangible assets BWEE = 12,620 (17,103) 164,890 160,407
Investment in a jointly PSRRI B 6

controlled entity ZRE - - (26,588) = (26,588)
Deferred tax assets EERBEE = = 26,741 = 26,741
Land use rights T e 4,104,162 = - - 4,104,162
Properties under REHEZ

development for sale BREAYE (3,769,761) = 896,394 - (2,873,367)
Completed properties REHEZ

for sale EEKME (339,235) = 477,818 = 138,583
Accounts receivable FEIER R = = (255,756) = (255,756)
Total assets e (23468) 12620 129,180 164890 1450222
Deferred revenue EEWA = - 2,094,008 - 2,094,008
Accruals and BREAREM

other payables JE S 58 - - 2,962 = 2,962
Deferred tax liabilities ERFHIBAR - (373,038)  (394,649) = (767,687)
Total liabilities BRE = (373,038) 1,702,321 - 1,329,283
Net assets EEFE (23,468) 385,658 (406,141) 164,890 120,939
Reserves fFi (23,163) 340,292 (397,171) 164,890 84,848
Minority interest DR R E S (305) 45,366 (8,970) - 36,091
Total equity RRAR (23,468) 385,658 (406,141) 164,890 120,939

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 EFTEEHBERME #®)

2.1 REEE (B)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to
published standards that are not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published that are
mandatory to the Group’s accounting period beginning

on or after 1 January 2006 but which the Group has not

early adopted are as follows:-
HKAS 1 Amendment

BEGERIFE 158 (BFT)

HKAS 19 Amendment

R ERIE 195 (EF])

HKAS 39 Amendment

BB ERIE 3958 (1EF])

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
Amendment

BB G ERE 9K R
ERMBHRELERSE 457 (BF])

HKFRS 1 Amendment
BN REAERE 15

HKFRS 3 Amendment

BEMBREELSE IR

M ARERZ ER - R E R
R 2 E5T

AT RETERMZHERURE
B ZEFTLZE - AEEEAR T
TRF-A—BAEFRRZ S5 E
Mo flE ez SR - BT RRE
B IR IR

Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosure
(Effective from 1 January 2007)

BHRREB —EARKE

(ATt F—A—BEER)

Employee Benefits — Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures

(Effective from 1 January 2006)

EERAN—HBEED  SEAENKE
(HZZETRF-A—HBER)

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

(Effective from 1 January 2006)

- The Fair Value Option

(Effective from 1 January 2006)

TRIA: BRALFE-EHEEAXRSRSREY
(EE_7 ERF-A—ARER)
NP EEERE

(H-ZETRF-—A—HRBER)

Financial Guarantee Contracts
(Effective from 1 January 2006)
MBERELN
(BZZEZERF-—H-—BRER)

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
BRRAE B REER

Business Combinations

(Effective from 1 January 2006)
EBa 6
(BZZEZRF-—A—BHEER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

HKFRS 6

FREV B IMEEDE 65

HKFRS 7

BEMBEREENE T

HKFRS-Int 4

BEMHREEN -2 B4

HKFRS-Int 5

BEMBREEN —2ES

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

BE (BRUBHRERERES)

—RE6

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments, new standards

2 FTESHHEHBE #)
21 WEIEE (&)

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
(Effective from 1 January 2006)
BRMFEHEEZR
(H-ZETRF-—A—HBER)

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(Effective from 1 January 2007)
TRITHE : HEE
(BZZEZLF A —BRER)

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
(Effective from 1 January 2006)
ErRHREORREE
(AZZEZRF-—A—BREER)

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
(Effective from 1 January 2006)

BEREL MERRRBEEESMELERNERN
(AZZEZRF-—A—BEER)

Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market — Waste electrical
and electronic equipment
(Effective from 1 December 2005)

I//JHEW% BERERAETRBAELRE
(HZZETRF+T-HA— Eltixﬁl)
AE BB LRSI FER] - #EER

TS = =N - S == =R )

and new interpretations would be in the period of initial TE - ERRAEIE L EFEET - g

application, but is not yet in a position to state whether

these amendments, new standards and new

ZHIRFIERESREHAEE 2 &E
XERMBIRABKERNTE -

interpretations would have a significant impact on the

Group's results of operations and financial position.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 T2e

STBERE &)

2.2 Consolidation 22 fEEHRE

The consolidated financial statements include the FERE BERA R RENE D F]E

financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ETZA=+T— RN B®RE -

made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries (a) K182 7A]
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group MEAREASBE A RS =
has the power to govern the financial and BEEBBERMEGIMEER -
operating policies generally accompanying a — MR BT R R IR R AR
shareholding of more than one half of the voting e AR EAREEESESS—
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting EEERF - B AR /TR Al HRH)
rights that are currency exercisable or convertible BEREENGFERTZEDTE
are considered when assessing whether the Group & o
controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date MEAREEHEEREEARE
on which control is transferred to the Group. They Z BERHEEZRE AR - fIBARE
are deconsolidated from the date that control EHEKILE 2 AREFEIEGEE A
ceases. i o
The purchase method of accounting is used to AEBRABESEHAEE
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the W BT B A RIARR o WA AN IR
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as FriRtt EEATE - EETRA
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments TARRRGBEASNEEZB
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the B0 W B 3 e 2 BN ET
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable B - REBEHFNIERHERIE
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and EHEFAZ BERIAEEN
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a RN KEBR 2 AT EE - |
business combination are measured initially at their R DB R S R o UHERK
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of N8 H 7N 55 (B A1 P UK AT 8k A
the extent of any minority interest. The excess of BEREZ A FEZHEIIER
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the & o AR DR P R B
Group's share of the identifiable net assets NABEFEZATE AIEZR
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of BEERERKBER - (B2WF
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net 2.9) o
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement (see
Note 2.9).
Inter-company transactions, balances and SEARBIZHNRS - KH5H
unrealised gains on transactions between group RANMARBR W E TIASE - R
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are BHREBETTUNEE  BEEE
also eliminated but considered an impairment WEE EEAR AR EEE o i
indicator of an impairment of the asset transferred. BRI BEREETEEL
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been BB DATER AN S B ER A A9 I
changed where necessary to ensure consistency KRG °
with the policies adopted by the Group.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority
interests results in gains and losses for the Group
that are recorded in the income statement.
Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying

value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for by using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified

on acquisition (see Note 2.8).

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group'’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

2 I®®

STBERE &)

22 7R KRE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

K& Al (48)
EARRIZEERBRA - KK
BRI ZRERKAEIREE
EEERII - MEBAR %A
HARBZE W R ERR B A
BE o

LERRERNRS
AEEEDHERENRHBER
HEEAREEIIE=FBERMER -
BRE D BUSCR R a  E E a B
Bk ERMRESSERRTD -
Wis LB R i E LR E
IS A5 s B ERL R AT B FE A BB
AFEERABENHABNEL
FEESR -

B & A]
BENRRIEAAEBEEEE
AEENMEZHENEE 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group'’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in associated companies are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of
associated companies are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where
the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity. Investment in
jointly controlled entity is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, whereby the
investment is initially recorded at cost and is
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition results, distributions
received, other necessary alternations in the
Group's proportionate interest in jointly controlled
entity arising from changes in equity of jointly
controlled entity that have not been included in
the income statement of the jointly controlled
entity, the excess of cost of investment over the
Group's share of the aggregate fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition is tested annually for impairment, as
well as when there is indication of impairment, and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The Group's share of post-acquisition results after
taxation of jointly controlled entities is included in

the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint ventures (Continued)
A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves the
joint control and ownership by the Group and other
parties of assets contributed to, or acquired for
the purpose of, the joint venture is accounted for
as a jointly controlled asset. The Group's share of
jointly controlled assets and any liabilities incurred
jointly with other joint venture partners are
recognised and classified according to the nature
of the relevant items. Income from the sale or use
of the Group’s share of the output of jointly
controlled assets is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, whilst the
Group's share of expenses in respect of jointly

controlled assets is recognised as incurred.

Segment reporting

A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments. A business segment is a group
of assets and operations engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are

different from those of other business segments.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured in Chinese
Renminbi, which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company and
its subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in Hong

Kong dollars, which is the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised as a separate component of

equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations and of borrowings are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing date.

2.5 Properties and equipment
Properties and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Properties and equipment (Continued)

2 EFTEEHBERME #®)

25 MERRZRE (8)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

HZRARBHEEZIA R BRAIARK
REN DB AIRERANEE - M%A
BHRABER] 25T B - A BEESR
ENREEXIERSBLEE (RE
) - FrERMEERREEEEN
MR AR BRI

MERFREOIFTERB A TG
ERFEMERARE[RBERERED
BERMEMETE

follows:

Hotel property 30 years NN ES 30 4
Buildings 50 years BF 50 £
Furniture and office equipment 5 years NS NS S 5%
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years B 3ESF

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
which, upon completion, management intend to hold
for long-term as hotels. These properties are carried at
cost which includes construction expenditures,
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of
such properties and other direct costs less any
impairment losses. On completion, the properties are
transferred to the appropriate categories of properties
and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into

commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are

included in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied

by the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases. Land held under operating leases are classified
and accounted for as investment property when the rest
of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance

lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with the
guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are performed

annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions. The fair value
also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the property. Some of
those outflows are recognised as a liability, including
finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property; others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

2 EFTEEHBERME #®)

26 WEWE (&)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Until 31 December 2004, increases in valuation were
credited to the investment property revaluation reserve.
Decrease in valuation were first set off against increases
on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter
are debited to operating profit. Any subsequent
increases were credited to operating profit up to the
amount previously debited. Effective 1 January 2005,
changes in fair values are recognised in the income

statement as part of other gains.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property is
classified as properties under development for long-
term investment and stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses until construction or development is
complete, at which time it is reclassified and

subsequently accounted for as investment property.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and
the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of properties and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is

recognised in the income statement.

Investment property held for sale without
redevelopment is classified within completed properties
for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

B BHRKRKE

=]

2 EFTEEHBERME #®)

2.7 Properties under development and completed 27 AJHEECERPYWEREEK

properties for sale ES

Properties under development for sale are included in AHEE 2 ERTYWETIRKAER

current assets at the lower of cost and net realisable AERFEMEFNREES RS

value. Properties under development for long-term BE - BIERBKREZERDMET)

investment included in non-current assets are stated at BKAMER E E DR EEERSAIE

cost less any accumulated impairment losses. MBEE - AIMHHE 2 B SRR ER

Completed properties for sale are included in current P ZNE K A 3R A M A R R E

assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value. TBRBEE °

The costs of properties under development and AIHE 7 BERPMERDEKYE

completed properties for sale consist of construction ZRABERERX KRR EZEY

expenditures and borrowing costs directly attributable EXMEEEEZEERAREMER

to construction of such properties and other direct BN o A EAERVRE TR B B BRI

costs. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling FERELRERMABEENMETE

price in the ordinary course of business as determined B - R TR A 5 0 TR 2 A B0 MK

by management with reference to the prevailing market RARHERTSHEERFHE -

conditions, less further costs expected to be incurred

to completion and selling and marketing costs.

No depreciation is provided on properties under REBVWERAIHEEZ ERPYE

development and completed properties for sale. REERYIEFTIRITE -

2.8 Intangible assets 28 BMVEE

(a) Goodwill (a) AZE
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an RIEE W B AR SR AR BRI
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share R Hﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%"‘ /Bt
of the net identifiable assets of the acquired NG il B 88 Al FER B
subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled entity at the EFEZA $TEZ§§E W B I
date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of %’Aﬂ?iZﬁ%%)\ﬂﬁ;;
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. E o WEs e AR R ARIEHE
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly %EZF}?;@ amill .fl‘)\ﬁ?ﬁ%f@j
controlled entities is included in interests in Tﬂ mEHEEGERERS -
associates and interest in a jointly controlled entity
respectively.
Until 31 December 2004, goodwill is amortised on BE_TTENF+_-_A=+—H
a straight-line basis over its estimated economic RIE BEELFZE +FEAK
life of five to ten years. Effective 1 January 2005, BRAHABEAR RS - AT
the Group ceased amortisation of goodwill. THFE—H—HEE  AXEETH
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually HHEE - BUBRIHESSF
for impairment, as well as when there is indication NEBRETRERNESHE
of impairment, and carried at cost less accumulated R AR 25T R EE B °
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill BB ZREBER T TE# -
are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to

the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which the

goodwill arose.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the
Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.
Until 31 December 2004, negative goodwill is
presented in the same balance sheet classification
as goodwill. To the extent that negative goodwill
relates to expectations of future losses and
expenses that are identified in the Group's plan for
the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but
which do not represent identifiable liabilities at the
date of acquisition, that portion of negative
goodwill is recognised in the income statement
when the future losses and expenses are
recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, not
exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary
assets acquired, is recognised in the income
statement over the period of utilisation of those
assets; negative goodwill in excess of the fair values
of those non-monetary asset is recognised in the
income statement immediately. Effective 1 January
2005, the excess of the Group's share of the fair
value of the identifiable net assets over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&%&

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating

units).

2.10 Accounts receivable

Until 31 December 2004, provision is made against
accounts receivable to the extent they are considered
to be doubtful. Accounts receivable in the balance sheet

are stated net of such provision, if any.

Effective 1 January 2005, accounts receivable are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts receivable is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the

provision is recognised in the income statement.

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R
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2.9
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2.11 Cash and cash equivalents 2NBEeRREEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, RekReFEVEEFRES &
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term RIRIT Z BETF R - REAMRE R
highly liquid investments with original maturities of REEAZARMREERS 2B H
three months or less. KRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Share capital

2 FTESHHEHBE #)

2.12 AR

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders until the shares are

cancelled.

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid
to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by
regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

2.14 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the assets

for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

2.16 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations
Group companies operate defined contribution
plans only. The Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory or contractual
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EFTEEHBERME #®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (Continued) 216EERN (&)
(b) Share-based compensation (b) RR1Z##1E
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based REBERE —HNREEE 2K
compensation plan. D EEl -
Until 31 December 2004, the provision of share BEE-ZEWF+-_A=+—H
options to employees did not result in an expense Rk - WiE 8 BERERESER
in the income statement. The proceeds received BRRIEF - NEBRERETT
net of any directly attributable transaction costs e fF - PTUCER 2 BT 1S SRR #2
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and (MBREERGZIXZEAE) T
share premium when the options are exercised. STARAE (HE) RikhmE
EFl o
Effective 1 January 2005, the fair value of the H_TTAF AR %R
employee services received in exchange for the BESMRE R L 2B
grant of the options is recognised as expenses. iRtz AFE - DERAFAX °
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting 1A 7 B8 HA 1A S 8 2 SRIE AR D
period is determined by reference to the fair value KR2EMRLBREZ ATEE
of the options granted, excluding the impact of 5] - BN BB ERIETRLEER
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, H (BN I RHEERE
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market 1F) 28 EMABRBIRMT)
vesting conditions are included in assumptions PMEET AT 1T 2 B AR 2L B
about the number of options that are expected to RERE RNEEEER - BBE
become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, SERTHAMAE A P17 2 B AR
the entity revises its estimates of the number of HEEE o REEIREREITRR - AT
options that are expected to become exercisable. WEL 2 Frie s I8 58 (FIREE
The proceeds received net of any directly BHEZRSKA) That ARA
attributable transaction costs are credited to share (EE) RROEES -

capital (nominal value) and share premium when

the options are exercised.

2.17 Provisions 217 %4

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a EHERUATERSRERZERIER
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of REELEEG  AEERCBENSE
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of HEMEEBRBNERXIEEREME &
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and AR FE2EERREAENEE &
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are BRI FAF - RREEBEET
not recognised for future operating losses. 1ER s -

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the MEZEBUEE  HEZEHEERMF
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement M BRI AT - BIBE EREER
is determined by considering the class of obligations as BEEZR - EER-—BEEEMNME
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood R ER—E1E B AR A B IR H &Y
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in Al (R - 7R R -

the same class of obligations may be small.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 alE&msr 2 109
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sale of properties and

services, net of business tax and after eliminating sales

within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised upon
completion of sale agreement, which refers to the
time when the risks and rewards of the sale
transactions are transferred to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior
to completion of the respective sale agreements
are included as deferred revenue under current

liabilities.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the period of the relevant leases.

Property management fees, property design
fees and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees
and marketing consultancy fees are recognised

when the services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with it and that the

grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate. Grants relating to the
purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related

assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Government grants (Continued)
Amounts received for which the earning process
has not been completed are accounted for as

deferred revenue.

2.19 Operating leases (as the lessee)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The up-front prepayments made for the land use rights
are expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease or where there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the income
statement. In prior years, the land use rights was

accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment.

2.20 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the Company’s shareholders.

2.21 Comparatives
Apart from certain advertising expenses, agency fees,
sales commissions, staff costs and miscellaneous
expenses related to the sales department, all other
expenses previously disclosed within “selling and
marketing costs” for the year ended 31 December 2004,
amounting to approximately HK$69,429,000, are
reclassified to “general and administrative expenses”.
Management believe that their inclusion in “general and
administrative expenses” is a fairer presentation of the

Group's activities.
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B BHRKRKE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 WBERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors 31 MBRREZE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial REBZEBLSHEAZZENBER
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and B SNEREER - EERR  REBES
cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group'’s Rk RIS R EAFERERE - &
overall risk management policy focuses on the SENEESREREEREREINEH
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to T35 R RDRINE - 37 7 SKORME S AR &
minimise potential adverse effect on the Group's B BRENEETNTE - ~EE
financial performance. The Group regularly monitors its KEEAEERZRRER  UREE

exposure and currently considers not necessary to B A /& LE 2R R ] 1k 55 B 75 o e 2

hedge any of these financial risks. 1T%H -

(a) Foreign exchange risk (a) SMEE Sz
Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates REBERIBHIHBRFIHRH
in Mainland China with most of the transactions WA E - MAEBHRZHAAN
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed REHE - REBBEAX 2 INE
to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure FE B AREE BT RETLBE
of Renminbi and US dollars against Hong Kong T2 FE I 5| B o ZNER E I AN
dollars. It has not hedged its foreign exchange rate BEE =< e e ¢F L0 S0 o
risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign b - BAREBE BINEAS
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of FR B A 340 R P A 2 SNEEE 5 A
the foreign exchange control promulgated by the RAIRARDIEEE -

Mainland China government.

(b) Credit risk (b) 1ZEE R
The Group is exposed to concentrations of credit REE B E 20% 2 FE AR R R
risk as over 20% of its trade receivables is due by BE—E—FF  HAXEEE
one single customer. Apart from this concentration, R&F 2R o BERIEASN - &
the Group has no other significant concentrations SEVEREMEERAREDZE
of credit risk. The carrying amount of the accounts R o IR BEEABRABUIRER
receivables included in the consolidated balance ZERHEDAEERESREE
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure ARz &N EERR
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REEZREE
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's ERAEEXRBEEERTREY
business, the Group ensures that it maintains B AEBEREREEERHAZ
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity Re REATEE - LERMER
requirements. BT -

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (d) BB 7w K A FEF X
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing HRAEBITEEAZFGEE
assets, the Group's income and operating cash B AR ZRARKERE
flows are substantially independent of changes in A BUER T 35 1 R E B R o
market interest rates.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(Continued)
The Group's interest-rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group has not

hedged its cash flow and fair value interest-rate

risk.

3.2 Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions

existing at each balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
accounts receivables, accounts payable, balances with
related parties and land cost payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the

Group for similar financial instruments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

3 HIBERERERE @)
31 MBRREAE (&)
(d) B2 i Kk n-FlENERE

(%)
REEFERBRIHRABE
EE - REREESAEBRAZE
eRMERRE - MELEERNS
REEAZAFENERR o &
SENEREE R XA FEF
% & fax 1 (S o

2 AERE
AEHEEBRTS ERXINERMIA
HRAFETVEBEEMRE - A%H
RENGEEAFEIMBER - &
REEIDEEL AR -

FEMRTR - EANRRA - HEEA LT 2
FEER N R AR 2 B R = (AT
:.,\uﬂ%éfﬁ TRFREE R FER

cHEEME eMBEIATE
EBZZFEI—JHX Z*EM/EPEI,E\Z
BITMSAE  BRKRELHBERE
MBELGEE

4 BERGFHERE NHE

HE R A AT 2R XABE
RELHEMERERER  BREBANRE
MATHRREHZAERY -

41 EZSHHEERERR
AEERARELEERBE - £&
=L AltMAeZ 2T HES R EF
M ERGERIER - EEERERERH
TEVRFEcEEHG EREBEE
EARFABCHEERBER R T X®
3t o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A

113



114

B ANNUAL REPORT 2005 £ #}

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(a) Estimated impairment of properties and

equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights, properties under development for
long-term investment and intangible assets.

Properties and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, properties under development for long-
term investment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment at each balance sheet date or
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
The

properties and equipment, leasehold land and land

recoverable. recoverable amounts of
use rights, properties under development for long-
term investment and intangible assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations,
taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculation and valuations

require the use of judgements and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(b) Estimated write-downs of properties under

(c)

development for sale and completed
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under
development for sale and completed properties
for sale to net realisable value based on assessment
of the realisability of properties under
development for sale and completed properties
for sale, taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value
based on prevailing market conditions. If there is
an increase in cost to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease and this might result in write-downs of
properties under development for sale and
completed properties of sale to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value and write-downs of properties under
development for sale and completed properties
for sale in the periods in which such estimate is

changed.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar lease and other
contracts. In the absence of such information, the
Group determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, the Group considers information from

a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or other

adjusted to

contracts), reflect those

differences, by reference to independent

valuations; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those

prices.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision for
taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. There are many transactions and

which

determination is uncertain during the ordinary

calculations for the ultimate tax
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation assets and
taxation in the periods in which such estimate is

changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(e) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's net book value of properties and
equipment as at 31 December 2005 was
approximately HK$938,913,000. The Group
depreciates the hotel property, building, furniture

and office equipment and motor vehicles on a

straight line basis over the estimated useful life of

28 years, 50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5 years,
respectively, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the rate 2% to 33% per annum,
commencing from the date the asset is placed into
productive use. The estimated useful lives and

dates that the Group places the properties and
equipment into productive use reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group

intend to derive future economic benefits from the

use of the Group's assets.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity's
accounting policies
Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but also

to other assets used in the production or supply process.
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BEHEE  ZEFNTF2%E
B 2 MEXRWATREER
TR EER  HEEME &
F - RBMERBAETZEARAE
STEFE - MEAAEHRAS
EEMEREZERAEER G2
HE RBMESHASEEBE
AASEEEEEERREENTR
Z HAR 2 b5t o

42 REBARISHBERBIEHZE

R H iR
DRREYREERYE

AEESEITNERERERKAR
BYE - MELHER - AEESE
B EEBELERNBIBILN QBN
RHEMEEZRESRE - BRYEM
EEXZBREeRETRBHZMELES -
NemEERREBREPAERACH
WEEMEHR °

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 HEZeztHER¥E &)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical

judgements in applying the entity's
accounting po||C|es (Continued)

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in

the production or supply of goods or services or for

42 RNERARE
R H i
DTHRREYEBEERYE ()

EID%J——E& HT{/E::HZE

MOMEA D RIFERDESRHER
BEZED - KEFEEIHREEY
SKARTS AT A& 2 BP0 © fid ok F 26
DASHAEE (REREHEEDH
ﬁ%ﬁ) C AEEKEEZE D DFAA

c MR EFR D A IRALE - &Y
%EQENH’EEFEM—"EJT%““%iHﬁK
HITHAZ 2 B0 AT D ENE -
RHERRREME - RERTHERS
HYEREAERRBRENFEES

EERAFELHE - AEERIELH
BRI @HEBRMEIEBILER

administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in

making its judgement.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 DEER

Primary reporting format — geographical segments FERFEN MR D

The Group operates in five main geographical areas for the AREERAEEEMRELCENTER

following businesses:

Guangdong - property development, property BRE — MEZER VMERERMEE

Province investment and property management i

Beijing — hotel operation, property development, IR — BEER MEEER - MER
property investment and property ERYEER
management

Shanghai — property development and property 8 — YMEBRERVERE
investment

Tianjin — property development and property RE — DEBERRYMERE
investment

Others — property design and consultancy services Hity — MERRERERSE

118 HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — geographical segments

(Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2005

are as follows:

Total gross segment sales

Inter-segment sales

Sales

Operating profit/(loss)

Share of profit of an associate

Share of profit of and
other gains relating to
a jointly controlled entity

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

DREXBAHER

REDBHER

G ]

HER

genn/ (B8
(it NG
pa il
DE—RARR

5

BHERZEHR

Hit s
BB TN

BR B At 7
BA

ERER

(@]
+H¢

RE B R AR M EE

DEER (&)
EHEBHER - HESE (F)

BE_ZTTH ¢+ RA=+—RHIEFEZ
DEEEMT
Guangdong

Province  Beijing Shanghai  Tianjin  Others Unallocated Group
ERE R ts RE it A2E  AKE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT A%Tr BETr BA¥Tr B%Tn BETrx
2,902,468 2,066,455 615733 558,429 75,192 - 6218277
(11,082) - - - (73,301 - (84,383
2,891,386 2,066,455 615733 558,429 1,891 - 6,133,8%
684,665 650,128 421,922 (29,3¢9) 11,732 (58,038) 1,681,040
44 - - - - - 44
191,509 - - - - - 191,509
(59,966)

1,812,627
(611,446)

1,201,181

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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=B B SRR M A

I =1

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER @)
Primary reporting format — geographical segments TEHRTA - MESE (&)
(Continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2004, REN v BE_ZEZTNEF+_HA=1+—H
as restated, are as follows: EEEZBEENT ¢
Guangdong
Province  Beijing Shanghai  Tianjin  Others Unallocated Group
ERE ER L PN Htt A2 XK@
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT BT AT A%Tr ABTr A%Trx
Total gross segment sales PEEBBRHER 2,297,666 1,665,820 - 21 119,231 - 4,082,738
Inter-segment sales NE D EHESR (7,133) = = - (102,421) - (109,554)
Sales HEH 2,290,533 1,665,820 - 21 16,810 3,973,184
Operating profit/(loss) "ERET/ (BR) 497,574 340,057 (19,597)  (35,707) 15,864 (25,668) 772,523
Share of loss of an associate AME—RBE D AER (734) = = = = = (734)
Share of profit of and Db — IR
other gains relating to BHERENR
a jointly controlled entity E o g 57,732 - - - - - 57,732
Finance costs R (13,375)
Profit before taxation B 5% A i 7 816,146
Taxation A (298,338)
Profit for the year ERRM 517,808
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER @)
Primary reporting format — geographical segments TEHRTA - MESE (&)
(Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2005 and R-ZZETZAF T _A=+—"BZOHEE
depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure for the LeaE UERBEEAIFEZNE « #
year then ended are as follows: HEEARIMOT :
Guangdong
Province  Beijing Shanghai  Tianjin  Others Unallocated Group
ERE bl L& -4 Htt k98B  A£E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT A¥Tr AETn B%Tr A%t AT A%Tr
Assets BE 9,449,135 4,413,130 2,419,199 1,948,052 434,454 51,962 18,715,932
Investment in an associate R—FEE A
pa: o 80 - - - - - 80
Investment in a TR — P £ [
jointly controlled entity EfeziEn 867,632 - - - - - 867,632
Total assets EERE 10,316,847 4413130 2419199 1948052 434454 51962 19,583,644
Liabilities A& 5228752 1,991,303 1424468 880,714 3096475 1,196,657 13,818,369
Depreciation e 7,152 6,328 570 2,060 174 - 16,284
Amortisation 3 41,616 1392 15686 586 1,755 - 61,035
Capital expenditure BEARRX 169,921 62,878 144 199,786 508 - 433237
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEEREBRBERAA
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ARE B R AR A

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DFER @)
Primary reporting format — geographical segments TEHRTA - MESE (&)
(Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2004, as KEY 2 —EENE+—_A=+—HHI
restated, and depreciation, amortisation and capital BENEBE UEKEINEHEEZBHIFEE
expenditure for the year then ended, as restated, are as ZHEBHIEARRAOT
follows:
Guangdong
Province  Beijing Shanghai Tianjin ~ Others Unallocated Group
ER%E b= L Py 2 *2E  REE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT AETr ABTn BBTr A%Tr AT EBTn
Assets BE 7,810,061 3,532,642 1,209,076 1,226,679 17,456 47,272 13,843,186
Investment in an associate R—fEBE A
ZHEm 36 = - = = - 36
Investment in a A — i S R
jointly controlled entity ER R 256,761 - - - - - 25,76
Total assets BEEE 8,066,858 3,532,642 1,209,076 1,226,679 17,456 47,272 14,099,983
Liabilities B 4,859,033 2973490 1145120 670,335 395437 727,794 10,771,209
Depreciation e 5,016 2,275 543 720 205 - 8,759
Amortisation B 35,117 21977 8,733 1,832 55 - 67,714
Capital expenditure BERRY 318,662 188,869 35742 557,829 159 - 1,101,261
Segment assets consist primarily of all of the Group’s DHEEETEZERRASBR 2 2N EEEE

operating assets and exclude tax assets.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of all of the Group's

operating liabilities and exclude tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to leasehold land
and land use rights (Note 6), properties and equipment (Note
7), investment properties (Note 8) and properties under
development for long-term investment (Note 9), including
additions resulting from acquisitions through business

combinations (Note 37).

RMBRIRBEE

THABTERRAKREZEHNEEAE
KRR B AR

EXARAXBEHEEL MR T ERE (M
o) - MERRE (ME7) - REWE
(PIEE8) RFIFRAREZERTYE
(MFE9) 2AE  BRERLEAH (M
AE37) EETWBMELZIBM -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

o>
HF
iy

il

A

JiE]

ot
i
]
ol



ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F 5§ W

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Secondary reporting format — business segments

The Group is organised into three main business segments

as follows:

Property development -

Property investment =

Property management —

Sales
Property development
Property investment

Property management

Total assets
Property development
Property investment
Property management

Unallocated

Investment in an associate
Investment in a jointly

controlled entity

Capital expenditure
Property development
Property investment

Property management

property development in
residential and commercial

projects

holding of offices, shops and

carparks for investment

potential and rental income

management of residential

and commercial properties

5 & 8
MERER
MERE
WMEREE

BEE
MERER
MERE
WMERERE
ADE

JiN

Sl OBkl

BARMAXY
MEER
M ERE
e R

BIRERE R

= BHE
B

5 HEER (#)
WEBRER - £BH8E
AEBRUT A SLEDEARK -
MERE - TERELEE I VEEE
MERE - REBERERBESUARS

WAE - EHREEE
MLEE - EEATREGLYE
2005 2004
—EZTREF —ZETPF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T BT T
5,990,942 3,855,018
46,983 44,994
95,969 73,172
6,133,894 3,973,184
15,448,405 9,873,629
3,139,363 3,890,488
76,202 31,797
51,962 47,272
18,715,932 13,843,186
Az RE 80 36
ZBE
867,632 256,761
19,583,644 14,099,983
267,819 21,065
164,230 1,079,304
1,188 892
433,237 1,101,261

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & £ &R &
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DFER @)
Secondary reporting format — business segments REBRRERN —FBEHE (&)
(Continued)

Analysis of sales by category:

Sales of properties

Rental income from
investment properties

Property management fees

Others

BIHEBETEIW

2005 2004

—EEREF —EETNF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BT T BB

SHEMZE 5,953,608 3,825,647
BEMEZHEBA

46,983 44,994

MEEBEE 95,969 73,172

Hh 37,334 29,371

6,133,894 3,973,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

Beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposals

Transfer to investment properties
Amortisation

Exchange difference

End of the year

Analysed as:

Non-current
— in relation to properties under
development for long-term
investment
— in relation to properties

and equipment

Current
— in relation to properties under
development for sale
— in relation to completed

properties for sale

S L it fo £ {5 P4
7SR AT i & b 55 P A 2 M2 O

FEMEEHERE  HEZEREFEST
P/ (AN
Consolidated
wE
2005 2004
—EZTREF —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok e
F4) 4,536,737 2,979,171
iz 549,870 2,193,151
U BE B B8 A &) 992,791 -
k== (493,985) (546,080)
EEREINEYE (41,642) (32,716)
e (59,350) (56,789)
E X =5 73,543 -
ER 5,557,964 4,536,737
DHT
IERED
— BERHPKREZ
BERP Y
321,640 716,432
— MEREE 104,859 44,395
426,499 760,827
mE
— AR EZ
BERPYE 4,860,198 3,442,416
— AR EZ
BERYE 271,267 333,494
5,131,465 3,775,910
5,557,964 4,536,737

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED a K Al R
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6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

(Continued)

The amount of the amortisation expenses recognised in the

income statements is as follows:

Cost of sales $HE KA

General and administrative expenses — B RITHAX

The balance of the amortisation expenses relating to

construction in progress has been capitalised as properties

under development and properties and equipment.

6 METH K LHERE &)

RIBRRPERZEHEFAOT ¢

Consolidated

Fo=s
2005 2004
—EEhRF — T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
14,159 4,794
1,562 55
15,721 4,849

EETRRZEBHAXHRBCENMCEERR
RYEREYENRE -

Consolidated

=Ee
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
In Mainland China, held on: KRB KR BATAHARER
Land use rights of over 50 years 50 F A |z St fh B A 3,605,959 3,507,209
Land use rights of between
10 to 50 years NTF 10 F = 50 F 2 b i 1,948,697 1,026,150
In Hong Kong held on: REE  BUATHRESR
Leases of over 50 years 50 F A E 24 3,308 3,378
5,557,964 4,536,737

As at 31 December 2005, net book amount of approximately
HK$1,932,476,000 (2004: HK$1,145,256,000) of the Group's
land use rights were pledged as collateral for the Group's
banking facilities (Note 22). As at 31 December 2005, net
book amount of approximately HK$150,945,000 (2004:
HK$58,113,000) of the Group's land use rights were pledged

for bank borrowings of a jointly controlled entity.

N-ZEERF+-_F=+—8 A£EE
EEH)BH 1,932,476,000 7T (—ZZ P4
. 75¥E 1,145,256,000 L) Z L ihfE AR
HIEREE 2 IRITEE2ERR (M
22) ~R=ZEBEZERF+_A=+—H &
EBEEREEXBH 150,945,000 ¢ (ZZF
PU4E : 7% 58,113,000 7T) & b FHE
EEME—RHERZEHERZBITEE
IR o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 January 2004

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2004

Opening net book amount

Additions (including
capitalisation of land
use rights amortisation)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Depreciation

Disposals

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2004

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended
31 December 2005

Opening net book amount

Additions (including
capitalisation of land
use rights amortisation)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Depreciation

Disposals

Transfer

Exchange difference

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2005

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

PPN

N

& B 7% 3R R M R

eI
Consolidated
&4
Furniture
Constructions Hotel and office Motor
in progress property Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
HBRR
EEIR EENE BT BAZERB RE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT BB BB BB BT
R-ZEME
-A-H
KA = = 3,541 24,904 33,353 61,798
ZEiE = = (1,077) (11,332) (13,659) (26,068)
RREE = = 2,464 13,572 19,694 35,730
BE-RENE
t=A=t-H
ILEE
HREFE = = 2,464 13,572 19,694 35,730
g (BfEE
K
EEH) 673,381 = = 5,965 3,640 682,986
KERBAR - - - 75 = 75
il = = (143) (3,166) (5,450) (8,759)
e = = = (120) (135) (255)
HREE B 673,381 = 2,321 16,326 17,749 709,777
R-ZZEME
tZR=t-A
KA 673,381 = 3,541 30,800 36,858 744,580
RiME - - (1,220) (14,474) (19,109) (34,803)
REFE 673,381 - 2,321 16,326 17,749 709,777
BHE-221EF
TZB=1-H
LLEE
HOERREE 673,381 = 2,321 16,326 17,749 709,777
Mg (REEAL
TR
EEH) 210,613 = = 29,643 3,288 243,544
KERBAF - - - 954 375 1329
ik = (4,089) (71) (6,241) (5,883) (16,284)
e - - - (856) (7.517) (8,373)
B (294,834) 220,073 74,761 - - -
ERES 5,664 2,077 719 378 82 8,920
HRERE 594,824 218,061 77,730 40,204 8,094 938,913
R-ZZ2RE
+ZA=t-H
KA 594,824 222,189 79,022 61,289 21,954 979,278
ZifTE = (4,128) (1,292) (21,085) (13,860) (40,365)
REFE 594,824 218,061 77,730 40,204 8,094 938,913

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 4 &8l E &£ &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately
HK$218,061,000 (2004: Nil) as at 31 December 2005 was
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
22).

Constructions in progress with a net book amount of Nil
(2004: HK$71,996,000) as at 31 December 2005 was pledged
as collateral for the Group's banking facilities (Note 22).

Building with a net book amount of approximately
HK$63,332,000 (2004: Nil) as at 31 December 2005 was
pledged as collateral for the Group'’s banking facilities (Note
22).

Constructions in progress represents hotel properties, office
premises and staff quarter under construction, which will be
held for the long-term. All constructions in progress are
located in Mainland China and are located on land held

under land use rights expiring from 2042 through 2044.

Depreciation expenses have been included in general and

administrative expenses in the income statement.

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Beginning of the year F 1

Transfer from properties under EEATERRMER
development and land use rights &b R4

Disposals HE

Surplus on revaluation A%

Exchange difference M H =5

End of the year F

All investment properties are located in Mainland China and
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from
2037 through 2045. They were stated at fair values with
reference to valuations performed on an open market value
basis by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
qualified valuers, as at 31 December 2005.

EYSE L NE ),
RZZEERAF+—A=+—HERAFELD
75 218,061,000 (ZZTNE @ &) 2
BIEMHEERIFEREBRITEER < KT
m (FizE22) -

R-EBEERF+_A=+—BXEREF
B (ZZZTM4F : B 71,996,0007T) 2
FREIRBEEHBEREERITEEZHER
@ (MsE22) -

RZEZRF+TA=T—BEREEFED
7BHE 63,332,000 (ZZEFMF © &) 2
BFEBIREASERTEE KA M
(Ff3E 22) -

EETRERMBECEEZTBEYE
MAEBMNETES - IAEZIREM
RABARE - UARERIBRER —TMH_—F

—“TWFHREER L ERERE
i b: A

FERXEHABRRAZ —REITERHA

"EY=E
Consolidated
=a

2005 2004
—EEREF — T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok e
2,835,469 2,568,758
100,502 32,716
(391,493) (120,945)
14,232 354,940
24,603 -
2,583,313 2,835,469

FTBEIRE GNP B AR R R IR E
R-ZF=LFE_TOAFHREERNLT
wERERE 2L - MAEREMERER
EZRERBUAEMBERTR_ZTA
F+ A=+ ARLRAMGEREEE
T2 b8 - ARFETIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$1,141,689,000
(2004: HK$861,907,000) of the Group's investment properties
were pledged as collateral for the Group'’s banking facilities
(Note 22). As at 31 December 2005, approximately
HK$233,442,000 (2004: HK$263,969,000) of the Group's
investment properties were pledged for bank borrowings of

a jointly controlled entity.

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years,
with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals. During the year ended
31 December 2005, the gross rental income from investment
properties amounted to approximately HK$46,983,000 (2004:
HK$44,994,000). As at 31 December 2005, the Group's future
rental income under non-cancellable operating leases was

as follows:

Not later than one year —FR

Later than one year and —ZRFERA
not later than five years

Later than five years FF1&

WEYZE #)
R_ZEERF+_A=+—8 AEEY
L 1,141,689,000 7 (ZZTEPUF : B
861,907,000 7t) ZHEMEEERERA
EEERTEE (AfE22) - RZZTZFH
F+-—_A=+—"8 AEBHBEK
233,442,000 (ZEZEWF : FK
263,969,000 ) HEMECERER—
FHEEHERBRTERZ2ERR -

AEERBLEERNLHEETHREWE -
TR AE—E_1+F  AEEREEN
EERERELD - SHEAOMERERAM
& MEE-_ZETRF+_A=+—HIt
FERN - REREVENHSBEHRSD
B 46,983,000t (ZZEZTMF : B
44,994,0007L) - R_ZEZERF+_A=
T—H  AEEREBETIHEENLEALDY
BWARRBESBALT :

Consolidated

&a
2005 2004
—EFEF LTINS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
44,208 42,254
143,837 140,328
81,524 109,193
269,569 291,775

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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9 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

RE B R R M EE

9 FHERHREZERTYE

Consolidated

e

2005 2004

—EBRF —TEPF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Beginning of the year F4) 338,586 659,486

Additions (including capitalisation

of interest and land use g (BEERE

rights amortisation) R B K £ 3 ARE) 119,125 516,353

Acquisition of subsidiaries U B i /2B 2 &) - 13,953
Transfer to investment properties and ERERZREMER

properties under development for sale AHEEZBERTYE (225,644) (851,206)

Exchange difference b H =5 2,344 —

End of the year F R 234,411 338,586

All properties under development for long-term investment
are located in Mainland China and are located on land held

under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2045.

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$2,977,000 (2004:
HK$73,134,000)

development for long-term investment were pledged as

of the Group’'s properties under
collateral for the Group's banking facilities (Note 22). As at
31 December 2005, none (2004: HK$6,938,000) of the Group's
properties under development for long-term investment
were pledged as collateral for bank borrowings of a jointly

controlled entity.

FrEHERBRE 2 ERERMEHM R H
BAEE  WHRRER-ZE=tFE_F
MEFHEERO L mERESEEZ -
i o

RZZEZTRAFTZA=1+—8H ' XEEYL
EH 2,977,000 (ZEEWMF - B
73,134,000 7T) ZIFERBKE 2 EREF
MEEEIREREBRITEE (R
22) 2EBAG  c RZETRE+_A=+
—HB - AEBEYE (ZZTTWOF : B
6,938,000 7T) BHIERIIEZHRERYE
ERPE— X REIEH B BRITER 2K
g e
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10 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

11

SALE

Beginning of the year

Additions (including capitalisation
of interest and land use
rights amortisation)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Transfer to completed properties for sale
Transfer from properties under

development for long-term investment

Exchange difference

End of the year

All properties under development for sale are located in

Mainland China and are located on land held under land use FE

rights expiring from 2,034 through 2075.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

10 At EZERTYE

Consolidated

wEe
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
F 1] 2,775,320 2,209,479
g (BEEREHE
b fFE ) 4,004,620 1,660,399
U B i /2B 2 &) 85,912 225,006
HREETHEHHE
ZEERE (2,767,141) (2,185,570)
EEORBERIRE
ZERERYE 166,784 866,006
PE = %E 55,308 =
F 4R 4,320,803 2,775,320

FIBAHEEZERTYEAMRPEAX
YRURBER_F=—NFE_FT+tH
FHIRE RN T ERERA 2L -

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$789,601,000 RZZETZAF+_A=+—0H ' AKEL

(2004: HK$775,758,000) of the Group's properties under

development for sale were pledged as collateral for the

Group's banking facilities (Note 22).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 11

7B 789,601,000 (ZEENF : B
775,758,000 7T) Z AJHHE 2 B E R Y
BEFEAEBRTEE2&KER (RH
= 22) o

AL EZEERTE

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland
China and are located on land held under land use rights
expiring from 2037 through 2075.

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$463,651,000
(2004: HK$156,505,000) of the Group’s completed properties
for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group's banking
facilities (Note 22).

2RAIMEHE 2 EERMEBLRFE AR
ERUABBR _ZE=+FZ_T+RF
HiMEm T ERERA 2L ko

R_ZEERAF+_A=+—8 A&EEY
PS & 463,651,000 (ZZZTMFE : B
156,505,000 7t) Z AJ4EHE 2 B &3
ERPEANEERITEECERR (R
MizE 22) -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEAREB AR QA
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 BELEE

Consolidated

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

wa
Negative
Goodwill goodwill Total
5k =Lk st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TSR BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZETMF—-—H—HR
Cost (DN 10,180 = 10,180
Accumulated amortisation B (6,108) - (6,108)
Net book amount REFE 4,072 = 4,072
Year ended 31 December 2004 BE—_ZTTNWF
+-A=+—HItFE
Opening net book amount B BRE FE 4,072 = 4,072
Additions g 6,440 (164,890) (158,450)
Amortisation 5K (1,468) - (1,468)
Closing net book amount B4R BRTE R (B 9,044 (164,890) (155,846)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZTWF
+=-—A=+—H
Cost DN 16,620 (164,890) (148,270)
Accumulated amortisation 25T (7,576) = (7,576)
Net book amount BRENHE 9,044 (164,890) (155,846)
Year ended 31 December 2005 HE—_ZTTHF
+T-A=+—HIEFE
Opening net book amount H YRR F A 9,044 (164,890) (155,846)
Reclassification of negative KEEEBENHE
goodwill to retained earnings 2REEA = 164,890 164,890
9,044 - 9,044
Additions i 92,038 = 92,038
Exchange difference BE N E R 1,060 - 1,060
Closing net book amount HY R AR 3 E 102,142 = 102,142
132 1OPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 4 8| E £ @ A R 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs") identified according to geographical segment. A
segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is

presented below:

Guangdong Province BRE
Beijing AlE &R

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a ten-year period.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Gross margin E R =
Discount rate IR K

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect

specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

12 BEEE (#)

2 2R E AR
EESMEREE SRR 2 ASEBER
SEEBMN BENEZHABMEZSW
T

2005 2004
—EEhHEF — T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
79,210 9,044
22,932 -
102,142 9,044

ReELENZAIRE B RIEERE
ErftE - LB AERAREREEE#]
RZMBEESERETFHR RSN
TR HETT ©

EREEFEECEIERR

Guangdong
Province Beijing
BERE =
32.7% 29.6%
7.3% 7.3%

ERESRBEARAREAMSERZ
BRAEIEEENE - FIRAZHRERE
At EBHE - Y RBRBBRD HZEER

g o
ZON

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost

Due from subsidiaries

FE LD

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and without pre-determined repayment

terms.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005

are set out in Note 39.

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

13 Investments in subsidiaries

BB
& 5 B /BB 2~ ) 3R IR

Company
A
2005 2004
—gPRF —TIWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
74,900 74,900
4,201,451 758,869
4,276,351 833,769
FEAS P A RIIA R BN - R BRI &
RS ﬁﬁ°

S

A THE+-_A=+—"HB2Z2EZZKE
NEFIBHRHEE 39

i
£
A

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any RBEZ_ZZERF+_A=+—HILFE
time during the year ended 31 December 2005. NEREE - ZFHERARSEERERE
BITEEER -
14 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 14 R—HEBERRZKRE
Consolidated
=)
2005 2004
—EBE2RF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Beginning of the year FH) 36 770
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate iR —MEE A RSN, (EE) 44 (734)
End of the year FR 80 36
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED = B R EBEABRE QT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

14 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 14 R—EBEARIZKE ®)
The Group's interest in an associate, which is unlisted, is as AEBR—BELEMEBE AR ZERL
follows: T
Particulars
of issued Place of Interest
Name shares held incorporation Assets  Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss) held
BRI wAl/
£18 R0 15 2k fAf K 2 3 B BE af O (B1]R) F#zR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %

BETT  BETr BEFr  A%Tn
2004 —ZTME
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital Mainland 11,012 10,920 283 (1,834) 24%

Cultural Development of Rmb 5,000,000 China
Company Limited

BREEHE N A RAARE SlEpN
ERARAA 5,000,000 7T
2005 “ET0F
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital Mainland 11,640 11,436 2,158 1M 39.6%

Cultural Development of Rmb 5,000,000 China
Company Limited

BREEHE UL ARBEAARE i BA R
BEERAA 5,000,000 7T

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

15 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 15 R—EXRZEHERCKRE
ENTITY
A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the Group HREZE %'J‘E’l’ﬁ“;)_b—lﬁ;/:\ B B R
and other parties undertake an economic activity which is Eliﬁiﬁﬁﬁ EHSE-TARERS - M
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties ZIEKE RS DX HERES - 2EZFIW
has unilateral control over the economic activity. B A A o
Share of
net assets Goodwill Total
TIEFEE [E5 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT T
At 1 January 2005 RZEZERF—H—H 223,780 32,981 256,761
Acquisition of further interests W — P 342,934 - 342,934
Capital injection AE 46,740 20,176 66,916
Share of post-acquisition results SMERIERFE 76,983 = 76,983
Excess of acquirer’s interest Wi & e R 8
over cost of acquisition Y B B AR BB 3 114,526 = 114,526
Exchange difference bE &= 9,045 467 9,512
At 31 December 2005 RZEZTREF
+=ZRA=+—8 814,008 53,624 867,632
At 1 January 2004 RZZEETME
—H—H 99,197 8,100 107,297
Capital injection EE 66,851 28,646 95,497
Share of post-acquisition results DU IE R X E 57,732 - 57,732
Amortisation #H - (3,765) (3,765)
At 31 December 2004 R-BENF
+=R=+—8 223,780 32,981 256,761
Investment in a jointly controlled entity represents the M EEGE RS 2 s D IE RSB R EM
Group's investment in a contractual joint venture, Guangzhou WIBHEHMEARAR ([BH]) 2%
Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL"). GZQREL B (RERn—BaeErE) - BHR
is established in Mainland China with an operating period of RBIRENRY KEBHE_FT—\F—A
20 years up to January 2018 to develop properties located in IF - BHI204 - HEEFEESARAZMRN
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China. TEAEEREBEMZYE -
Prior to the acquisitions as described below, under the joint £z WHERT - RIBE SR EW=E
venture agreement, the Group was required to contribute EEFENEBI257.14% BERER K
57.14% of the capital of GZQREL and was entitled to one- EREABH=7—KREE - XEETTAE
third of the voting right in GZQREL. It was entitled to share EDIHBE 2 40% w1 - HRAEBEE
40% of the profit of GZQREL but had to assume 57.14% of 182 57.14% - AR BRI & B8 m
any losses of GZQREL, and was entitled to a distribution of BHMER 40% EE °
40% of GZQRELS’ assets upon expiry of the operating period.
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEEEBREBERAD A
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15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY (Continued)

On 23 June 2004, the Group entered into conditional
agreements to acquire further interests totalling of 59.5%
profit-sharing interest in GZQREL from other joint venturers.
The acquisition in respect of the 29.5% profit-sharing interest
in GZQREL was completed during the year ended 31
December 2005. Accordingly, the Group has recognised the
acquisition of this 29.5% profit-sharing interest, including the
gain on acquisition, representing the excess of the Group's
share of the net identifiable assets over the cost of
acquisition of approximately HK$457,460,000, which was
amounted to HK$114,526,000, in the income statement.
Upon completion of this acquisition of a 29.5% interest in
GZQREL, the Group is responsible for contributing 99.5% of
the capital of GZQREL and is entitled to 44.4% of the voting
power in GZQREL. It is entitled to share 69.5% of the profit
of GZQREL but has to assume 99.5% at any losses of
GZQREL, and is entitled to a distribution of 692.5% of
GZQRELSs assets upon expiry of the operating period.

The acquisition of the remaining 30.0% profit-sharing interest
in GZQREL has not yet completed at 31 December 2005.

RE B R AR M EE

15 R—ERREZEHER 2 KE (#8)

NRZZTENFASAZ+=0  AEBF L
BiGEH=E - AE—ZTREMEETKE
A K 59.5% @ Mo E s - WEEE
BR295%GMNIEREENBE_FT
£¢+ A=t —BLFEARATK - B

C REEBE RN ERRERZ 29.5% i@ 7l
TETZE“ Wk BIENEE 2 as (B
SEAA G2 ERFEESREKAR

2 E R 457,460,000 T ) 4B
114,526,000 7T ° TE BB B EL 2 29.5%
Btk ARBEEDEFBEZ 99.5% B
BRI R EEREBBH 44.4% K E2HE - K&
ENEREDEEEZ 69.5% @ ) » HEEE
EEHEEZ 99.5% @ UREEREEH
[E R S BL & D 69.5% B E ©

R-BEREE+-A=+—AHREME
— IR E EBES T 30% 3 F -k 2% o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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15 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 15

ENTITY (Continued)

The following amounts represent the Group's 69.5% (2004:

40%) share of the assets, liabilities and commitments as at

31 December and the Group's share of sales and results of
the jointly controlled entity of 40% from 1 January 2005 to 30
June 2005 and 69.5% from 1 July 2005 to 31 December 2005

(2004: 40%):

Assets:
Non-current assets

Current assets

Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities

Current liabilities

Net assets

Sales

Cost of Sales/Expenses

Profit before income tax

Taxation

Profit for the year

Proportionate interest in the jointly
controlled entity’s contingent
liabilities (Note 35)

Proportionate interest in the jointly
controlled entity’s commitments
(Note 36)

BE
FRBEE
MENEE

&8
EHAaE
kA=K

BEERE

HE
HERA,/ X

RETET 157 Al e 7
HiIE

RE Bt A

HE [R5 | B B AR AN A
2#& Lok (FIRE 36)

P — A R 2 I B

\:u

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

ZIRE (#)

AFeEAKEERt=A=+—RFH

il K E 42 5 & 88 69.5%

40%) BE - E\%&ﬁdfé :

—EEOF
u&$%§%

TRFENA=

TEHEERR -_ZTAFLA— Ei— z

TRHE+— H—+—E|Hﬁf'ﬁ il A s
o0 | B 40% K 69.5% f@¢
40%) ZIHERMELE .

2005 2004

—ETRF —ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

145,596 80,036

1,781,744 801,346
_1.927,340 881,382
(650,149) (185,862)

(454,209) (382,228)
_(1.104,358) (568,090)
822,982 313,292

593,711 362,774
(323,336) (247,773)

270,375 115,001

(78,866) (57,269)

191,509 57,732

191,388 159,687

1,709,358 1,269,587

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16

17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ASSETS

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly
controlled assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang
Real Estate Development Company Limited, an independent
third party, under which each of the Group and Guangzhou
Zhuguang Real Estate Development Company Limited
contributed land and other assets for the development of
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
mainland China. During the year ended 31 December 2005
the Group's participating interest in these jointly controlled
assets was 95.5% (2004: 95.5%).

16

= A
Iéﬁ/'.l'\l:l

BF 7% AR M A

RAREHEEZRE

AEEETHBARE—BBYFR=HE
MR EHEMRZEBR AR —HER
THIEERE - Bt - AEEREMNEEX
B EMBEERARASHABMNFEKX
EERAEMNZYEREL R EME
E -REBE-_ZEZRAF+-_A=1+—Hit
FERN AEEREZRSHERENEE
95.5% (ZZZTMF : 955%) 2L HE

— ==
S o

B

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17 TBNFIE « e MEMTHEE
CURRENT ASSETS
Consolidated Company
wRe N
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RFE —_TTNF ZZZTHE —_ZTTNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
Deposits for acquisitions of WHEIR Rt 2 1R 2 ()
equity interests (i) 351,309 - - -
Prepayments for acquisition U B8 + Mb 2z TS SR IE (i)
of land (ii) 635,071 620,601 - —
Guarantee deposit ERES 47,667 47,170 - -
Prepaid construction
expenditures SEENE=F 153 43,260 26,780 - -
Utility and other deposits NEERE R EMIES 52,607 34,825 - -
Others H A 41,949 29,198 422 422
1,171,863 758,574 422 422
Notes: Kiaz -

(i)  This represents advances made to independent third parties
for the acquisition of majority interests in certain Mainland
China entities. The acquisitions are not yet completed as at 31
December 2005, and the details of the acquisitions are set out

in Note 37.

This represents advances made to a department of the
Government of Yangpu District of Shanghai for the acquisition

of land use rights in Yangpu district, Shanghai, Mainland China.

WTER KRB E THRRAEER 2 S8k
RiERmMOBLE=FEHZBR - N
ZERF+-_A=+—"8 KEHRT
B - BRWIB EIRAFIS RN 37 -

(i)

I ThE s U BB I 70 AR B B BB 150 (R 2
3450 PR 1 () _E 0% T #5088 [ BURT TS J88 P
FIfEH Z B3R -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED =

AN

£ Al R
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18 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally

payable by the buyers at the time of completion of the sale

and purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased

properties and property management fees are generally

payable in advance by the tenants on a monthly basis.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable was as follows:

0 to 3 months 0ZE3EA
3 to 6 months 3E6EA
6 to 9 months 6= 918 A
9 to 12 months 9F 121E A
Over 12 months BB 12 @A

Carrying values of accounts receivable approximate their fair

values.

As at 31 December 2005, approximately 22% (2004: 58%) of

the accounts receivable was due from one customer; other

than this, there is no concentration of credit risk with respect

to accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of

customers.

STATEMENTS 44 B # 3® KR M=

18 FEURBRFX

BEHENEZRE—RANEE BHHETK
ERHESXN HEWMEZHERME
ERE-—RBEBEFEEZAEN -

FEMRR 2 FREE D AT AR T

Consolidated

RE
2005 2004
—EZHF —ETEMNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB
35,697 65,602
1,433 9,972
448 2,488
25,368 1,425
27,378 1,302
90,324 80,789

FEURERHERLAFERES -

R_ZEERFE+-_A=+—8  BKREX
FAH 22% (ZEZWEF | 58%) JhlH—
BREFEXR RN ARAKREER
L BRERTEEESEFR ZER -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

19 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 19 Egﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ_ XM E R

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REFEY
Consolidated Company
Ba A7
2005 2004 2005 2004

—RTEEF —TTME —TREE —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR  BMTRE  EMTE  BMTE

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFRRE 2,064,206 736,609 848 860
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITE R 526,142 = 495,902 =
2,590,348 736,609 496,750 860
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was RHRTERZERENERR4E (=%
4% (2004: N/A) per annum; these deposits have an average TUE CNER)  REERZFHEE
maturity of 1 (2004: N/A) day. H&tm18 (ZTTWEF : TEA) -
As at 31 December 2005, the Group’s bank deposits of R-ZBEZERF+_A=+—H ' XEEY
approximately HK$71,344,000 (2004: HK$150,287,000) were VS5 71,344,000 (—ZZP0E : B
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 150,287,000 7t) RITHEREERIELREE
22). In addition, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately RITEE2ERM (RHEE22) © o
HK$165,724,000 (2004: HK$108,363,000) were charged by REBIRITIERRA) AR 165,724,000 ¢ (=
certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage TP : ¥ 108,363,000 T) EWET
facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group's RITES - UERITEEEERASEY
properties. FERBETRIBEER -
The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits BER ERAZRTFRARREERRAEE
and cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the BY 2 EHETIATIEES|E :

following currencies:

Consolidated Company
=) A
2005 2004 2005 2004

—RYEF —TTNF —FREF —TTMF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETE BMTT  mMTR BT

Chinese Renminbi AR #& 2,055,318 729,885 - =
US dolllar ETT 449,460 196 446,875 6
Hong Kong dollar 7B T 85,511 6,528 49,875 854
Other currencies H i g & 59 = - =

2,590,348 736,609 496,750 860

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 aREemas®r 27 141
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20 LAND COST PAYABLE

21

20 FEfFEHBAKAS

Land premium payable B Lt ES

Land compensation payable FEAT L Al (E 5K

Less: Amount due within one year W EFAREBBEA
included under current liabilities R—FRNEBRZ TR

Carrying values of land cost payable approximate their fair

values.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts

due to related parties of trading in nature) was as follows:

0 to 3 months 0ZE3ME@A

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$449,404,000
(2004: HK$123,344,000) of accounts payable was due to
subsidiaries of minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries

of the Company in respect of property construction fees.

Carrying values of accounts payable approximate their fair

values.

21

Consolidated

&a
2005 2004
—REEFE  —TITNE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT
318,958 489,150
681,603 529,544
1,000,561 1,018,694
(1,000,039) (828,128)
522 190,566

e LK AEEREEAFERES

FEfFERFX
BRRRZRBAT (RERNTREA
ITBRARBUEZER) MT -

Consolidated

RE
2005 2004
—ETHF —ZEETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
800,524 662,854

R_ZTEERF+_A=1+—H mPERE
FERNARRETHEBRARLDERE 2
B8 A &) 2 BR A B 75 8 449,404,000 7T
(ZZZ U4 : ¥ 123,344,000 70) °

ENERHERELAFERES -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22 BORROWINGS 2 88
Consolidated Company
wE NES|
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RFE —_TTNF ZZZTHE —_TTNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T ok e
Non-current JERED
Bank borrowings RITIEHE 2,165,949 1,547,805 - =
Senior notes BREEEK 2,660,902 - 2,660,902 -
4,826,851 1547805 2,660,902 - -
Current Ve
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,837,342 1957752 - - -
Total borrowings BEE 6,664,193 3,505,557 2,660,902 -

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes
with an aggregated nominal value of US$350,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior
notes mature in seven years (November 2012) and are
repayable at their nominal value of US$350,000,000. The
Company will be entitled at its option to redeem all or a
portion of the senior notes on and after 9th November 2009
at the redemption prices specified in the offering circular,

plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

RZZEZRF+—A @ ARRETREE
# 350,000,000 7t (KM E R BB
2,730,000,000 7¢) 2 8.125 BB LRI -
BAR(EX B 2,733,182,000 8 T ° BELE
BERLE#ISE (ZE——F+—H8)

I 78 1 38 ¥ 1% 55 2 T & 350,000,000 %
T o ARAIKBEREER-_SZTNF+—
AN BSAEIRE SRmEATETRA 2 ERI(E
(MEBE=EEDAHEMRASZFE) EE

2HAMOBERRE -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS

LIMITED EEAREB AR QA
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are

calculated as follows:

Nominal value
Premium component

Issue costs

Fair value at the date of issuance

Amortisation of premium (Note 27)

Amortisation of issue costs (Note 27)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2005

22 88 (#)
REEABETHRAZBLEZHHE

(I N

STATEMENTS 44 B # 3® KR M=

2005
—EEREF

HK$'000

VBT

[ERE 2,730,000
B 3,182
BTEH (73,965)
RETHHZAYE 2,659,217
wmE#EE (E27) (76)
BITEREE (WE27) 1,761
R_EERF+_A=+—HZHEE 2,660,902
N—ZEERFE+-_A=+—08  BEZE

As at 31 December 2005, the senior notes are jointly and

severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries, and are secured

by the capital stock of the subsidiaries. The net assets of

these subsidiaries were approximately HK$603,749,000 as at

31 December 2005.

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows:

BETHB AR AR RERREER AL
IAMI B AR BRAEIR IR - R-FTHF
T-A=1+—R ZEMBRARZEEF

B#) BB 603,749,000 7T ©

EEZBHPATWT

Bank borrowings Senior notes Total

RITEE BERERE @t
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
ZERRF _—ZTTNF CZBBRF _TTNMF ZBBRF _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TR BEBTT B¥TR E8Tr B¥TR  E%Tx
Within one year —FR 1,837,342 1,957,752 - - 1,837,342 1,957,752
Between one and two years —FHREWFA 1,449,663 877,505 - - 1,449,663 877,505
Between two and five years MERBRLEFEA 716,286 670,300 - - 716,286 670,300

Wholly repayable BAREER
within five years Ty EER 4,003,291 3,505,557 - - 4,003,291 3,505,557
Over five years HBBRF - - 2,660,902 - 2,660,902 =
4,003,291 3,505,557 2,660,902 - 6,664,193 3,505,557
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E E R A 7
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies with the respective effective interest

rates:

RE B R AR M EE

22 88 (#)
BEEENTIISEASRRESE T
CEIESTRNE

mf}

/!

2005 2004
—2RIF —TTQEF
Effective Effective
HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate
BRI BRA=R BT T BRA=R
Chinese Renminbi AR
- Bank borrowings — RITIEE 3,987,691 5.9% 3,394,357 5.9%
Hong Kong dollar BT
- Bank borrowings — RITEE = - 80,000 2.8%
US dollar ETT
— Bank borrowings — RITBEE 15,600 7.3% 31,200 4.5%
— Senior notes - BEER 2,660,902 8.6% - -
6,664,193 3,505,557
The carrying amounts and the fair value of the borrowings BEZHERAFERAT !

are as follows:

Carrying amounts

Fair values

EHE ATE

2005 2004 2005 2004

ZE22HF —_TITIWNF ZTTHF —_TTOEF

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AETT BE¥TR BETT

Bank borrowings RITIEE 4,003,291 3,505,557 4,006,438 3,496,314
Senior notes BEEE 2,660,902 - 2,715,277 -
6,664,193 3505557 6,721,715 3,496,314

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a
rate based on the Group's average borrowings rate of 5.8%
to 8.6% (2004: 3.5% to 6.3%), depending on the currency
denomination of the borrowings.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group's banking facilities were

secured by:

() the Group's land use rights of approximately
HK$1,932,476,000 (2004: HK$1,145,256,000);

ATFEDFABRBEAEETHEEF X
58EZE86E (ZTTWF : 35EE6.3
[B) B zFE (RIBEEKER) &
BE2HERESRER °

RZZETAF+T_A=+—H8 AEEHZ
RITEETDATHERBER

() #I78%1,932,476,000 7T (ZZEZPU4F
. 75K 1,145,256,000 7T) ZANEE £
b A

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vii)

the Group's hotel property of approximately
HK$218,061,000 (2004: Nil);

the Group's construction in progress of Nil (2004:
HK$71,996,000);

the Group's building of approximately HK$63,332,000
(2004: Nil);

the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,141,689,000
(2004: HK$861,907,000);

the Group's properties under development for long-
term investment of approximately HK$2,977,000 (2004:
HK$73,134,000);

the Group's properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$789,601,000 (2004: HK$775,758,000);

=
N

B BHRKRKE

22 88 (#)

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

#7785 %% 218,061,000 7T (ZZTZPULE :
;) CAREBBEYE

WE (ZEZMF B 71,996,000
L) AEBEZETR

#)75 85 63,332,000 T (—ZZTPO4F ¢
|/) ZAREBEIETF

ERREEL)BH 1,141,689,000 T (=
TEPNEE  ##E 861,907,000 7T) Z AR
SBIEYE

#)7EE 2,977,000 T (ZZZPUF @ B
73,134,000 70) Z A% BlIFIERES
WEZIEREWME

#4754 789,601,000 7t (ZZZ 4 .
7BHE 775,758,000 7T ) [ ANES B AT EH
EZRERYE

(viii) the Group's completed properties for sale of (viii) #9758 463,651,000 7T (ZZZPE :
approximately HK$463,651,000 (2004: HK$156,505,000); PEHE 156,505,000 7T) Z AR E AT £ 8
and EZEEXDE K
(ix) the Group’'s bank deposits of approximately (ix) #975# 71,344,000 C (ZZZWF :
HK$71,344,000 (2004: HK$150,287,000). 761 150,287,000 7L) Z ANEEIRITF
e
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E BE A 7
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 BIEFRISH
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset BEREEERBERAIERTHBAEE
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax REBBEBGEENEEEHEFRIEREN
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred BRI - - F R EAEEE o HH
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset TEHIMT

amounts are as follows:

Consolidated

wEe
2005 2004
3 3 —ERNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Deferred tax assets: REBIEEE .
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered - BRA+TZ@EABKE 2
after more than twelve months RIEFRTAE E 44,073 20,779
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — R+ -EARkEZ
within twelve months REFLIAE BE 7,889 26,493
________ o1,.962 - 47272
Deferred tax liabilities: FREFHIEEE -
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised — BT+ @ ARBER
after more than twelve months REFIEE F (328,252) (267,601)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised - BRA+TZEARER
within twelve months RIEFHIBEE (284,214) (107,142)
______ (612,466) (374,743
(560,504) (327,471)

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 alE&masr 2~ s 147
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

RE B R R M EE

23 IRIAEFTIEH (&)

The gross movement on deferred taxation is as follows: REFR BB E ST ¢
Consolidated
wEe
2005 2004
—ETRF —TEMNFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets/(liabilities) BE/ (AR)
Beginning of the year F1] (327,471) (490,899)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B /2B A ) (147,913) 29,908
Recognised in the income statement RIBE KR IER (72,504) 216,500
Tax charged to equity KRR 2 THIE - (82,980)
Exchange difference PE W =58 (12,616) =
End of the year F R (560,504) (327,471)
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 23 IRIEFTET (&)
The movement in deferred tax assets and deferred tax REHRBEERELEHBEE 2 (I
liabilities, without taking into consideration the offsetting of EEZEMRDEERAN 2 AHREHE) 0
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities EREBIEEE
Consolidated
e
Timing
difference in
Revaluation reporting
surplus revenue Total
ONEE:
EHARK ZRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2004 R-ETMNE— (474,742) (71,544) (546,286)
Recognised in the income statement 8z KR - 71,544 71,544
Charged to equity relating to
surplus on revaluation of AR KRE
investment properties V) E L Bk (110,964) - (110,964)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE 27,984 - 27,984
Acquisition of subsidiaries LT B BT /B8 R ) 29,908 = 29,908
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEZEWE+_A
E+ A (527,814) - (527,814)
Recognised in the income statement A 18 % 3k IR 65,230 - 65,230
Acquisition of subsidiaries e B BT /8 2 ) (147,913) = (147,913)
Exchange difference PE W =58 (5,870) = (5,870)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZBZAF+_H
=+—H (616,367) - (616,367)

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 alE&masr 27 149
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets—

At 1 January 2004

Recognised in the income statement

At 31 December 2004

Recognised in the income statement

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2005

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards

to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit

through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31

December 2005, the Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets of approximately HK$20,798,000 (2004: HK$7,945,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
HK$95,057,000 (2004: HK$24,075,000) which are expiring from

2006 through 2010.

BERIAEE—
Consolidated
®E

Timing

difference in

reporting
revenue Tax losses Total
LON:E: a3 HIEEE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT T
- 55,387 55,387
153,071 (8,115) 144,956
153,071 47,272 200,343
(141,929) 4,195 (137,734)
(7,241) 495 (6,746)
3,901 51,962 55,863

RE B R R M EE

23 IRIAEFTIEH (&)

IEAERR I8 & B T e A R T 75 N 21 AT 35 48
IR BR FE SR TR v I B R T B P A4S 8E 2 AT
BERR RZZEZRFT_A=1+—
H - R&E B ERE B LB 95,057,000
o (ZZZEPF B 24,075,000 70)
RIELEF B E 478 20,798,000 L (=
PO R 7,9450007T) ¢ ERIE
BEER-_ZTAFE_FT—ZTFRNE

W o
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o

amy

il

A

JiE]

ot
i
]
ol



ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F 5§ W
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24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 P&
Number Ordinary
of shares shares
R4 E EER
‘000 HK$'000
T A% BT T
At 1 January 2004 N_ZEZTOMF—H—H 1,002,000 100,200
Issue of shares BT 1,000 100
At 31 December 2004 R-FTEWE+-_A=+—~H 1,003,000 100,300
At 1 January 2005 R-_ZEERF—-A—H 1,003,000 100,300
Issue of shares BITIRMD
— placements — BEA% 200,600 20,060
— employee share option scheme — EEBEREE 10,000 1,000
At 31 December 2005 R-ZFTRF+-_A=+—~H 1,213,600 121,360
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is EE B AR 2 4280 2,000,000,000 fx (=
2,000,000,000 shares (2004: 2,000,000,000 shares), with a par ZZPULF : 2,000,000,000 B ) EAKEIE 0.1
value of HK$0.1 per share (2004: HK$0.1 per share). All issued Bt (ZZEZTWF : 3R 01BL) I’ °
shares are fully paid. FrEE#ITROHDHEBERK °
In August 2005, the Company issued 200,600,000 shares RZZEZTRFENA - KA R BT
(approximately 16.7% of the Company’s issued share capital 200,600,000 AR fn (AMh AR R REE
as enlarged by the subscription) for a cash consideration of BTN 2 B EITIRAL 16.7%) LARER
HK$977,925,000. The related transaction costs amounting to /e R EBE 977,925,000 - BEER 5
approximately HK$21,206,000 have been netted off against FR AN %) A& 78 8 21,206,000 7T+ B R FTUCER
the proceeds received. ZFREREN -
During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Company RBE-ZZTZRFTA=T—HBLFE
issued 10,000,000 shares for a cash consideration of A ARBIRN EEBREEITFER T
HK$43,000,000 upon exercise of employee share options. 10,000,000 & f% 17 # B 3R € 1K (B 75 &

43,000,000 7T °

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 4 aR&emas®r 27 191
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24 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 24 IR (#8)

Share options fE R

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under RNArlE—IHEBBERESE - &t - K
which it may grant options to employees (including executive RAAAEE (BRARRHITESE) &
directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the HIEREARBARRBRG - HIRARF
Company, subject to a limit that the total number of shares BARERTE - MEEREERTENER
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding BT LATREREITHORMEE - ~SHEE
options granted and yet to be exercised under the share RRBTEDEHITRME 30% © (TEER
options schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of HARFESRGETE A TIRTI=
the shares in issue from time to time. The exercise price will EZEREE (AR AROREBERERD
be determined by the Company’s board of directors and HEAZWTHE : ()N EEERERLBH
shall at least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Al AER 5 B AR ARG 2 FHYHE :
Company'’s shares on the date of grant of the options, (i) the RARAIKROEE (BKR01BIT) -
average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five NNeEBREFINBE_T——F2+
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the FHREFER

options, and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares
of HK$0.1 each. This employee share options scheme will

remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2012.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and RITEEREAR RSN B R EARRE MNAE 91T
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BzEHNT :
2005 2004
—ETLF —ZTTMF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options  per share Options
SRTH ST
TEE 1TEE
() B AE (BT) RE R
‘000 ‘000
T4 T
At 1 January R—H—H - - 1.17 1,000
Granted B 4.9 26,536 - -
Exercised BAT{E 4.3 (10,000) 1.17 (1,000)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 5.3 16,536 - -
As at 31 December 2005, all of the 16,536,000 outstanding R-_EERF+_A=Z+—HEEAE
share options were exercisable. 16,536,000 A% AT 1T {30 M AR 1T 58 2 B AR A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

24 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share options (Continued)
Share options outstanding have the following expiry date

and exercise prices:

24 AR (48)

BIE (8)
WATTEBEREZF A RITERENT

Share options

BR IR 7
Exercise price

Expiry date HK$ per share 2005 2004
A BRITEE (Bx) “EERF —EENEF
‘000 ‘000

TR T

28 April 2010 —E—ZFWPA =+ /\H 4.3 10,000 -
10 August 2010 —T-ZTFNATH 6.2 4,500 =
14 September 2010 Z—E—ZTFHA+MA 8.2 2,036 -
16,536 —~

Options exercised during the year ended 31 December 2005
resulted in 10,000,000 (2004: 1,000,000) shares being issued
at HK$4.3 (2004: HK$1.17) each. The related weighted
average share price at the time of exercise was HK$10.7
(2004: HK$1.9) per share. The related transaction costs
amounting to approximately HK$5,000 (2004: HK$4,000) have
been netted off with the proceeds received.

The fair value of options granted during the year ended 31
December 2005, determined using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model, was approximately HK$23,447,000, which was
charged to the income statement as employment cost. The
significant inputs into the model were share prices of HK$4.3,
HK$6.2 and HK$8.2, at the grant dates (different for each
issue), exercise prices shown above, standard deviation of
expected share price returns of 35%, contractual life of
options of 5 years, sub-optimal early exercise factor of 1.25,
1.5 and 1.5 (different for each issue), expected rate of post
vesting withdrawal of 5% per annum, expected dividend paid
out rate of 3%, and annual risk-free interest rate of 3.16%,
3.87% or 3.81% (different for each issue). The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
over the last three years.

Subsequent to 31 December 2005, on 6 February 2006,
6,000,000 share options were exercised to subscribe for the
Company's shares at HK$4.3 each.

REE-—ZZERE+ _A=+—HBIFE
TE 17 (£ 2 B IR #E B 3 10,000,000 A& A% 15
—ETPOE 1,000,000 %) LAFARE
4370 (ZZZTWF BB 117 L) 2B
BT IEERZEEMETHORERS
R B #1070 (ZZZME @ B9
TL) ° BREAR SR AK A&B 50007 (=
TEPOLE : ERE4,0007T)  BRFTIRELZ
SRIEF AN o

REE_ZTTRAF+_A=+—HLFE
RO zBREZ AFEL B BEEE
R E L A B 23,447,000 T @ WER
BHRRNEREENALZIL - FEZIER
ZEEHEAREER (BEETHD
m) 2RHEKREE 4370 B 62TR
B8 27T~ EXFIRZAITIERE - TRERR
BEORIZEZE 35% - BIREGT R R
F - ORERATHEREZE125 - 15K 15
(BIEETHAR)  EHEBERERS
5% ~ TEHARR 2R 3 2 3% K 4 & B 4
R316% - 3.87% % 3.81% (FIBEEE{THT
[B) o LATEHARR (BRI sRIZEEFTE 2K IE
AR =F 2 ROEBEEEAAETON
B ELHE o

THE+-_A=+—H% R=-ZF
A 75 B A& 6,000,000 17 B p& #E 5
AR EGIREM 43 T2 BRRBARD

(ANNPS

7]
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25 RESERVES

Balance at 1 January 2004

Transfer to reserves (i)
Currency translation differences
Profit for the year
Transfer to income
statement upon disposal
Revaluation
- gross
- tax
Dividend relating to 2003
Dividend relating to 2004
Issue of shares under employee
share option scheme

Share issue expenses

Balance at 31 December 2004

Representing -
2004 Final dividend proposed

Others

Analysed by -
Company and subsidiaries
Jointly controlled entity

Associate

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4& B 7 &R M =
25
Consolidated
me
Investment Cumulative
property currency
Share  revaluation Statutory translation Retained
premium reserve reserves differences earnings Total
RENE 2itEH
B EE EfhfE EERE EiZHE REEF b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BETT BT BETTL BETTL BT BT
i Jufed
-B-Bz&s 618,849 992,569 84,499 3,966 844,921 2,544,804
BEEEE() = = 48,879 - (48,879) =
EMERZS - - - 7) - 7)
FERF - = - - 432,785 432,785
REEREZERR - (52,317) - - - (52,317)
B
-@ - 300,120 - - - 300,120
-HE - (92,874) - = = (92,874)
BRZZZ=F/RE - - - - (30,060) (30,060)
BER-ZZMF2zRE - - - - (30,090) (30,090)
REE B BRET 2
E1RG 1,070 = - - = 1,070
RAETRS (4 - - - - (4
RZEZMF+=A
“+-Bz&R 619,915 1,147,498 133,378 3,959 1,168,677 3,073,427
R&-
BR-2ZmE
AR & 60,180
Bty 1,108,497
1,168,677
A—
ARARHBAR 1,034,600
HAZHES 135,929
YN (1,852)
1,168,677
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 RESERVES (Continued)

Balance at 1 January 2005

Reclassification of negative
goodwill to retained earnings
Reclassification of revaluation

reserve to retained eamings

Balance at 1 January 2005 after

opening adjustments

Transfer to reserves (i)
Currency translation differences
Profit for the year
Dividend relating to 2004
Dividend relating to 2005
Employee share options scheme

- value of services provided
Issue of shares

- placements

- employee share

option scheme

Share issue expenses

Balance at 31 December 2005

Representing -
2005 Final dividend proposed

Others

Analysed by -
Company and subsidiaries
Jointly controlled entity

Associate

RZZZRE
—-B-Bz&H

KEBmEENAE
ZREEF

KERRBENIE

EREARMN

EELENARE
R_EEHE
—A—-Be#s

BERB0
ERERZR
ERRN
BR-TZMELRE
BER-FRREZKRE
ERRRESE

-EERKEE
B1R0

—ER

- BB ERE

RinBIHEY
W-EZRE+-A
S+—Rz&H%

R&-
WE-ZTHE
FARE
=R

25 & )

Consolidated

RE B R AR M EE

)
Investment Cumulative
property currency
Share  revaluation Statutory translation Retained
premium reserve reserves  differences earnings Total
RENE 2iER
R EE EfhfE EERE ERZR REBT @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BB BB BRI BRI BB
619,915 1,147,498 133,378 3,959 1,168,677 3,073,427
- - - - 164,890 164,890
- (1,147,498) - - 1,147,498 -
619,915 - 133,378 3,959 2,481,065 3,238,317
- - 20,636 - (20,636) -
- - - 62,133 - 62,133
- - - - 1,217,323 1,217,323
- - - - (60,180) (60,180)
- - - - (117,351) (117,351)
23,447 - - - - 23,447
957,865 - - - - 957,865
42,000 - - - - 42,000
(21,206) - - - - (21,206)
1,622,021 - 154,014 66,092 3,500,221 5342,348
295,143
3,205,078
3,500,221
3,174,591
327,438
(1,808)
3,500,221

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& 0 # &R i &F
25 RESERVES (Continued) 13%1% (4&)
Company
AT
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
B’ 3 RE = B8 & F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T BT T
Balance at 1 January 2004 RZZEZTME
—A—Rz#& 618,849 80,122 698,971
Profit for the year F 5 A = 93,436 93,436
Issue of shares under employee R B IE A i
share option scheme TEIZ TR 1,070 - 1,070
Share issue expenses AR BATR X (4) = (4)
Payment of dividends = AR B - (60,150) (60,150)
Balance at 31 December 2004 RZZEZTWFE+=A
=+—B2H#ER 619,915 113,408 733,323
Representing — K& —
2004 Final dividend proposed K _ZZTMF
REIRR 60,180
Others HAh 53,228
113,408
Balance at 1 January 2005 RZZEZTRF
—R—Bz&& 619,915 113,408 733,323
Profit for the year FREHMN - 387,827 387,827
Issue of shares BT
— placements — BEA% 957,865 = 957,865
— employee share option scheme — EEBEREE 42,000 = 42,000
Share issue expenses f% 7 31T 2 (21,2006) - (21,2006)
Employee share option scheme & 8 AR T2l
— value of services provided —EERKEE 23,447 = 23,447
Payment of dividends ZA’RE - (177,531) (177,531)
Balance at 31 December 2005 RZZEZTRF
+—A=+—H 1,622,021 323,704 1,945,725
Representing — K& —
2005 Final dividend proposed BE_ZZTAF
REIRE 295,143
Others HAh 28,561
323,704
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

(i)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserves and
enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be
utilised for the development of business operations. During
the year ended 31 December 2005, the boards of directors of
the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China appropriate an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$20,636,000 (2004:
HK$48,879,000) to the statutory reserves and determined not

to make any appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund.

26 OTHER GAINS

25 ##E ®)
Hiat -

(i)

1ZBB R BIAREER T © ANA AR BIKBER
N REEZHBRARARERB G (KK
HBEFEEER) PBE - BOHEEERE
EoR¥ERRERES  WRTTHEAESSE
E o AERBESA AEREBTFERBEXR
FREEITAIRR - M XBERES R AERR
% - REE-_TTRAF+=-_A=1+—HLHF
B ARBZHRBERENBARZES S R
KK M 20,636,000 (ZZTZTWF : B
48,879,000 ) EXTEREBES RRETS N
EhEERES -

2005 2004
—ERE2RF i3 JUIECS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Excess of acquirer’s interest over Wi AR E
cost of acquisition RUEE XA 2 58 191,688 -
Fair value gains on
investment properties WEMEZ A EWR R 14,232 =
Government grants (i) I 48 B2 (7) 56,074 113,222
Interest income from banks RATHLE WA 17,382 4,484
279,376 117,706
Note: Kt -
(i)  This represents grants received from government bureaus in (i) UETIRE R BKRE B TR < f B o

Mainland China.
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27 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing

costs and general and administrative expenses are analysed

as follows:

Advertising costs

Amortisation of goodwill (included in

general and administrative expenses)

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights (Note 6)
Amortisation of issuance costs and
premium of senior notes (Note 22)
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of properties
and equipment (Note 7)
Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
— generate rental income
- did not generate rental income
Employment cost (including directors’
emoluments) (Note 28)
Loss on sale of properties
and equipment (Note 34)
Net exchange loss
Operating lease rental

in respect of premises

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B R R M EE

27 BB D 2HAX

EEmRL

2 i 5
GFA—RRITHAX)

FAE 1 b K2 4 Hb {55 FR R 48 5
(Hiax 6)

BEAZRZBHITRAR
B (K 22)

1% SN B

MERREIE (MfaL7)

A THEBIRENEEEZ
BEEKERX
—EEESHA
—WEELHETHA

BEARAEX (BREFMHE)
(it 28)

HEMERREER (W 34)
PE B 1R F R

MEZEEHERS

2005

—g2ng

HK$'000
BETT

175,130

15,721

1,685
2,350

16,284

1,342

3,121

187,528

7,047
8,483

9,296

X BREEEKRA - HE TS HERK
Ko AR—BETHRAS - 20T

2004

— T NF
HK$'000

BT T
135,497

5,233

4,849

1,500

8,759

3,902

597

143,626

255
549

5,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

28 EMPLOYMENT COST (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTYS)
Salaries and allowances e MoERL
Sales commission and bonus HEME RIEA

Share-based payments

(Share options granted) (BREZERE)
Pension costs RIRE KA

— Defined contribution plans — FE MG E

— Provision for long-service payment -~ RERB BB

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter

contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees in mainland China.
The Group’s employees make monthly contributions to
the plans at approximately 8% of the relevant income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the
Group contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has
no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired

employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the
aggregate amount of the employer contributions made

by the Group amounted to
HK$17,677,000 (2004: HK$14,557,000).

approximately

AR R BB 2 (B A

28 &

SA (BRESHE)
2005 2004
—RYEF  —TINE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
89,838 89,893
56,465 39,166
23,447 =
17,677 14,557
101 10
187,528 143,626

BARERAR — FREMR-KEE
AEEEREEERELHSE IR
B — B ERAEE 2 ERHNE
g REAESEE ([BE
srEl]) - REBRESE - AKH
(BEX) REREBEBARBHMER
BEEPIMAESE A RZERERAZ
5% [F% =T 8I1F = AKX - BERE
EFECE AR ERERAER
1,000 7T * i Z B 1,000 TTIAR Z
HRABEREEE -

RBHRBAEZZRMETE  ASER
HRPBEAEZEEEE—EHRER
BB ZRIATE - AEBEEBAK
HEBBRA (BEF - ZHRT
A1) #98% HETEIEL R - AEE
BIEZE WA 12% & 22% EHAEER ©
BRI REEYEE MY E
BRASNRET - BREBH 2RI
SFEAESXMHRAKER Z2IRIK
4 0

E—EERE+-A=+—HItE
EHE  AEEEL 2 EEHRRERE
FEA B 17,677,000 (ZZEZM
4 ¢ ¥ 14,557,000 T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EMPLOYMENT COST

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments

(INCLUDING

The remuneration of every director for the year ended

31 December 2005 is set out below:

28 EEXA (BHEESH

b) E=M=

RE B R R M EE

®) (&)

BE-STRF+-_A=+—AL%F
B REEZMERIIOT -

Employer's
Salaries contribution
and Share-based to pension
Fees  allowance payments scheme Total
BEHR
Name of Director ek i qngiZ Kesta
EEps ik 2 AR AT gt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T AT T BT BET T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BERELE - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying PR Rk - 1,185 = = 1,185
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAKAEE - - - - =
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (i) BREXAL() - 2,530 7,400 8 9,938
Mr. Wu Jiesi (i) HEDLE () - 3,361 11,187 8 14,556
Mr. Xiang Bin Epn e - 2,008 - 12 2,020
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia BERERL - 970 - 37 1,007
- 10,294 18,587 77 28,958
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Chen Xiaohong (i) PR /NAT 22 1 () = = = = =
Mr. Hu Yongmin (i) B LA - - - - -
Mr. Shafran Steven (i) 1 B B 5% A (i) = = 4,860 = 4,860
- - 4,860 - 4,860
Independent B EHIT
non-executive directors =
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEELE 100 = = = 100
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver E=AE L& 100 - - - 100
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip Bribi@ sk & 100 - = - 100
300 - - - 300
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E E R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

28 EMPLOYMENT COST (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

28 BEKAK (BIEEEH

The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31

December 2004 is set out below:

®) (&)

b) EEBE (&)
BE_ZTTNE+_A=+—HItHF
B BEZFZHMEHNMT :

Employer’s
contribution

Salaries and Share-based to pension

Fees  allowance payments scheme Total
EBEXHE
Name of Director ek i qngiZ K&stEl
EEpg e )=4:1 ERNE Z R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BB T BETT ok e
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin MERELE - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying PR Rk - 884 - - 884
Mr. Cheung Fong Wing (ii) 5k & 5E 4 (i) - 100 - = 100
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMKEE = - - = =
Mr. Xiang Bin Y = 1,992 = 12 2,004
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia BARERL - 1,144 - 12 1,156
- 4,360 - 36 4,396
Independent B EHT
non-executive directors BE=
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEELE 70 = = = 70
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver ~ m#&E % £ 70 - - - 70
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip Brib 8o & 70 - - - 70
210 - - - 210
Notes: B aE -

() Mr. Tam Lai Ling was appointed on 29 April 2005, Mr. Wu
Jiesi was appointed on 29 April 2005, Ms. Chen Xiaohong
was appointed on 13 September 2005, Mr. Hu Yongmin
was appointed on 28 November 2005, and Mr. Shafran
Steven was appointed on 9 August 2005.

(i) Mr. Cheung Fong Wing resigned on 24 May 2004.

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of
HK$240,000 (2004: HK$240,000).

(i)

BREREALENR _ZTRFHA—+
NEEZRE BREEREENR_ZZE
EFMAZ+NABERE BRI
IR -_ZETZRAFNAT=BEE
£ HEBEER-_ZZRF+—
AT NBEZEREZRBEER
“ETRENANBEEZE-

REREEN_ZZMFRAA -+
P E BHE o

FA - REKEEREBY 240,000 T2
e (ZZZTMF : B 240,0007T) o

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

28 EMPLOYMENT COST (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTY) (Continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2004: three)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining two individuals during the year ended 31

December 2004 are as follows:

Salaries and allowances e MoEBL

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands B <& &3 [E]
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7 It

28 BEKAK (BIEEEH

(0 BABEZE®FAL

®) (&)

AEEAREEARBFAL BT
% (ZTEME:=%) £F 0%
ZMEER EXH 252 HHTRS -
BE-TEMFI-A=+—ALF
B BN FRABMEA LMD

o

2005
—2TIF
HK$’000
BT

N/A 7 E H

2004
—EETF
HK$'000
ST

1,686

M F TR :

Number of individuals

ATHAE

2005
—2TIF

N/A FiE H

2004
— T OF
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29

30

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

FINANCE COSTS 29 BAFEAAR
2005 2004
—ERRRF i3 JUIECS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest expense: MERX :
— on bank loans wholly repayable —ARAFATBHER
within five years B ER1TE R 231,670 205,213
— on senijor notes not wholly repayable  — AR AT ABHEE
within five years BB R RE 31,247 -
Total borrowing costs incurred S K2 BEE KA 262,917 205,213
Less: Amount capitalised as part of W BREBRERYEZIHD
the cost of properties under BN 2 5K IE
development (202,951) (191,838)
59,966 13,375

The average interest rates of borrowing costs capitalised for
the year ended 31 December 2005 was approximately 5.9%
(2004: 5.7%) per annum.

TAXATION

(@) Hong Kong profits tax
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year ended 31 December 2005.

(b) Other income tax
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda
until March 2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin
Islands are incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands
and, accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin

Islands income taxes.

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland
China are subject to Mainland China enterprise income
tax at the rate of 33% (2004: 33%) for the year ended 31
December 2005.

REBEE-_TTAF+-A=+—HIEF
B BREANEEXNRHTHERELD
#59% (ZZEZNF : 57%) -

30 #MIA

(a) BEMEM
ERNEGRIIREBEE—_STRF+=
A=+ — B2 A ERM G AR
17.5% (ZZZWF  17.5%) HFHE
B o

(b) EHABLFTFH
ARREREBRERERREE
TNF=ZH HERBRIEENIL
FY I B A B TOAR 1R 5L U X B B B R
R BDEEMASL - Btk - B R
REBRAZEEMEN -

HE_TETRF+_A=+—HIF
& RRRR R BARER M RS EH
MiB A TR 33% (ZZT4E : 33%)
ZREHRIPBARESEMEH -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

30 TAXATION (Continued)
(c) Mainland China land appreciation tax (c)
Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land and development and construction

expenditures.

30 1B (&)

H [ K e - 3 3R (E B

REIRRE L IR E B P L 3R (E - B
& 55 3 EE P 1S SRR FORR AT H10RR B
(BRI HHERR X REEKA)
RZHET K 30% Z 60% B -

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
Mainland China enterprise
income tax
Mainland China land

appreciation tax

Transfer to/(from) deferred tax
Hong Kong profits tax
Mainland China enterprise

income tax
Mainland China land

appreciation tax

AT R
BAEMNEH
RB AR EMEH

Fh B K B £ AR (B Y

wx/ (BB) BEHE
BEMNEH
B R B (b P 1S B

B K e £ R (B

Share of jointly controlled entity’s taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2005 of approximately
HK$78,866,000 (2004: HK$57,269,000) is included in the
income statement as share of profits of and other gains

relating to a jointly controlled entity.

2005 2004
—REEFE  —TINE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT
17,426 18,087
484,998 496,357
36,518 394
L i
(7,650) =
(78,117) (272,724)
158,271 56,224
________ 72,504 (216300
611,446 298,338

HE-_ZTTRAF+_A=+—HILF
ERGHAEHERHIEBELNRBE
78,866,000 (—ZZZPUF : HH
57,269,000 7T) * WEREZEK AT
ERth—REREGEEE 2 amf RE
2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

30 TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Mainland China land appreciation tax (Continued)
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated companies as follows:

30 WMIE (&)
(b) " EIARE+THIEER ()
A [ 7 B B AR R BURER A GEA A)
METEREFBESE EHhe
BHMER  HEMT :

Profit before tax
Less: Share of profit of and other
gains relating to a jointly

controlled entity

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates

applicable to profits in the
respective jurisdictions
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Land appreciation tax deductible
for calculation of income
tax purposes
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses

Deferred tax asset not recognised

Land appreciation tax

2005 2004
—EERE —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
BR 5% B & A 1,812,627 816,146
W o E— R
122 I 2 R e A
o H b U 25 (191,509) (57,732)
1,621,118 758,414
BN & RIAER 2 a T
HEABR AR ETE
ZTIE 514,020 265,624
TH R U A (68,297) (15,920)
EOLIEi L vds-gun! 19,245 9,138
AIHBIE BT E MG
R 2 + s E
(64,281) (18,684)
FRBEARER
I E 18 (1,492) (981)
FAARZIELEHRIBE E 17,462 2,543
416,657 241,720
T 3B E R 194,789 56,618
611,446 298,338
IREFEF R A 32% (—TTPO4F -

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 32%

(2004: 35%). The decrease is caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group's subsidiaries in the respective

jurisdictions.

31 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$387,827,000 (2004: HK$93,436,000).

35%) o NERIIMRAKERIEREAE
BB AR ZBNEBFTER

31 NRBIBAERA ARG

ARARBREEEAEMLRF B
387,827,000t (ZZEZTMWHE : B
93,436,000 7C) RAR A BB HRE AR
H%O

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders RNRAFREREE A
of the Company J& {5 % A

Weighted average number of

FIB (FR)

ordinary shares in issue ('000)

Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Company has 10,000,000 share options outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2005, which are dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average daily market share price of
the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to the outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been

issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

ERTE B INE

BRELREF (BBET)

RE B R R M EE

32 BIRAF
HAR
SRR R A TR IEA A FRIER B A JE
165% R LA S PO B 3617 2 5B AR 2 n4E 45
AW -

2005 2004
—EEhHEF — T OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
1,217,323 432,785
1,075,707 1,002,749
1.13 0.43

e

ATESREEATE  BEHEBETEERK
ZINFEF I EELH TR - ARZAE B
SEB N 2 B ARIER R o AR EIRE
E_TETRF+_A=+—HILFEHR
10,000,000 Az EL#E5E & ) 2 1 KT BB IR
T o SHETIRIR M R TT L HE ARFBEFT T 2 3R
Bz ESEEL  BUERELAT
B (B AARRRMD2EBHFHIRE)
WhE 2D 28 B - EXFstE 2R%
B hEREERERETEME ET2RG
HEH LR -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

il

i
i)
>
ol



ANNUAL REPORT 2005 F 5§ W

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

Diluted (Continued)

32 BREFM @)
s ()

2005 2004
—ERRRF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit attributable to equity holders RNRRREREE A
of the Company JEAE 4 A 1,217,323 432,785
Weighted average number of ordinary B 317 & B AR < H1H#
shares in issue (‘000) FHE (TR 1,075,707 1,002,749
Adjustments for share options ('000) BRERE (TH) 1,971 97
Weighted average number of ordinary 5T ESRETRF 2
shares for diluted earnings per share BB AR IR T 1 B
('000) (FB) 1,077,678 1,002,846
Diluted earnings per share TiR#EE &R
(HKS$ per share) (BR*ET) 1.13 0.43
DIVIDENDS 33 K&
2005 2004
—ERRRF —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.0975 BN EREETRE R
(2004: HK$0.03) per ordinary share B 0.0975 0 (ZEEPNF - 117,351 30,090
75¥ 0.037T)
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.242 B R HA I B A R AR
(2004: HK$0.06) per ordinary share B 02420 (ZEZENF
B ¥ 0.067T) 295,143 60,180
412,494 90,270
The proposed final dividends had to be approved by B AR EAKRRENFEBRBITZ
shareholders at Annual General Meeting subsequent to year RRBFERG LHE RZZZTRF+Z
end. The financial statements as at 31 December 2005 have RA=+—RAzWBHREPIERRZEZRE

not reflected such dividend payable.

TS »
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ARE B R AR A

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 4 REFSZRE
2005 2004
—ERRRF —EFMF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year F 25 A 1,201,181 517,808
Adjustments for: HEE
— Income tax expense —FTSBiAX 611,446 298,338
— Interest income —HMEWA (17,382) (4,484)
— Finance costs — BB E AR 59,966 13,375
— Share-based payments — ARG RER 2 ER
(Share options granted) (BERE 2 ERE) 23,447 -
— Share of profit of and other — o5 —HHEREG EE
gains relating to a jointly S A B H At I 2%
controlled entity (191,509) (57,732)
— Share of (profit)/loss of S5 — BB & R A
an associate CaF) /&8 (44) 734
— Depreciation of properties —MERZEINE
and equipment 16,284 8,759
— Loss on sale of properties and —HEYMERFZEERE
equipment (see below) (RTFx) 7,047 255
— Amortisation of leasehold land — M & 4 b Jo 4 b {5 A A 8E
and land use rights 59,350 56,789
— Capitalisation of leasehold land and —MHE L Rk T fE R
land use rights amortisation BIiHE M (43,629) (51,940)
— Fair value gains on —IEYEQ T AL
investment properties (14,232) -
— Amortisation of issuance costs and — BITR AN S R B
premium of senior notes EBHE 1,685 —
— Amortisation of goodwill — B - 5,233
— Excess of acquirer’s interest over — W T R m IR
cost of acquisition PR 7N 2 E3 1% (191,688) —
Changes in working capital (excluding HEEEY (TEREKE
the effects of acquisition and exchange ®ZKiRAGKRE 2
differences on consolidation): fEHZR)
— leasehold land and land use rights — & b & £ (F A (478,212) (1,662,247)
— Properties for sale — A E 2% (18,797) 583,174
— Accounts receivable — FEUER 3K (8,675) (37,374)
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENRIE  ReREM
other current assets )& E (29,412) 38,008
— Accounts payable — BT BRI 127,797 (791,457)
— Land cost payables — S bR AN (27,663) 898,028
— Deferred revenue —BEEWA (605,845) 1,554,267
— Accruals and other payables — FERTFRIA K Ho A & < 5B (89,807) 37,479
- Mainland China business tax payable — — J&{f A B A f & 5 51 65,355 (31,657)
Cash generated from operations KES 2IHE 456,663 1,375,356
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 34
(Continued)

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of properties

REFMISZIRE (8)

RESRERA > HEMEERBEZAEF

and equipment comprise: HIEBLE
2005 2004
—ZEZIF —ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B TFT
Net book amount REFE 8,373 255
Loss on sale of properties HEME R R IEEE
and equipment (7,047) (255)
Proceeds from sale of HEMFE R R IBATEHIE
properties and equipment 1,326 -
35 CONTINGENCIES 35 HARBRE
Contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial WER B HmKR P IERBE 2 ABER
statements are as follows: T e
Consolidated Company
=a AT
2005 2004 2005 2004
—ERLIF —TTMF —FELIF —_TITNOF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ABETT BE¥TR BETT
Guarantees given to banks for FEEE AEEH
mortgage facilities granted MEZBEREMH
to certain buyers of the &8 8 R [ ER1T
Group's properties TEH 2 IR 4,023,544 3,270,473 - -
Guarantees given to banks for BEEE R A ZR1T
bank borrowings of BERAIRITIED
related companies ZHER - 80,189 - =
Guarantees given to banks for FHE QA Z BT
bank borrowings ERmRITIEL
of subsidiaries ZER - - 1,423,071 627,427
4,023,544 3,350,662 1,423,071 627,427
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EH B R & E R A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

35 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

STATEMENTS #H&%&

35 sAEE (&)
WREIER E X7 AEBBE L FZGE

The Group's share of contingent liabilities of the jointly

controlled entity (Note 15), not included in the above, was

as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to
certain buyers of the jointly

controlled entity’s properties

36 COMMITMENTS
(a)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not

yet incurred are as follows:

Authorised and contracted for
— Acquisition of equity interests
in Mainland China entities
— Acquisition of further interest
in a jointly controlled entity
— Capital contribution to a
jointly controlled entity

— Property construction costs

Authorised but not contracted for
— Land costs

— Property construction costs

Bt 75 ¥R R MY R

BoHABE (MEE15) 0T :

Consolidated

wE
2005 2004
—EERF —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
MEELREH EE
Y2 BERBHIZE
BERimmiRiTER
ZER 191,388 159,687
36 HAIE
(a) BAAHE
REEBHETNEEREEZERH
SR
Consolidated
wE
2005 2004
—EERF —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ST
EREREL
—WEEREKETE 2
& A = 955,903 -
— S U — R K
i = el e 129,808 468,775
— R — R RESE
ZEBXRER 100,980 162,360
S /E 3= Y %N 5,766,756 3,638,794
6,953,447 4,269,929
DERREEKRTA
— AR 884,918 1,087,019
S /JE$= £ FiN 15,682,350 18,376,026
e567.268 N EE
23,520,715 23,732,974
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS # &8

36 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(a) Capital commitments (Continued)

The Group's share of capital commitments of a jointly

controlled entity (Note 15), not included in the above,

was as follows:

Authorised and contracted for
— Land costs

— Property construction costs

Authorised but not contracted for
— Land costs

— Property construction costs

ERERERTA
— LHIARR
—WERBENK

EREERETL
— LHIARR
—MERERAK

The Company has no capital commitment as at 31

December 2005 (2004: Nil).

36 EIE ()
(a) BARKE (&)

% ¥R & M &

WARBER ERZ ANEE#E MR

R 58 2 & AR
T

(B5E15) %A

Consolidated

&a
2005 2004
—REEFE  —TINE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT
105,348 67,910
231,271 184,136
336819 252,046
90,520 50,912
1,282,219 966,629
1,372,739 1,017,541
1,709,358 1,269,587
ARAR=FTAS+=A=+—A
W EAESE (ZEEME | -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & £ &R &

B AR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

36 COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect
of premises under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as

follows:

Amounts payable
—— %R
—ZERFN

— Within one year

— Within two to five years

The Group leased out certain investment properties
under operating leases. Refer to Note 8 for the Group's
future rental income under non-cancellable operating

leases.

The Company has no operating lease commitment as
at 31 December 2005 (2004: Nil).

STATEMENTS

=
N

B BHRKRKE

36 EIE ()

THIEIRZAN 2 FRIR

(b)

AT E AR
AEBERZNEBEEYMEZ T E
HICEHEMRMACEHERE -
BB FEEBELAN B %2 &EER
MamT :

Consolidated

i)
2005 2004
—EEREF —EETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B’ T
8,152 4,971
26,795 3,431
34,947 8,402

AEERBEEHEHLETRED
X - ARAKERETAFHEEHZ
REBESWA - BLRHES °

ARABN—_EERE+_-_A=1+—H
THEEEAERE (ZZTWNF -
/) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(a) Acquisitions completed in 2005

37

In December 2005, the Group acquired the entire equity

interest in Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Co. Ltd., which

holds the land use rights of a plot of land in Huizhou,

Guangdong Province,

Mainland China,

at a

consideration of approximately HK$307,295,000.

Details of net assets acquired and the related goodwill

are as follows:

Purchase consideration (i)

Less: Fair value of net assets acquired

— shown as below

Goodwill

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition

are as follows:

Land use rights and properties
under development for sale

Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets acquired

Cash inflow arised from cash and
cash equivalents in a subsidiary

acquired at the date of acquisition

= A
Iéﬁ/'.l'\l:l

BF 7% AR M A

a0

(a) RZETRF T WE
R-ZBERF+=F @ REBULE
& 307,295,000 7T 2 X B W B =
THEHEFR AR IR AR -
ZATEE RN PBARERERE
BN T2 e A o

BBz BEREFIERABEEN
T

HK$'000
BT T
BEREG 307,295
B BEWBEEFREZ
~NYE — FRIOT (237,971)
e 69,324
WEELEZEERBEBWNT
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
WWES 2
NS REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
T i {5 PR A R AT 4 &
ZERERYE 314,553 146,112
TENFRIE - e REHM
mENE E 218 218
HehBEESEEY 12 12
FREFRIBAE (76,812) -
BWEEEFE 237,971 146,342
RUREE B HAUWEE 2 8 A &)
ZReERBEEEMAM
EEZRARE 12

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEAREB AR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(@) Acquisitions completed in 2005 (Continued)
In July 2005, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Sun Advance Investments Limited, which
holds a 50% equity interest in Interwell Development
Limited which in turn holds a 100% interest in Shanghai
Mintai Real Estate Company Limited, at a consideration
of US$1. Shanghai Mintai Real Estate Company Limited
owns the land use right of a plot of land for commercial

purpose located in Pudong, Shanghai, Mainland China.

Details of net assets acquired and the excess of

acquirer’s interest over costs are as follows:

Purchase consideration
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired —

shown as below

Excess of acquirer’s interest over cost

of acquisition

37 EBat @)

@ RZZETRFTHRZIWE (&)
R-ZEZERFLH  NEEUARE1
ETWERERERR AT Z 2K
KR Z 2D AFA Interwell
Development Limited 2 50% % A #
m o e E DEREEMEGRA
Al HEzE - LERFTEWESBR
NEFA BN BIARE F/8HR
PEEME Ttz TR -

BB EEFEIBBETERSNAK

AZ BB FBLT
HK$'000
BT
BEAE -
W BMBARERELZ
ANEE—FRWAT (191,688)

W B8 75 2 e A UL B
XA 2 B D (191,688)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(@) Acquisitions completed in 2005 (Continued)

37 ¥BE6 ')

(a)

R-ZETRFZXWE (&)

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions

are as follows:

Properties and equipment

Land use rights and properties
under development for sale

Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts payable

Accruals and other payables

Long-term bank loan

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Minority interest

Net assets acquired

Cash inflow arising from cash and
cash equivalents in a subsidiary

acquired at the date of acquisition

In December 2005, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Beijing Zhujiang Century Property
Management Limited, a company engaging in property
management, at RMB1,000,000 from a minority
shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company and

a subsidiary of this minority shareholder.

WERELECEERARWMT

Acquiree’s

carrying

Fair value amount

WS 2

AFE BREE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

L E YL ] 488 488

THE AR AEEE 2
BRERBPYE 764,150 250,868
TBRNFIE - e kEA

M E 312 312

RekREEFED 994 994

FETBR SR (1,170) (1,170)

FEET RRIE 2 AL th & < R IE (74,378) (74,383)

REISRITE R (235,849) (235,849)

FERIEE R (71,101) -

BEFE 383,446 (58,740)
DERR RS (191,758)
BB & EFE 191,688

RULEE B ER S 2 BT 8 2 =)
ZHRERReEEBYMR
EEZRARS

994

REZZEZTRFETZR  AEENUAR
¥ 1,000,000 JTHEA A
Al —BLERRERZDVERE 2 —
A B A BB R T W EE

AETHEAR

BARATZ 2 IRAMS - KB
MUEENRERL AR -

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEAREB AR QA

175



176

B ANNUAL REPORT 2005 £ #}
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(@) Acquisitions completed in 2005 (Continued)

Details of net liabilities acquired and the related

goodwill are as follows:

37 ¥BE6 ')

B BHRKRKE

@) R-ZETRFERZIWE (&)

BB B EF
T

BLREHEBEZFREN

HK$'000

BT T

Purchase consideration BERE 952
Less: Fair value of net liabilities acquired B BEREBaETEE L

— shown as below ~NYE — FRINT 21,762

Goodwill [EES 22,714

WERELECEERARWMT ¢

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions are

as follows:

Fair value and acquiree’s
carrying amount

NP ERBLIES
ZREE
HK$'000
BT T
Properties and equipment L E NG L] 841
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets TBNHIE - RE R
HiREEE 18,785
Amount due from related companies FEW B A R FRIE 23,261
Cash and cash equivalents HehBLEEY 3,126
Accruals and other payables J& 51 R IR B B 8 5 FRIE (67,476)
Current tax liabilities MENIE B & (299)
Net liabilities acquired B E A EFEE (21,762)
Purchase consideration (i) BEREN (952)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired EWENBEAR2RE R
ReSEY 3,126
Cash inflow on acquisition R EER 2 IR &7t 2,174
Note: Hat -

() RZZEERF+-A=+—R0 zZK
BEEMNREMART A REAM
&N FRIA -

(i) As at 31 December 2005, such consideration was not

settled and was included in accruals and other payables.
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisitions not yet completed as at 31 December

2005

On 23 December 2005, the Group entered into a contract
to acquire the 100% equity interest in Karworld Holdings
Limited, a company with a development project in Haizhu,
Guanzhou, Mainland China, for a consideration of
approximately HK$185,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB192,400,000). As at 31 December 2005,

the acquisition has not been completed.

On 28 December 2005, the Group entered into a contract
to acquire the 51% equity interest in Shanghai Ze Yu
Properties Limited, a company with a development project
in Shanghai, Mainland China, for a consideration of
approximately HK$57,365,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB59,660,000). As at 31 December 2005, the acquisition

has not been completed.

On 30 December 2005, the Group entered into a contract
to establish a company to develop a site located in Heping,
Tianjin, Mainland China. The Group is committed to
contribute a total of approximately HK$359,543,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB373,925,000). to obtain

the 90% equity interest in the new company.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

37 ¥BE6 ')

(b)

R-_BEZERF+_A=+—8BM™H
RIERK 2 U BE

R-ZEERFE+_A-+=H K&
B —HEOWEENEEERA
A (RPEAMENGREESDE
BRIBE CARF) Z 100% i 7N #
= - RIBH#AB% 185,000,000 7T (49
HEN AR 192,400,000 7T) ° R=
TTERE+=-A=+—8 WESEE
MARTER o

RZZEZRF+ZA=+N\B ' &&
B —HEOWE EEEFEES
RARE (RPBRM EEEEMER
RBIEB 227 51% AR - KB
#) A7 H 57,365,000 7T (KIHEERA
K% 59,660,0007T) - RZEZTHF
+ZA=+—H KBESZEEDART
5‘( o

R-ZBERE+-_A=+H A&£H
I —HEHKY—ERAR - AR
—{ERL A A B A i RS2 A 2 i AR o
N5 B FGE & #9785 ¥ 359,543,000
7T (A E R AR 373,925,000
) LAEISET A Rl Z 90% AR AN e

7L
Sz
m °

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 52.5% to 63.6% (2004: 63.6%) of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December 2005.
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited and Tiger Global
Performance, L.C.C. each holds 8.3% of the Company’s

shares. The remaining shares are widely held.

(@) The following significant transactions were carried

38 BEALRS

RATIHRBKREEES - ARBE-T
ERE+_A=T—RILEFERAEERLD
52.5% £ 63.6% (ZZTMFE : 63.6%) &N
NA)IED ° Temasek Holdings (Private)

Limited & Tiger Global Performance,
LC.C. ZRB AR ARG 8.3%  8R NiD

HEMALEZFESR °

() THSHERBEATETIEER

out with related parties: 5
Sales of goods and services HEEmRRHK
2005 2004
—EZHF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property design services to RETHRAZHERZ
a jointly controlled entity ) % REH IR TS - 12,000
Rental services to RETFHEERFZ
a related company (i) HER% () 2,625 2,661
Consultancy services RETHEERT
to related companies 2 R AR 75 4,828 -
7,453 14,661
Purchases of goods and services BEEmRE®
2005 2004
—EZRF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEET T
Property construction services FEARREZME
from related companies (i) 32 28 R 7 (i) 3,092,000 2,090,000
Property design services from BEARRE R
related companies (i) R BT AR 7% (i) 13,574 15,248
Communication network
installation services from B A AR 2 A
a related company (i) 4848 2 HE IR 7S () 15,235 5,227
Decoration services from FEARRMEZ
a related company (i) 25 50 AR 75 (i) 6,124 1,464
Office rental services from HENRIRME I HAE
related companies (i) & R () 5,648 4,434
Property management services BERRRE ZME
from related companies (i) B 12 R A% (i) 4,159 5,023
3,136,740 2,121,396
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A 4 8lE£M A5 R 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt % 3R & Mt 5%

38 ABEBALTRS (&)
T EEEEATEBAZEER

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) The following significant transactions were carried (a)

out with related parties: (Continued)

In December 2005, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Beijing Zhujiang Century Property
Management Limited, a company engaging in property
management, at RMB1,000,000 from a minority
shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company and

a subsidiary of this minority shareholder (see Note 39).

In June 2005, the Group completed the acquisition of
further interests in a jointly controlled entity from
minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the

Company (see Note 15).
Note:
()  These related companies are minority shareholders of

certain subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of

these minority shareholders.

2 (&)

RZZFZERF+ A AEENUAR
# 1,000,000 Tl AR EAE THELQ
A — & DB R iz 2 B R O
BARWRBIL AT ELMEEESR
RAF (—EREVEEENRE)
ZEEE AR (RME39) -

R-ZZTTRENA  AEEBTKAX
REETHER RN HRFBER
—MHRRAEERZE— PR (R
BfsE 15) -

ZEMBERBRARRETHER
A DB R Mz F D BRI
7\

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

38 FEATRS (&)
b) W HEEATZENT

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were as

follows:
2005 2004
—BTAF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Due from related companies FEU R E A A
Amount due from minority
shareholders of certain
subsidiaries of the Company FEWA R RS THBARF
and subsidiaries of these MOHRRERZEDH
minority shareholders G Ao NCI P 2,285 2,170
Due to an associate fE {51 Bt 2 ) 5,146 1,192
Due to directors ENES
Mr Chu Mang Yee KRAMKEE 13,227 15,003
Mr Au Wai Kin BERLE 664 664
13,891 15,667
Less: Non-current portion B RS
Mr Chu Mang Yee BREE - (10,000)
13,891 5,667
Due to related companies B EER A
Amount due to minority ERARRETHERRD
shareholders of certain LEBRRNZE
subsidiaries of the Company DERRE
and subsidiaries of these =N
minority shareholders Z A
— purchase consideration — BEAE 144,284 304,993
— advances — B 122,078 174,256
Amount due to a related company,  EfIEIE R BIFUE
which is beneficially owned by FZRBIHARE—H
a director of the Company EEE=RHEA - 569
266,362 479,818
Due to a jointly controlled entity JE A [R5 I & 82 148,117 391,006
Due to a holding company FER —RER A RRRIE 18,997 59,000
Less: Non-current portion B SRR EE Y - (59,000)
18,997 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were as

follows: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had accounts
payable of approximately HK$449,404,000 (2004:
HK$123,344,000) due to subsidiaries of minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Company in

respect of property construction fees.

As at 31 December 2005, all outstanding balances with
related companies, directors, an associate, a jointly
controlled entity and the holding company were
unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre-
determined repayment terms, except that amount due
to a director of nil (2004: HK$10,000,000) and amount
due to the holding company of nil (2004: HK$59,000,000)
were not repayable within one year. Amount due to
minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and subsidiaries of these minority
shareholders approximately HK$144,284,000 (2004:
HK$304,993,000) were payable within the next twelve

months.

Pledges and guarantees provided to banks for
related parties were as follows:

As at 31 December 2005, approximately HK$233,442,000
(2004: HK$263,969,000) of the Group's investment
properties, approximately nil (2004: HK$6,938,000) of
the Group's properties under development for long-
term investment, and approximately HK$150,945,000
(2004: HK$58,113,000) of the Group's land use rights
were pledged as collateral for bank loans borrowed by

a jointly controlled entity.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group provided
guarantees to banks for loans borrowed by subsidiaries
of minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the
Company of approximately nil (2004: HK$80,189,000).

RE B R AR M EE

38 FMEALRS #)

b) o EEALE

XRIBAT -
(#)

RZBEERFF+ZA=+—0 ' &&E
EEMARRETHBEAR D E#RE
ZHBRARIZMEREBLNABK
449,404,000 (ZZEZWMFE : B
123,344,000 75) ©

BA:f@ﬂEwL:H:JrfEl - E1fH

FER/NIST - S —FﬁEﬁ%%/AT . —F'Eﬂ
HEEGE S RIZERA T2 2GR
HEER - %E\&Iﬁi‘ﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ ,
HEN—REERESE L (ZTF
P4 : 7% 10,000,000 7T ) M fE {52
BRARREBESHEL (ZZSTNEF : 5
# 59,000,000 7T) HAR —FAE
B ERNARRETHBARZH
B KRZEDERE KB AR 2K
T 47885 144,284,000 T (ZZZ MM
£ A5 304,993,000 7T) ¢ BRAK
+Z@EAESR -

REEATRBITELHCERR
BERIT :
RZFEERFF+=-A=+—H ' B#X
4976 8 233,442,000 & (—ZZEZ M
& B 263,969,000 7T) Z AEEE
BEYE WE (ZZETNF - B
6,938,000 7T) AEEFFERMRIRE 2
R P KB 150,945,000 7T
—ZTTPY4F : BHE 58,113,000 7T) &
REE T EAE  EA—HERE
HEBAENRITERZERR

R-BZRF+-A=+—8 ' K&
B AARETHEBARZ LEBKRRE
ZHBARFEERABRITIRHETS
L (ZZZ4 : % 80,189,000 L)
EIR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #&4 Bt 1% 3k & Kt &%

38 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 MEATRS (&)

(d) Key management compensation: d) ETEZEEBEERM -

2005 2004

—ZETHF —_TEWF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 10,594 4,570
Share-based payments ARG AR R EHE 2 B 1S

(Share options granted) (BERE 2 ERE) 23,447 -

Pension costs RIRE B 77 36

34,118 4,606

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2005:

39 FEMBRRIFE

UTER-_ZEERF+_A=+—H2Z=E

EMBRAREE :

Place of Issued Percentage of equity
Name of company incorporation and fully interest attributable Principal
and operations paid capital to the Group activities
ot i B 2 % BRTR rEEENL
NCIECE EEME BERE RER DL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
BE# kS
Hopson Development British Virgin US$2,000 100% - Investment holding
International Limited Islands 2,000 7T REER
REARBEBEERAR RERUEE
Archibald Properties British Virgin Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands 2ETT REER
EEEXARLA EBRULES
@ Beijing Hopson Beifang Mainland China US$12,000,000 - 100% Property
Real Estate A K RE 12,000,000 %It development
Development Limited MEER
tREELEHFEHE
MERRAA
@ Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Mainland China Rmb298,210,000 - 100% Property
Real Estate lEIpN ARE development
Development Limited 298,210,000 7T YE R
ItREERNEE
MERRAA
@ Beijing Hopson Yuling Mainland China US$12,000,000 - 100% Property
Real Estate Development — H1 B A 12,000,000 %It development
Limited MEER
tREERREE
MERRAA
182 |1OPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & 4 8| E £ @ 4 R 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

AEEH

@ Beijing Zhujiang Century
Property Management
Limited

LRI LM EER
BRAR

Chia Lung Group
Company Limited
HEEEERRAA

Dynawell Investment
Limited
BANRERRAA

Ever New Properties
Limited
BHEXERAAF

@ Guangdong Esteem
Property Services
Limited

BERESNERBERAF

@ Guangdong Hopson
Dijing Real Estate
Co. Ltd.
BERAETREWE
BER AR

@ Guangdong Hopson
Lejing Real Estate Co.
Ltd
BERALEESFHE
BER AR

t Guangdong Hopson
Minghui Real Estate
Limited

BERALHEBEME
BR AR

Place of
incorporation
and operations
AR &
EEME

Mainland China
A B KB

Samoa

TR

Hong Kong
AR

Mainland China
LelEip N

Mainland China
AR B K R

Mainland China
AR B K e

Mainland China
AR B K

Issued

and fully
paid capital
BERTR
BERE

Rmb 1,000,000
AR
1,000,000 7T

US$6,500,000
6,500,000 2 7T

HK$10,000
A1 10,000 7T

HK$2 ordinary
HK$3 non-voting
deferred shares (i)
B2 TERER
B IR ERE
i TE BB 17 (i)

HK$5,000,000
78 # 5,000,000 7T

US$25,000,000
25,000,000 % 7T

Rmb83,000,000
ARE
83,000,000 7T

Rmb41,532,852
ARE
41,532,852 ¢

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Group
rEEENL
RETDL
Directly Indirectly

BHiE k3

- 100%

100%

= 50% (ii)

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 90%

RE B R AR M EE

39 FERBARFE #®)

Principal
activities

TERER

Property
management

MEER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding
and property
investment

REZBRENERE

Property
management

MEER

Property
development

MRER

Property
development

MERER

Property
development

MERER

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39 EZMIBARIFIE &)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
Name of company incorporation and fully interest attributable Principal
and operations paid capital to the Group activities
af A 3 R BRITR rEEENL
NCEE EE R BRBA BREB DL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
BE# k3
@ Guangdong Hopson Mainland China Rmb41,500,000 - 100% Property
Yuehua Real Estate A B KB ARE development
Limited 41,500,000 7T MEER
BRAEME
Bt ESGR LA
@ Guangdong Mainland China Rmb93,500,018 - 100% Property
Huajingxincheng Hh B K e ARE development
Real Estate Limited 93,500,018 7T MEER
BRE R
B ESRR R A
t Guangdong Huanan Mainland China Rmb464,898,684 - 99% Property
New City Real Estate Hh B K e ARE development
Limited 464,898,684 7 MEER
& R f 3
Bt EGR LA
t Guangdong Huanan Real Mainland China Rmb48,046,856 - 70% Property
Estate Limited B K BE ARE development
BREMFHERRLA 48,046,856 7T MEER
t Guangdong Jinan Real Mainland China Rmb65,084,340 - 90% Property
Estate Limited lEipN ARE development
EREMEHESRRAR 65,084,340 7t MEERE
@ Guangdong New Tai An Mainland China Rmb19,100,000 - 100% Property
Real Estate Limited lEIpN ARE development
BRMRLZEHWERR AR 19,100,000 7T MEER
t Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China Rmb53,550,000 - 97% Property
Cuijing Real Estate H B K e ARE development
Limited 53,550,000 7T MEER
BMaERS
FEHEBRRA
@ Guangzhou Esteem Mainland China Rmb 1,010,000 - 100% Property agency
Property Agency Hh B K e ARE MERE
Limited 1,010,000 7T
BMNTmESRYE
REFRAA
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED & £ élRE @51 2 7
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Name of company

NREH

Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu

Real Estate Limited
BHAERT
B EBR A A

Guangzhou Hopson Junjing

Real Estate Limited
EMEE%RS
FHERR AT

Guangzhou Hopson Keji
Garden Real Estate
Limited

BMNEERKE
FHERR AR

Guangzhou Hopson
Qinghui Real Estate
Limited

BMNEEFE
FEHERRRA

Guangzhou Hopson
Qingyuan Water
Supply Limited

BN EBR
FKERAE

Guangzhou Hopson Yihui
Real Estate Limited

BIMNEEIRE
FHERRRAR

Guangzhou Hopson
Xingjing Business
Services Limited

EMNEEER

ABERAR

Guangzhou Hopson Yijing
Real Estate Limited

BMNEEERSR
FiEARATF

Place of
incorporation
and operations
af 8 B 2 %
EEME

Mainland China
LelEip N

Mainland China
EelEip N

Mainland China
AR B K

Mainland China
AR B K

Mainland China
AR B K B

Mainland China
AR B K B

Mainland China
AR B K

Mainland China
R B K e

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued

and fully
paid capital
BRTR
BERE

Rmb42,500,000
AR
42,500,000 7t

Rmb221,670,000
AR
221,670,000 7T

Rmb 133,340,000
AR
133,340,000 7T

Rmb42,287,624
AR
42,287,624 7t

Rmb3,000,000
AR
3,000,000 7t

Rmb131,420,019
AR
131,420,019 7t

Rmb500,000
AR
500,000 7T

Rmb82,073,720
AR
82,073,720 ¢

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

to the Group
rEEES
RETD

Directly Indirectly

E& LF:3

100%

- 95%

- 95%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 99.5%

RE B R AR M EE

39 FEMBARIFE @
Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal
activities

IRER

Property
development

MEER

Property
development

MERER

Property
development

MERER

Property
development

MEHR

Water supply
oK

Property
development

MEHR

Provision of
clubhouse and
residential services

Rt e REERS

Property
development

MEER

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED &
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39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #

B BHRKRKE

39 FERBARFE #®)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
Name of company incorporation and fully interest attributable Principal
and operations paid capital to the Group activities
af A 3 R BRITR rEEENL
AR EEME BERE RETDL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
BE# k3
t Guangzhou Hopson Yujing ~ Mainland China Rmb46,750,000 - 70% Property
Real Estate Limited B R ARE development
BMEEmR 46,750,000 7t MEERE
FHEAR QT
@ Guangzhou Yijing Arts Mainland China Rmb11,200,000 - 100% Investment holding
and Culture Company B A fE ARE REER
Limited 11,200,000 7T
BMNER L&
BRARAA
@ Guangzhou Yiming Real Mainland China Rmb43,800,000 - 50% (ii) Property
Estate Development B A e ARE development
Company Limited 43,800,000 7T MEER
EMNEREMEREZEERAR
Hopeson Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary - 100% Investment holding
AEEERRLQA BB HK$10,000 REZEK
non-voting
deferred shares (i)
B2 TR AR
75 10,000 7T
BRERE
i FE B A7 (i)
Hopson Development British Virgin US$2 - 100% Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited Islands 2ZETT design and
BHERE (BR) ARAR HBELES advisory services
RUMERTR
8 5 AR 75
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
(Properties) Limited BB 75 10,000 7T MELKE
REEIR (EX) ARAQA
@ Hopson (Guangzhou) Mainland China US$4,830,000 - 100% Property
Industries Limited AR B oK B 4,830,000 7T development
af (BM) BEXERLA MERE
Hopson Properties British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Investment holding
(China) Limited RBRZES 1%7T REEK
EEHBEEMESRA A
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A 4 g R E®A5 B A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

VRPN

N

BF 7% AR M A

=

39 FERBARFE #®)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
Name of company incorporation and fully interest attributable Principal
and operations paid capital to the Group activities
af A 3 R BRITR rEEENL
AR EEME BERE RETDL TEXK
Directly Indirectly
BE# k3
@ Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Mainland China Rmb 1,000,000 = 100% Property
Company Limited B K BE A K% 1,000,000 T development
BMmREHERR AR MEER
Interwell Developments British Virgin US$100 - 50% (ii) Investment holding
Limited Islands 100 = 7T REZER
EBELES
Nambour Properties British Virgin Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands 2ETT REZR
HEEEARLQA RERAES
Outward Expanse British Virgin US$2 - 100% Investment holding
Investments Limited Islands 2ETT REZER
BARERRRA KBRS
A Plaza Royale Water Palace ~ Mainland China Rmb72,000,000 - 70% Hotel operation
Convention Hotel Tianjin A BIARE ARE BIEEE
Co. Limited 72,000,000 7T
AREFRBRBERERAT
Pomeroy Properties British Virgin Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands 2%ETT RERR
HREREERRLDA RERAES
Prestige Dragon Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
Development Limited BE 75 10,000 7T & & AR
BREBRARLDA
@ Shanghai Hopson Property ~ Mainland China US$15,000,000 - 100% Property
Development Company B A fE 15,000,000 7T development
Limited MEERE
FeeEEMmERE
BRAA
@ Shanghai Lung Meng Mainland China US$10,000,000 - 100% Property
Company Limited B A fE 10,000,000 7T development
FEERERAR MEERE
@ Shanghai Mintai Real Mainland China US$30,100,000 - 50% (ii) Property
Estate Company Limited ~— FEIABE 30,100,000 T development
FERREMERR AR MEER
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEEREBRBERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company

AEEH

Solawide Properties
Limited
SEEFARQA

Sun Yick Properties
Limited
HEEFARAA

Sun Advance Investments
Limited
BEREFGRAA

T Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang
Real Estate Development
Limited

REREWIRME
MEAR LA

@ Value-Added Guangzhou
Limited
BMNTMEARADA

Place of
incorporation
and operations
AR &
EEME

British Virgin
Islands

RBRULES

British Virgin
Islands

REBRIES

British Virgin
Islands

RBRZES

Mainland China
B R

Mainland China
B R

Issued

and fully
paid capital
BRITR
BERE

us$2
2XTT

US$2
2XTL

Us$1
1%

Rmb72,000,000
AR
72,000,000 7T

Rmb8,000,000
AR
8,000,000 7T

@ These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established

in Mainland China.

to the Group

AEMERS
BREBD L
Directly Indirectly

BEE Lf 3
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 70%
- 70%
@

=
N

B BHRKRKE

39 FEMBRRIFE @
Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Principal
activities

TERER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property
development

MEHRR

Property
development

MEHRR

ZERNPBEAERLZ ZEHER I

BRE-

t  These are cooperative joint ventures established in t ZEAERTPBKRERYZAEEED
Mainland China. *o

A These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland A ZERRPEREXIzEEGED
China. ¥ o

@  These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland o RERRPBIRERILZANERZE -
China.

Notes: Bitaz -

()  The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not () EEZEELEROIEREE ERELER
entitled to any dividend, and are not entitled to distributions IR E R ERERNBEREZEDIR © BIE
upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has 7 % 100,000,000,000,000 7T E 7K T 38
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares and BRIEFEA AIEEEEZ —FrADRTE
thereafter one-half of the assets is distributable to holders of SERBELERORER A °
the non-voting deferred shares.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED SEH B REREEBRAR DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)  These are subsidiaries because the Group has the power to

govern the financial and operating policies of these

companies, notwithstanding that the Group's equity interests

in these companies are not more than 50%.

40 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) Acquisitions of subsidiaries

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 5 January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of the 100% equity interest in
Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang Development Limited
("Xin Chang Jiang”) for a consideration of
approximately HK$351,076,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB365,120,000). Xin Chang Jiang
owned the land use right of a site located in Huadu,
Guangzhou with a GFA of approximately 273,467

square meters.

On 13 January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of the 72.14% equity interest in
Shanghai San Xiang Real Estate Development
Limited (“S
use right of a site located in Qingpu, Shanghai

an Xiang”). San Xiang owned the land

with a GFA of approximately 118,639 square
meters. The Group expected to complete the
acquisition of the remaining equity interest of
27.86% within 2006. Total consideration for the
entire interest in San Xiang was approximately
HK$229,019,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB238,180,000).

On 20 January 2006, the Group completed the
acquisition of the 100% equity interest in Shanghai
Long Jia Properties Limited (“"Long Jia") for a
consideration of approximately HK$183,365,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB190,700,000).
Long Jia possessed the right to develop a land site
located in Sheshan, Shanghai with a GFA of

approximately 110,238 square meters.

(b) Equity transaction
In February 2006, the Company issued 6,000,000

ordinary shares for a total

consideration of

HK$25,800,000, upon exercise of share options granted

to directors.

39 TERNBAA]
(%)

et -

(i) BEAERENZ

RE B R AR M EE

EL—e )

=Y/NC ol &N R N

B 50% - ZEARAKNBI AR IBERA
SEERBEZXE R 2T G MKE
% o

%ia&%ﬁ

(a) WENBL

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

EA—??/\QE AREH  KA&EH
TR BN RITIERFAES
RA®E ([F&EI]) 100% B A
= REDH B BE
351,076,000 T (HWHEERAR
¥ 365,120,000 7T) ° &)L #
BRI R EMNEHEEERELD
273,467 F K Z HBE 7 L H{E
FAHE -

R=ZZTEXF—A+=HB " 4&%
Bk WiE L= FREXER
RAarl ([=Z=R]) 72.14% x2S
me —REE BN LEESHE
FBEAMIEA 118,639 F K 2 i
Bz T E AR o NEBEEHE
AR=F 7/\¢Wn)ﬁzuﬁﬁ§ﬁ%T
2 27.86% AR - =RE
#E = zﬁ@ﬁ{ﬁiﬁﬁz%%
229,019,000 T (HHER AR
s 238,180,000 7T) °

RZTEXF—A AEEZTK
KELEEBEZBEXZEAR QA
([88% 1) 100% Pe At - KB
#) 57515 183,365,000 7T (#J48
=N AR 190,700,000 7T) ©
e RN EERILESE
ETEX) 110,238 F 5 K 2R 2
BRE -

(b) BARS

i

EERF_A ARARERT

EEEREETER - LRKRES
& 25,800,000 JT 217 6,000,000 %

ARx e

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED EHEREE AR A A
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

= A
,%vT\m

B % &

=55
=

£

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION e BER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS meaBERER
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—£%—- ZTT- —TT= CZTTQY =—EER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETn BTt B¥Tr #B%Tn
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Z31) (E51) (E71)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights ME £ 30 % + 58 A4 - 813,488 1,139,277 760,827 426,499
Properties and equipment EYES 22,507 28,413 35,730 709,777 938,913
Investment properties REWX 1,710,000 2,738,470 2,568,758 2,835,469 2,583,313
Properties under development HIERAKREZ
for long-term investment ERPME 805,996 256,410 659,486 338,586 234,411
Intanghible assets BV EE 6,587 54,632 4,072 (155,846) 102,142
Investment in an associate R—EE QR 2KE 2,413 1,888 770 36 80
Investment in a jointly P — el L R 2
controlled entity ERIRE 38,431 56,526 107,297 256,761 867,632
Deferred tax assets ERETBEE = 30,857 55,387 47,272 51,962
Due from a director e &= = 08 1,000 - - - -
2,586,934 3,980,684 4,570,777 4,792,882 5,204,952
Current assets MENEE
Land use rights T A - 2,167,032 2,180,028 3775910 5,131,465
Properties under AEEEZ
development for sale BRAME 1,751,799 1,186,499 2,209,479 2,775,320 4,320,803
Completed properties for sale AHEEZBEKYE 369,536 846,397 1,011,727 1,177,729 1,071,604
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE ek
other current assets B mE) & E 156,784 306,541 450,150 758,574 1,171,863
Accounts receivable JFE LS BR 5K 277,167 11,349 43,415 80,789 90,324
Due from related companies e E 1 Rl OE 5,983 2,765 3,138 2,170 2,285
Investment in securities K& E 5 4,232 - - - -
Pledged/charged bank deposits BERHRRITER 110,221 281,034 309,732 258,650 237,068
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 363,873 208,368 350,247 477,959 2,353,280
3,039,595 5,009,985 6,557,916 9,307,101 14,378,692
LIABILITIES g8
Current liabilities mEAE
Account payable & 1~ BR 5K 147,844 1,017,349 1,329,840 662,854 800,524
Land cost payables JFE 5 + Hu R AR 172,907 346,252 108,819 828,128 1,000,039
Borrowings & 915766 1,181,352 1,384,093 1,957,752 1,837,342
Deferred revenue B & 140,083 885,025 1,850,377 3,408,938 2,840,429
Accruals and other payables BIRERNRAMENTIE 246,008 292,799 411,026 451,049 816,237
Due to an associate e — R B2 A R F A - 1,109 2,226 1,192 5,146
Due to directors ENEZESHIE 1,562 4,188 1,922 5,667 13,891
Due to related companies [E1SBEE R AIFIE 76,209 303,314 215,732 479,818 266,362
Due to a jointly controlled entity & A< — i £k R 422
By 87,189 212,567 185,347 391,006 148,117
Due to a holding company e AR 2 Rl KOE 20,000 - - - 18,997
Current tax liabilities AHMIEEE 45,357 172,303 188,682 353,051 584,191
1,852,925 4,416,258 5,678,064 8539455 8,331,275
Net current assets B & E 1,186,670 593,727 879,852 767,646 6,047,417
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 3,773,604 4574411  5450,629 5,560,528 11,252,369
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A 4 &R EHERE A 7
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Non-current liabilities
Land cost payable
Borrowings
Deferred revenue
Deferred tax liabilities
Due to a director

Due to a holding company

Net assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
the Company's equity holders
Share capital

Reserves

Minority interest

Total equity

FRBAE
FE{F £ 3 pR AR

fE R

Y 28
EXBAAR
BN —2EEHE
FERT AR 1 B 508
BERE

G $
AREBEREA
BB REE
[

4
LEBRRED
et

= AN pr~d NIN
e BB E B M E
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—2E- —TTZ —TT= —ETITN ZEFTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT B%Tr BETr BETr BY¥Tn

(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
(&251) (&51) (E7)

126,425 75,338 11,847 190,566 522
482,632 822,598 1,662,224 1,547,805 4,826,851
58,889 57,359 53,934 49,640 47,255
890,920 694,269 546,286 374,743 612,466
- 10,000 10,000 10,000 -
- 20,000 32,000 59,000 -
1,558,866 1,679,564 2,316,291 2,231,754 5,487,094
2,214,738 2,894,847 3,134,338 3,328,774 5,765,275
100,200 100,200 100,200 100,300 121,360
1,934,728 2,393,558 2,544,804 3,073,427 5,342,348
2,034,928 2,493,758 2,645,004 3,173,727 5,463,708
179,810 401,089 489,334 155,047 301,567
2,214,738 2,894,847 3,134,338 3,328,774 5,765,275

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A HEREEER
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

= a8 B B &

B OB =

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION Re M E R
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS  #r&fEm&k
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
—£E- —TTZ —TT= —ETITN ZEFTL
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT B%Tr BETr BT B¥Tn
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(&251) (&51) (E3)
Sales HER 1,170,871 2,394,115 2,511,630 3,973,184 6,133,894
Cost of sales SHE A (782,664) (1,592,461) (1,892,421) (2,895,770) (4,189,275)
Gross profit EH 388,207 801,654 619,209 1,077,414 1,944,619
Other gains H ez 4,288 2,632 7,211 117,706 279,376
Selling and marketing costs HERTSREEE R (126,181)  (208,386)  (230,080)  (180,699)  (202,920)
General and administrative expenses — B ETBRER (57,080) (146,201) (139,852) (241,898)  (340,035)
Operating profit G AR 209,234 449,699 256,488 772,523 1,681,040
Finance costs B 5 AR (5,938) (12,644) (4,280) (13,375)  (59,966)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate i — & R E
wF/ (ER) - (3,033) (1,118) (734) 44
Share of profit of and other gains AME—EERZEHEE
relating to a jointly controlled entity &l R E U 12,584 32,150 51,671 57,732 191,509
Profit before taxation B Tt Bl A 215,880 466,172 302,761 816,146 1,812,627
Taxation M| (90,891)  (183,882)  (101,192)  (298,338)  (611,446)
Profit for the year FRERA 124,989 282,290 201,569 517,808 1,201,181
Attributable to: el
Equity holders of the Company ALNRIRERA A 120,965 243,340 168,905 432,785 1,217,323
Minority interest PYRFEER 4,024 38,950 32,664 85023  (16,142)
124,989 282,290 201,569 517,808 1,201,181
Dividends s 30,050 40,080 50,100 90,270 412,494
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED A& HalE&E E R A 7
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Principal Office

Suites 2705-2709

27th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
16th Floor, South Tower

Zhujiang Investment Building

421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office

Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office

18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building

555 Xujia Hui Road
Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District

Tianjin
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